
AGENDA 

REDWOOD COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Redwood County is committed to stewardship, respect & shared responsibility in providing improved 
cost-efficient services to all! 

TUESDAY, JANUARY 17, 2023 

COMMISSIONER’S BOARD ROOM, GOVERNMENT CENTER 

REDWOOD FALLS, MINNESOTA 

Please Note:  This agenda is subject to change due to Department Heads, government agencies and the 

public bringing items forward, between the posting of the agenda and the actual meeting time.  All times 

listed below are approximate.               
                 

8:30 a.m.                 

 Pledge of Allegiance             

 Open Forum**              

 Review and approve January 17th agenda          

 Identification of Conflict of Interest           

 Review and approve consent agenda:   

                -  August 16th amended minutes        

   -  December 30th minutes 

-  January 5th minutes 

   -  Abstract of Bills  

          

8:30 a.m. 

 ROAD AND BRIDGE 

Anthony Sellner 

1) Construction and Maintenance Cooperative Agreement between Redwood County and the 

City of Redwood Falls for CSAH 1 and CSAH 24 

2) Survey Equipment Purchase 

3) Authorize Board Chair and Administrator to Sign Contract with Independent, Licensed 

Contractor for Snow Clearing Events 

 

   9:00 a.m. 

 SOUTHWEST HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

Beth Wilms and Lisa DeBoer 

 

9:30 a.m 

 BREAK 

 

9:45 a.m. 

 PLANNING AND ZONING 

Nick Brozek 

1) Conditional Use Permit filed by Clarence Wurtz of Upland Hutterian Bretheren, Inc. to 

Build a Housing Development 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Agenda 

Board of Commissioners 

January 17, 2023 

 2 

 

10:00 a.m. 

 REDWOOD COUNTY DITCH AUTHORITY 

1) Public Hearings for the Redetermination of Benefits 

CD #44 

CD #48 

CD #55 

CD # 63 

CD #65 

 

10:30 a.m. 

2) Public Hearings for the Redetermination of Benefits 

    CD #66 

    CD #74 

          CD #88 

          CD #94 

          CD #97 

 

3) FEMA Change Order 

 

10:45 a.m. 

 ENVIRONMENTAL 

Scott Wold 

1) Lawnmower Purchase at Plum Creek Park 

2) Appointment to the Planning and Zoning Commission 

3) Resolution to Expend Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Funds for Plum Creek Park 

Improvements 

 

10:55 a.m. 

 ASSESSOR 

Jesse Jacobson 

1) Assessment Agreements  -    City of Redwood Falls (pending County Attorney approval) 

- Paxton Township (pending County Attorney approval) 

 

11:00 a.m. 

 ADMINISTRATION 

1) Amended RRRSWA Joint Powers Agreement (pending County Attorney approval) 

2) 2023 Solid Waste Hauler Licenses:  CMF, R & E Sanitation and Waste Management 

3) 2023 Grandview Winery Tobacco License 

 

Personnel 

1) Authorization to Hire (2) 

2) Acknowledge Resignation 

3) Revised Drug Testing Contracts with Steve Gramstad and Shelly Koenig 

4) Amendment to the Restated Health Services Network Access and Administrative Agreement 

with Preferred One 

 

 

 

 

 



Agenda 

Board of Commissioners 

January 17, 2023 

 3 

11:30 a.m. 

 SENATOR GARY DAHMS VIA ZOOM MEETING 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82073361667?pwd=WWI4cjFPb041U01tWU0xS1diSWxZQT09 

Meeting ID: 820 7336 1667 

   Passcode: 664315 
 

12:00 p.m. 

 LUNCH BREAK 
 

1:00 p.m. 

 SHERIFF 
Jason Jacobson 

1) December 2022 Jail Population 

2) Sentence to Serve Quarterly Report 

3) Award Jail Medical Services  

 

1:15 p.m. 

 AUDITOR-TREASURER 

Jean Price 

 1)  Review and Approve the Consent Agenda 

  -Cash Balance  

  -Investment Summary  

-Budget Report: General, Road & Bridge, Building, Human Services, Ditch Fund, Health   

 Fund, Solid Waste Fund; Debt Service Fund; Insurance Fund and Soil & Water Fund 

  -December 2022 Disbursements 

  

1:25 p.m. 

 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Briana Mumme 

1) Resolution to Expend ARPA Funds for the Redwood County Fair Board 

2) EDA District 3 Appointment 

3) Southwest Minnesota Housing Partnership Contract for CDBG Broadband Grant 

Administration Services  

4) Explore Southwest Minnesota Committee Appointments 

 

1:30 p.m. 

 CLOSED SESSION  
Pursuant to MN Statutue 13D.05, Subdivision 1 

Attorney-Client Privilege 

 

 ADJOURN 

 
 

**OPEN FORUM** 
OPEN FORUM PROCEDURES 

1. The open forum will be held at the beginning of the meeting. 

2. Those wishing to speak should sign up and indicate the topic at the beginning of the meeting. 

3. A maximum time of 20 minutes will be allowed for the open forum. 
4. A basic guide of three people per topic with a maximum of five minutes per person. 

5. Those speaking will state their name and address prior to speaking. 

6. Statements should be limited to the issues only. 
7. Apply the “Golden Rule” during presentations. 

8. The Board retains the right to respond or not, but may discuss the item. 

9. Personal/Personnel issues will not be heard or discussed. 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82073361667?pwd=WWI4cjFPb041U01tWU0xS1diSWxZQT09


 

                                                 POSTED 1-13-23 

 

 

OFFICIAL NOTICES/ UPCOMING MEETINGS 

 

 
January 17th – 8:30 a.m. - Redwood County Board Meeting – Redwood County Government Center, 
                                                Board Room 
 
February 7th – 8:30 a.m. - Redwood County Board Meeting – Redwood County Government Center, 
                                                Board Room 
 
February 16th – 8:30 a.m. – Economic Development Strategic Planning Meeting via Zoom 
 
February 21st - 8:30 a.m. - Redwood County Board Meeting – Redwood County Government Center, 
                                                Board Room 
 
March 7th - 8:30 a.m. - Redwood County Board Meeting – Redwood County Government Center, 
                                                Board Room 
 
March 21st -8:30 a.m. - Redwood County Board Meeting – Redwood County Government Center, 
                                                Board Room 
 
April 4th - 8:30 a.m. - Redwood County Board Meeting – Redwood County Government Center, 
                                                Board Room 
 
 
 
 
  



               
                  
                    

REDWOOD COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
 

AUGUST 16, 2022 
 

The Board of County Commissioners met in regular session at 8:30 a.m. in the Commissioners’ Room in 
the Government Center, Redwood Falls, Minnesota. 

 
Present for all or portions of the meeting were Commissioners Bob Van Hee, Dave Forkrud, Jim Salfer, 

Rick Wakefield, Dennis Groebner and County Administrator Vicki Kletscher. Also present were Human 
Resource Coordinator Peter Brown; Highway Engineer Anthony Sellner; Economic Development Coordinator 
Briana Mumme; Technology Coordinator Paul Parsons; Payroll Technician Michelle Koenig; Veteran Service 
Officer Roger Zollner; Environmental Director Scott Wold; Southwest Region Small Business Development 
Center Representatives Liz Struve and Christine Fischer; Redwood County Historical Society Representatives 
Scott Larson and Karl Ramey; Southern Minnesota Arts Council Representative Nicole DeBoer via Zoom and 
Kevin Stroup via Zoom. 

 
Chair Salfer called the meeting to order asking for the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  

 
On motion by Wakefield, second by Groebner, the Board voted unanimously to approve the August 16th 

agenda. 
 
Chair Salfer asked the Board members to identify any areas for which they had a Conflict of Interest.  

There were none. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

• On motion by Van Hee, second by Wakefield, the Board voted unanimously to approve the consent 
agenda. 

o August 2nd minutes.      
o Payment of bills as follows: 

 

General Fund $      126,941.81 

Ditch Maintenance Fund $        54,680.37 

Soil and Water Fund $        12,254.30 

Building Fund $          2,933.06 

Insurance Fund $             300.00 

 
o Bills exceeding $2,000:  Karpel Solutions $46,999.92; City of Redwood Falls $5,000.00; 

Centra Care Health Systems $8,841.77; Mend Correctional Care $4,123.69; Redwood 
County Highway Department $7,381.27; Tersteeg’s Holiday Market $10,249.41; R & G 
Construction $21,757.54; WOLD Architects $2,933.06; Bolton & Menk $2,200.00; MNL, 
Inc. $35,400.00; Stantec Consulting $9,851.49; Steven Geis $4,785.55; Michael Landuyt 
$2,654.00; R & G Construction $4,194.75 

 

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 

• The Board recognized Michelle Koenig, Administration Department, for 5 years of service, Michael 
Ingebretson, Sheriff’s Department, for 20 Years of Service, and Jim Sandgren, Sheriff’s Department, for 
30 years of service to Redwood County.   

 



Page 2 of 9       REDWOOD COUNTY, MINNESOTA August 16, 2022 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

• The Board entered into Closed Session per MN Statute 13D.05, Subd. 1, for Attorney-Client Privilege at 
8:35 a.m. 

• Closed Session ended at 8:47 a.m. 

• No action taken. 
 

RECONVENE 

• The Board reconvened into regular session at 8:47 a.m. 

 

ROAD AND BRIDGE 

• On motion by Van Hee, second by Groebner, the Board voted unanimously to approve the final payment 
for SAP 064-607-047 and SAP 064-599-118 to Midwest Contracting in the amount of $25,528.37. 

• On motion by Wakefield, second by Forkrud, the Board voted unanimously to advertise for the 2023 
chip seal project with individual letting dates determined by the County Engineer. 

• On motion by Van Hee, second by Groebner, the Board voted unanimously to purchase a Cimline M1 
Crack Filler Melter from Swanston Equipment Companies in the amount of $60,880 from State Contract 
#P-961(5), Contract #205069. 

• On motion by Forkrud, second by Van Hee, the Board declared the current crack filling melter, unit 
3049, as excess property and authorize disposal or sale. 

 

SOUTHERN MINNESOTA ARTS COUNCIL 

• Nicole DeBoer presented an overview of the Southern Minnesota Arts Council. 

• On motion by Forkrud, second by Van Hee, the Board voted unanimously to approve the 2023 funding 
request in the amount of $1,000.00. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

• The Board entered into Closed Session per MN Statute 13D.05, Subd. 1, for Attorney-Client Privilege at 
9:22 a.m. 

• Closed Session ended at 9:35 a.m. 

• No action taken. 
 

RECONVENE 

• The Board reconvened into regular session at 9:35 a.m. 
 

TECHNOLOGY 

• On motion by Salfer, second by Groebner, the Board voted unanimously to declare technology 
equipment as excess property and authorize disposal. 

 

VETERAN SERVICES 

• On motion by Groebner, second by Van Hee, in a roll-call vote with Groebner, Van Hee, Salfer, Forkrud 
and Wakefield all voting aye, the Board adopted the following resolution: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 3 of 9       REDWOOD COUNTY, MINNESOTA August 16, 2022 

 

RESOLUTION OF REDWOOD COUNTY   
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Redwood County that the County enter into the attached Grant Agreement with the 
Minnesota Department of Veterans Affairs (MDVA) to conduct the following Program: County Veterans 
Service Office Operational Enhancement Grant Program.  The grant must be used to provide outreach to the 
county's veterans; to assist in the reintegration of combat veterans into society; to collaborate with other social 
service agencies, educational institutions, and other community organizations for the purposes of enhancing 
services offered to veterans; to reduce homelessness among veterans; and to enhance the operations of the 
county veterans service office, as specified in Minnesota Statutes 197.608 and Minnesota Laws 2021, Special 
Session, Chapter 12, Article 1, Section 37, Subdivision 2.  This Grant should not be used to supplant or replace 
other funding. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by   Redwood County that Vicki Kletscher, the County Administrator, and Jim 
Salfer, the County Commissioner, be authorized to execute the FY2021 CVSO Grant Agreement for the above-
mentioned Program on behalf of the County.   
 

REDWOOD COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY 

• Scott Larson and Karl Ramey presented the 2023 funding request in the amount of $20,000.00.  The 
funding request will be moved to the 2023 budgeting process for consideration. 

 

AUDITOR/TREASURER 

• On motion by  Wakefield, second by Groebner, the Board voted unanimously to approve the following: 

• Cash Balance  

• Investment Summary 

• Budget Reports:  General Fund, Road & Bridge Fund, Human Services Fund, Building Fund, 
Ditch Fund, Solid Waste Fund, Insurance Fund, Soil and Water Fund, Solid Waste Fund, Health 
Fund and Debt Service Fund. 

• July 2022 Disbursements in the amount of $4,437,395.28. 

• Bills exceeding $2,000.00:  Preferred One $29,720.61, $8,507.26, $7,759.06, $5,149.52, $34,629.48, 
$2,382.43, $14,479.92, $3,219.66, $4,062.48; Redwood Falls Public Utilities $2,477.00, $9,245.03, 
$12,469.52; Further $8,642.59, $8,642.59, $2,527.58; BCBS $2,286.00; Redwood Electric Cooperative 
$2,959.28; MN Dept. of Revenue $59,258.22; Redwood County License Center $2,682.95, $3,303.25; 
Brandt Properties $3,917.48; Gilland Trust Fund $3,561.22; Charlene Gilland $3,561.23; Goody’s 
Farms $19,154.55; John Hulterstrum $4,321.87; Mark Hulterstrum $4,321.88; Alexander Jordan 
$3,346.86; Mervin Kerkhoff $3,111.75; Steven Lyon $7,506.50; Fred Panitzke $4,563.90; Herb 
Panitzke $6,085.20; Redwood Falls Port Authority $3,941.55; Regents of the University of Minnesota 
$37,963.35; Dean Swigart $10,787.40; Tiffany Land Partners $5,808.60; Eric Woodford $4,584.71; MN 
Commission of Finance $5,544.00; Bloemke Family Limited Partnership $12,040.00; Thomas Brandt 
$28,280.00; Carlson Family Limited Partnership $5,390.00; Larry Christensen $20,090.00; City of 
Morgan $9,030.00; D & S Salfer $2,066.40; Delta Dental $4,520.73; Susan Ebertz Trust $2,940.00; 
Fagen Farms $9,335.25; Andrew Frank $3,150.00; Eugene Goblirsch $30,240.00; Donovan Goblirsch 
$6,580.00; GRO Inc. $16,100.00; Steven Hartwig $2,636.66; Susanne Hatcher $2,636.66; Chad Heiling 
$8,330.00; Thomas Heiling $5,460.00; Raymond and Alvin Hoffbeck $4,550.00; Rodney Hoffbeck 
$7,770.00; Gayle Hoffmann $6,580.00; Inglis Trust $11,847.50; Carol Jacoby $3,430.00; Collin 
Kerkhoff $2,240.00; Mervin Kerkhoff $2,310.00; Gary Kranz $4,410.00; Trevor Kukowski $5,810.00; 
Rodney Leopold $11,410.00; Mark Malecek $23,590.00; James Mathiowetz $4,200.00; Myron 
Mathiowetz $31,080.00; Daryl Nemitz $7,700.00; Diane Olson $15,120.00; Fred Panitzke $12,810.00; 
Todd Pietig $4,270.00; Plotz Irrevocable Trust $9,660.00; Karl Ramey $6,860.00; Steven Salfer 
$3,533.60; Ruth Simonsen $10,360.00; SWHHS $57,210.25; Spaeth Revocable Trust $6,300.00; St.  



Page 4 of 9       REDWOOD COUNTY, MINNESOTA August 16, 2022 

 

Michael’s Church $8,890.00; Carolyn Steffl $3,010.00; Curtis Stokesbary $3,220.00; Joyce Werner 
Trust $3,745.00; Roger Werner Trust $3,745.00; Sally Wordes $9,590.00; Wayne Andersen $15,680.00; 
Floyd Hoffbeck $5,250.00; Jeffery Kodet $3,150.00; Roger Pabst $8,680.00; Redwood Soil and Water 
$134,859.00; SWHHS $26,728.00; Dorothy Symes $2,524.00; Duininck, Inc $226,006.64, $583,923.84; 
Midwest Contracting $4,948.55; R & G Construction $1,259,916.05; MR Paving $265,451.45; 
Meadowland Farmers Coop $31,762.01; Redwood Falls Public Utilities $2,001.33; Staples Oil 
$32,246.80; Morris Sealcoat & Trucking $948,666.34. 

 

• On motion by Van Hee, second by Groebner, the Board voted unanimously to approve the State of 
Minnesota Joint Powers Agreement for the Primary Election Recount Agreement. 

• On motion by Van Hee, second by Forkrud, the Board voted unanimously to approve the State of 
Minnesota Joint Powers Agreement for the General Election Recount Agreement. 

 

RECESS 

• The Board recessed and entered into Redwood County Ditch Authority at 10:23 a.m. 
 

REDWOOD COUNTY DITCH AUTHORITY 

• At 10:23 a.m., Chair Wakefield called Redwood County Ditch Authority to order.   Present for the 
discussion were Commissioners Salfer, Groebner, Forkrud, Wakefield and Van Hee, Administrator 
Kletscher, Environmental Director Wold and Administrative Assistant Wersal. 

• On motion by Groebner, second by Salfer, in a roll-call vote with Groebner, Salfer, Van Hee, Forkrud 
and Wakefield all voting aye, the Board adopted the findings and order for JD 14 Redetermination of 
Benefits. 

• On motion by Groebner, second by Salfer, the Board voted unanimously to approve the increase in the 
contract award to Schmidt Construction for rip-rap for JD 33 in the amount of $39,550.00. 

• On motion by Salfer, second by Van Hee, the Board voted unanimously to deny the request from 
Schmidt Construction to increase mobilization in the amount of $1,703.30 for JD 33. 

• On motion by Groebner, second by Forkrud, the Board voted unanimously to approve the bid documents 
for Phase 1 Hydro-seeding for JD 36. 

• Chair Wakefield closed Redwood County Ditch Authority at 10:33 a.m. 
 

RECONVENED 

• The Board reconvened into Regular Session at 10:33 a.m. 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL 

• On motion by Van Hee, second by Wakefield, the Board voted unanimously to send a notice to the 
Notice of Non-Gaming Land Acquisition Application to the Governor’s Office and the United States 
Department of the Interior in reference to Parcels #65-008-2050, 65-008-2070 and 65-005-3020.  

 

ADMINISTRATION 

• On motion by Van Hee, second by Forkrud, the Board voted unanimously to adopt the Policy for 
Donation of Surplus Equipment to a Non-Profit Organization. 

• On motion by Van Hee second by Forkrud, the Board voted unanimously to approve the Child’s Place 
Building Lease Agreement Amendment.   

• On motion by Salfer, second by Wakefield, the Board voted unanimously to approve the Child’s Place 
Equipment Lease Agreement Amendment. 

• On motion by Groebner, second by Van Hee, the Board voted unanimously to approve a $36,000.00 
funding request to the Ag Society for 2023. 

 



Page 5 of 9       REDWOOD COUNTY, MINNESOTA August 16, 2022 
 

• On motion by Groebner, second by Forkrud, the Board voted unanimously to approve a one-time 
appropriation to the Ag Society in the amount of $30,000.00 to be funded from the ARPA funds. 

• The Board reviewed the July 2022 Jail Population. 

• On motion by Wakefield, second by Van Hee, the Board voted unanimously to approve the following 
Justice Center Change Orders: 
 

Ford Metro $2,829.22  

Duininck, Inc. $4,899.50 

 

• On motion by Forkrud, second by Van Hee, the Board voted unanimously to approve the Redwood Area 
Community Center Rental Room Agreement in the amount of $125.00. 

• On motion by Van Hee, second by Van Hee, the Board voted unanimously to declare courthouse 
furniture listed as excess and authorize the disposal as listed: 

 

description 

tag ID 

number 

Large metal shelf w/rollers  brown/ 2 pieces (heavy) 10628 

Heavy metal - Black old roller shelf poor shape NA 

3 Drawer Lateral (Atty office near front door 10719 

2 Drawer Lateral Atty  cream color 10891 

4 Drawer Lateral Atty cream color 12283 

4 Drawer Lateral Atty cream color 10855 

4 Drawer Lateral Atty cream color 12324 

4 Drawer Lateral Atty cream color 12282 

3 Drawer Lateral Atty cream color 12223 

4 Drawer Lateral Atty Putty color - Key letter J NA 

4 Drawer Lateral Atty Putty color - Key letter I NA 

4 Drawer Lateral Atty Putty color - Key in lock NA - Key 

4 Drawer Standard Black 4 drawer NA 

4 Drawer Legal FC Cream color #6 11361 

4 Drawer Legal FC Cream color #7 11362 

4 Drawer Legal FC Cream color #? 11359 

4 Drawer Legal FC Cream color # 8 11363 

4 Drawer Legal FC Cream color # 9 11458 

4 Drawer Legal FC Cream color # 10 11457 

4 Drawer Legal FC Cream color # 11  11456 

4 Drawer Legal FC Cream color # 12 11455 

3 Drawer Lateral Atty cream color 10718 

3 Drawer Lateral Atty cream color 12222 

5 Drawer Lateral CA - Gray NA 

5 Drawer Lateral CA Green NA 

Oak table  MN State 805227 

 Desk 4 Drawer  Atty 10612 

Desk 5 drawer Metal desk 10026 

Conference table CA - meeting room 8 ft table 10016 

4 Post table Formica court room B table 10639 

TV cart/TV TV stand w/TV NA 

Desk - 2 piece cherry color 2 piece chery desk and wing 11459 



Page 6 of 9       REDWOOD COUNTY, MINNESOTA August 16, 2022 

Small computer desk computer desk NA 

Projection screen wood grain exterior NA 

Projection screen Black  NA 

Wood shelf 3 shelf 11043 

Desk / credenza 2 Piece cherry color NA 

2 drawer metal desk metal desk 11248 

2 piece wood shelf from atty break room 10097 

10 drawer metal cabinet green cabinet NA 

Small table black metal/wheels NA 

4 Drawer file cabinet  Brown cabinet NA 

3 Drawer Green CA Green file cabinet NA 

3 Drawer Green CA Green file cabinet NA 

Heavy old dark green FC Sheriff - fC NA 

Old Table ? Maple? Jury room table NA 

Table 4 Post Formica top NA 

Cabinet - wood 2 door fake wood 2 door NA 

Gray file shelves CA file shelves 11251 

Gray file shelves CA file shelves 11031 

Gray file shelves CA file shelves 11033 

Gray file shelves CA file shelves 10960 

Gray file shelves CA file shelves 11032 

Gray file shelves CA file shelves 10961 

Gray file shelves CA file shelves 11034 

Church pew Natural NA 

Church pew Darker NA 

12 Slot shelf Dark green shelf NA 

Law Books Approx 4 boxes NA 

8 Metal shelves MN state - Salvage NA 

8 slot Wood shelf wood (sheriff) NA 

2 Drawer  black file cabinet NA 

7 Drawer FC Dark brown FC NA 

6 Drawer Metal shelf with doors Brown and yellow NA 

6 Drawer Metal shelf with doors multi color doors NA 

Old green shelf metal 5 shelf NA 

4 Drawer FC Old green NA 

4 Drawer FC Light Brown NA 

4 Drawer FC Light Brown NA 

4 Drawer FC Cream tape cabinet NA 

6 Drawer Metal cream FC Tape cabinet NA 

Old steel  shelf 12 slot cabinet NA 

Yellow shelf Tall file shelf NA 

Yellow shelf Tall file shelf NA 

3 Drawer green  CA file cabinets NA 

3 Drawer green CA file cabinets NA 

3 Drawer green Ca file cabinets NA 

3 Drawer green  CA file cabinets NA 

 CA file cabinets NA 



Page 7 of 9       REDWOOD COUNTY, MINNESOTA August 16, 2022 
 

3 Drawer green 

Computer desk (black) black computer table wheels NA 

Small formaica top table table 10385 

5 drawer small roller cabniet small wheeled cabinet NA 

4 Post table 3 ft table NA 

Small Hutch (light brown) Metal narrow hutch NA 

light brown 3 drawer w/side cabinet 10366 

Roller cart 2 shelf NA 

Wheeled IT cart It shelf on wheels NA 

4 Drawer FC wood filing cabinet - Courts NA 

Small roller cart court NA 

6 ft 4 post table formica top 3 ft wide NA 

4 ft 4 post table formica top 3 ft wide NA 

Corner TV shelf Atty - conference room area NA 

6 Ft 2 ft wide 4 post table formica table NA 

6 ft x3ft wood grain table court tables WOOD GRAIN NA 

6 ft x 3ft wood grain table court tables WOOD GRAIN NA 

CA cubicle sections 5 hutches NA 

CA cubicle sections 4 desks NA 

CA cubicle sections 3 corners NA 

CA cubicle sections 1 end NA 

CA cubicle sections over head shelf NA 

CA cubicle sections Partition NA 

5 drawer desk Black desk 5 drawer (gc storage) NA  

oak  table - Jury room (old) 4 ft x 30 inches NA 

credenza credenza - (old lic ctr) gc storage NA 

4 drawer FC fc 10128 

light brown 4 drawer file cabinet SWHHS - property 3321 

light brown 4 drawer file cabinet SWHHS - property 3323 

light brown 4 drawer file cabinet SWHHS - property 3322 

light brown 4 drawer file cabinet SWHHS - property 3941 

Dark brown 4 drawer file cabinet SWHHS - property NA 

3 drawer file cabinet Black file cabinet 3191 

2 drawer file cabinet Yellow filing cabinet 3999 

3 shelf wood shelf wood shelf 3139 

Desk / 2 pieces(with wing) Cream color 2 piece - county sticker 10213 

Desk /2 pieces (with wing) Cream color 2 piece    NA 

Wood desk large wood top desk(maint) 10324 

4 Post table formica table top -  10101 

desk top sit stand computer stand black NA 

approx 25 fiberglass chairs black, one teal NA 

christmas tree stand older christmas tree stand NA 

Red Metal chairs Padded chairs NA 

12 maroon padded cloth chairs Courtroom jury chairs -  NA 

Jury room table -  former jury room table, maple? Split NA 

Large wood desk large desk NA 



Page 8 of 9       REDWOOD COUNTY, MINNESOTA August 16, 2022 

Typewriter table gray table w wheels NA 

4 post table 3ft x 3 ft formica table? NA 

Glass table small glass table NA 

4 black padded chairs plastic NA 

7 black padded chairs padded black NA 

5 brown / blue chairs wood padded chairs NA 

1 black fiberglass padded chair padded fiberglass NA 

2 - green steel padded chairs padded steel NA 

1 yellow steel padded chair padded steel NA 

1 brown padded steel chair padded steel NA 

1 red padded steel chair padded steel NA 

1 Blue arm chair /wood padded wood are chair NA 

2 Maroon office chairs office shairs NA 

1 black dispatch chair dispatch chair NA 

2 black leather chairs w/automan break room chairs and automan NA 

2 black leather arm chairs black leather arm chairs NA 

2 black arm chairs steel black leather arm chairs NA 

2 gray /wood arem chairs gray /wood chairs NA 

1 black high back chair high back chair NA 

1 VCR/DVD player player combo NA 

1 dvd player player  NA 

Xray light cabinet  light cabinet NA 

5ft desk 5 drawer  Brown 10228 

Tan 3 shelf unit Tan book shelf NA 

Cream color 3 shelf unit Cream color metal shelf 10188 

Black 4 drawer file cabinet black filing cabinet legal 11579 

High back office chair poor shape leather chair NA 

Brown office chair no arms office chair NA 

Brown office chair no arms office chair NA 

Brown office chair no arms office chair NA 

Brown office chair no arms office chair NA 

Blue office chair no arms office chair NA 

Blue office chair w/arms office chair NA 

5 ft 4 post table formica top NA 

6 ft 4 post table formica top NA 

6 ft  wood shelf shelf in good shape 10249 

sitting stool steel legs/ black seat NA 

Metal multi tray heavy shelf heavy steel cabinets NA 

Metal multi tray heavy shelf heavy steel cabinets NA 

3 ft wood cabinet w shelves wood shelf NA 

christmas tree  christmas tree NA 

5 ft pressed board w/shelves 5 shelves NA 

Black 4 drawer file cabinet file cabinet NA 

putty color standard file cabinet file cabinet NA 

putty color standard file cabinet file cabinet NA 

4 blue arm chairsw/rollers padded roller arm chairs NA 

2 - green metal multi compartment  metal shelves NA 



Page 9 of 9       REDWOOD COUNTY, MINNESOTA August 16, 2022 
 

PERSONNEL 

• On motion by Van Hee, second by Wakefield, the Board voted unanimously to promote Henry 
Borgstrom from full-time Deputy Sheriff to full-time Patrol Sergeant and to be paid an additional $275 
monthly stipend effective August 22, 2022. 

• On motion by Forkrud, second by Van Hee, the Board voted unanimously to approve the Employer 
Participation and Adoption Agreement for the Minnesota Service Cooperative (MHC-WEX) prior to 
having the Master Service Agreement approved. 

 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

• On motion by Groebner, second by Wakefield, the Board voted unanimously to approve the Lead for 
Minnesota Contract Termination as noted in Section 6 of the Agreement. 

• On motion by Forkrud, second by Van Hee, the Board voted unanimously to approve the Mortgage 
Subordination Request for South Forty Meat Market Revolving Loan Fund. 

• On motion by Groebner, second by Wakefield, the Board voted unanimously to approve the Professional 
Services Contract with David Drown and Associates. 

• On motion by Groebner, second by Van Hee, the Board voted unanimously to approve the findings as 
outlined in the Environmental Assessment Determinations and Compliance Findings for HUD-assisted 
Projects Report prepared by Bolton and Menk. 

• On motion by Groebner, second by Wakefield, the Board voted unanimously to certify the Request for 
Release of Funds and Certification of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Office 
of Community Planning and Development. 

 

SOUTHWEST REGION SMALL BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CENTER 

• Liz Struve and Christine Fischer presented an overview of their program and a 2023 funding request in 
the amount of $5,000.00.   

• On motion by Salfer, second by Groebner, the Board voted unanimously to move the request to the 
budgeting process for consideration. 

 

COMMISSIONER REPORTS 

• The commissioners reported on meetings they attended:  
 
Wakefield:  RCRCA/Area II; JD 14 
 

Groebner:  Soil and Water Conservation District; Redwood-Renville Regional Solid Waste  
                  Authority; JD 14; Morgan Meeting 
 
Van Hee:  United Community Action 
 
Salfer:  Redwood-Renville Regional Solid Waste Authority; Economic Development; Election Canvass 
                

ADJOURN 

• There being no further business, Chair Salfer declared the meeting adjourned at 11:44 a.m. 
 

 
 

Attest:  __________________________               ____________________________       
  Vicki Kletscher         Jim Salfer, Chair 

County Administrator          Board of County Commissioners    



 

                       REDWOOD COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
 

December 30, 2022 
 

The Board of County Commissioners met in regular session at 8:30 a.m. in the Commissioner’s 
Room in the Government Center, Redwood Falls, Minnesota. 
 
Present for all or portions of the meeting were Commissioners Dennis Groebner, Rick Wakefield, 
Jim Salfer and Dave Forkrud. Also present were Administrator Vicki Kletscher; Chief Deputy 
Jason Jacobson; County Attorney Jenna Peterson; Auditor/Treasurer Jean Price; Human Resource 
Coordinator Peter Brown and Recorder Joyce Anderson. 
 
Chair Salfer called the Meeting to order asking for the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

 

ELECTED OFFICIAL SALARY DISCUSSION – SHERIFF 

• Chief Deputy Jacobson presented background information and his 2023 salary proposal of 
$118,560.00.  Discussion was held with the Board. 

• On motion by Van Hee, second by Forkrud, in a roll-call vote with Van Hee, Forkrud, 
Salfer, Wakefield and Groebner all voting aye, the Board adopted the following resolution: 

 

REDWOOD COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes require the County Board of Commissioners to annually 

set by resolution the salary of the County Sheriff. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the 2023 salary for the Redwood County 
Sheriff shall be as follows, effective January 1, 2023: 
  
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the 2023 for the Redwood County Sheriff shall be set 
as listed below per Minnesota Statute 387.20, Subd. 2: 
 
  County Sheriff    $ 115,500.00 
 

ELECTED OFFICIAL SALARY DISCUSSION – RECORDER 

• Recorder Anderson presented statistical data for the Recorders Office.  Presented her 2023 
proposed salary of $101,067.20.  A discussion was held with the Board. 

• On motion by Van Hee, second by Groebner, in a roll-call vote with Van Hee, Forkrud, 
Salfer, Wakefield and Groebner all voting aye, the Board adopted the following resolution: 
 

REDWOOD COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes require the County Board of Commissioners to annually 
set by resolution the salary of the County Recorder. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the 2023 salary for the Redwood County 
Recorder shall be effective January 1, 2023: 
 



Page 2 of 3       REDWOOD COUNTY, MINNESOTA  December 30, 2022 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the 2023 salary for the Redwood County Recorder 
shall be set as listed below per Minnesota Statute 386.015, Subd. 2: 

 
County Recorder   $ 100,000.00 

  

ELECTED OFFICIAL SALARY DISCUSSION – AUDITOR/TREASURER 

• Auditor-Treasurer Price presented an overview of duties performed and her 2023 salary 
request of $117,852.80.  Chair Salfer reviewed the Redwood County budgeting narrative of 
the County’s Accounting Policies and Procedure Handbook with Price and asked Price to 
identify the Redwood County Financial Accountant.  Price identified Guggisberg.  Chair 
Salfer directed the Auditor/Treasurer Department to perform the duties as stated in the 
Budgeting Narrative effective immediately.  Price agreed.  A discussion was held regarding 
the statutory duties of the Auditor/Treasurer and a salary recommendation. 

• On motion by Van Hee, second by Wakefield, in a roll-call vote with Van Hee, Forkrud, 
Salfer, Wakefield and Groebner all voting aye, the Board adopted the following resolution: 

 

REDWOOD COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes require the County Board of Commissioners to annually 

set by resolution the salary of the Auditor-Treasurer. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the 2023 salary for the Redwood County 
Auditor-Treasurer shall be effective January 1, 2023: 
  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the 2023 salary for the Redwood County Auditor-
Treasurer shall be set as listed below per Minnesota Statute 384.151 Subd. 1a and 385.373, Subd. 
1a: 
 
  County Auditor-Treasurer  $ 116,000.00  

 

ELECTED OFFICIAL SALARY DISCUSSION – COUNTY ATTORNEY 

• County Attorney Peterson presented an overview of the year in review of the Attorney’s 
Office and her 2023 salary request of $132,662.40.  A discussion was held with the Board. 

• On motion by Forkrud, second by Van Hee, in a roll-call vote with Van Hee, Forkrud, 
Salfer, Wakefield and Groebner all voting aye, the Board adopted the following resolution: 

 

REDWOOD COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes require the County Board of Commissioners to annually 

set by resolution the salary of the County Attorney. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the 2023 salary for the Redwood County 
Attorney shall be effective January 1, 2023: 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the 2023 salary for the Redwood County Attorney 
shall be set as listed below per Minnesota Statute 388.18, Subd. 1: 
 



Page 3 of 3       REDWOOD COUNTY, MINNESOTA  December 30, 2022 

  County Attorney   $   125,000.00 
 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 

• On motion by Wakefield, second by Forkrud, the Board voted unanimously to approve the 
Contracts for Prosecution Services with the City of Seaforth, Belview, Vesta and Delhi. 
 

ADMINISTRATION 

• On motion by Forkrud, second by Van Hee, in a roll-call vote with Forkrud, Van Hee, 
Salfer, Groebner and Wakefield all voting aye, the Board adopted the following resolution: 

 

REDWOOD COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes require the County Board of Commissioners to annually 

set by resolution the salary of the County Commissioners. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the 2023 salary for the Redwood County 
Commissioners shall be effective January 1, 2023. 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the salary of the Redwood County 
Commissioners be set for 2023 as listed below per Minnesota Statute 375.055: 
 
  County Commissioners  $   26,915.00 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a maximum per diem (per day) rate of $75.00 shall 
be granted to Redwood County Commissioners for service on any board, committee or 
commission that has been approved by the full board; for special meetings of the County Board; 
for attendance at conferences and education/training sessions; and for the performance of services 
as an individual Commissioner relating to the execution of the duties of the Office of County 
Commissioner. At the discretion of each Commissioner, a lesser per diem amount may be charged. 
 

 

ADJOURN 

There being no further business, Chair Salfer declared the meeting adjourned at 10:04 a.m.  
 
 

__________________________________ 
               Jim Salfer, Chair 
           Board of County Commissioners 
 
 
Attest: ________________________________ 
            Vicki Kletscher  

     County Administrator      



 
 

                    REDWOOD COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
 

                                                            January 5, 2023 
 
The Honorable Judge Patrick Rohland bestowed the Oath of Office to County Sheriff Jacobson and 
County Attorney Peterson on 1-3-23 as the 1-3-23 board meeting was postponed due to the weather. 
 
The Honorable Judge Patrick Rohland bestowed the Oath of Office at 8:15 a.m. to Commissioners 
Salfer and Groebner and County Recorder Anderson and County Auditor-Treasurer Price.  
 
The Board of County Commissioners met in regular session at 8:30 a.m. in Commissioner’s Board 
Room in the Government Center, Redwood Falls, Minnesota. 
 
Present for all or portions of the meeting were Commissioners Jim Salfer, Rick Wakefield, Bob Van 
Hee, Dennis Groebner and Dave Forkrud. Also present were Administrator Vicki Kletscher; Auditor-
Treasurer Jean Price; Highway Engineer Anthony Sellner; Human Resource Coordinator Peter Brown; 
Sheriff Jason Jacobson; Recorder Joyce Anderson; Judge Patrick Rohland; Technology Coordinator 
Paul Parsons and Veteran Service Officer Roger Zollner. 
 
Auditor-Treasurer Price called the Organizational Meeting to order asking for the Pledge of Allegiance 
to the Flag. 
 
Price then called for nominations for the Office of Chair of the Board for 2023.    Wakefield nominated 
Salfer.  After calling for additional nominations three times, Groebner seconded, and a unanimous vote 
was cast for Salfer as the Board Chair for 2023.  
  
Chair Salfer then called for nominations for the 2023 Vice-Chair of the County Board.   Forkrud 
nominated Wakefield.  After calling for additional nominations three times, Van Hee seconded and a 
unanimous vote was cast for Wakefield as the Board Vice-Chair for 2023. 

 

On motion by Wakefield, second by Groebner, the Board voted unanimously to approve the January 
5th revised meeting agenda. 
 
Chair Salfer asked the Board members to identify any areas for which they had a Conflict of Interest.  
None were identified. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

• On motion by Wakefield,  second by Groebner, the Board voted unanimously to approve the 
following: 
o December 27th  minutes 

o Payment of bills as follows: 

 
General Fund $         137,776.91 

Insurance Fund $                  25.98 

Road and Bridge Fund $                475.40 

Debt Service Fund $         244,900.00 

 
o Bills exceeding $2,000.00: Elan Corp. $18,950.74; Brown-Lyon-Redwood Drug Task 

Force $63,927.50; Tritech Software $16,527.93, $24,366.87; Schneider Geospatial 
$12,300.00; US Bank $244,900.00. 

 



Page 2 of 6                       REDWOOD COUNTY, MINNESOTA            January 5, 2023 
 

 

SHERIFF 

• On motion by Groebner, second by Forkrud, the Board voted unanimously to authorize a 
county credit card for Chief Deputy, Katelyn Torgerson. 

 

AUDITOR-TREASURER 

• On motion by Forkrud, second by Groebner, in a roll-call vote with Forkrud, Groebner, Salfer, 
Van Hee and Wakefield all voting aye, the Board adopted the following resolution: 

 
MN Statute 118A.02 subd. 1 (a) The governing body of each government entity shall designate, as a 
depository of its funds, one or more financial institutions. 
 

DESIGNATION OF DEPOSITORIES 

(for Deposit Accounts) 

 

DEPOSITOR:   County of Redwood  
     403 South Mill Street 
     Redwood Falls, MN  56283 
 
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS: Bremer Bank, NA 
     Bremer Wealth Management 
     Hometown Bank 
     Integrity Bank Plus 
     Minnwest Bank M.V. 
     U.S. Bank 
     Wanda State Bank 
     MAGIC Fund 
     Wells Fargo Advisors 
     Multi-Bank Securities 
     State Bank of Taunton    
    
 
I, the undersigned Administrator of the County named above, hereby certify that the County of 
Redwood is organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the state of Minnesota as a 
corporation for profit, with its principal address at 403 South Mill Street, Redwood Falls, MN  56283. 
 
Account Holder: County of Redwood is the complete and correct name of the Account Holder. 
 
I FURTHER CERTIFY that at a meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the County of Redwood, 
duly and regularly called and held on January 5, 2023, at which a quorum was present and voting, the 
following resolutions were adopted: 
 
RESOLVED, that the Financial Institutions named above at any one or more of its offices or branches, 
be and it hereby is designated as a depository for the funds of the County, which may be withdrawn on 
checks, drafts, advices of debit, notes or other orders for the payment of monies bearing the following 
appropriate number of signatures: Any one (1) of the following named officers or employees of the 
County (“Agents”), whose actual signatures are shown below: 
 
Jean Price       Vicki Kletscher    
Authorized Signer Printed Name  Authorized Signer Printed Name 
 



Page 3 of 6                       REDWOOD COUNTY, MINNESOTA            January 5, 2023 
 
And that the Financial Institution shall be and is authorized to honor and pay the same whether or not 
they are payable to bearer or to the individual order of any Agent or Agent’s signing the same. 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Financial Institution is hereby directed to accept and pay without 
further inquiry any item drawn against any of the County’s accounts with the Financial Institution 
bearing the signature or signatures of Agents, as authorized above or otherwise even though drawn or 
endorsed to the order of any Agent signing or tendered by such Agent for cashing or in payment of the 
individual obligation of such Agent or for deposit to the Agent’s personal account, and the Financial 
Institution shall not be required or be under any obligation to inquire as to the circumstances of the 
issue or use of any item signed in accordance with the resolutions contained herein, or the application 
or disposition of such item or the proceeds of the item. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that any one of such Agents is authorized to endorse all checks, drafts, 
notes and other items payable to or owned by Redwood County for deposit with the Financial 
Institution, or for collection or discount by the Financial Institution; and to accept drafts and other 
items payable at the Financial Institution.  
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that the above named agents are authorized and empowered to execute 
such other agreements, including, but not limited to, special depository agreements and arrangements 
regarding the manner, conditions, or purposes for which funds, checks, or items of the County may be 
deposited, collected, or withdrawn and to perform such other acts as they deem reasonably necessary 
to carry out the provisions of these resolutions. The other agreements and other acts may not be 
contrary to the provisions contained in this Resolution. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that the authority hereby conferred upon the above named Agents shall be 
and remain in full force and effect until written notice of any amendment or revocation thereof shall 
have been delivered to and received by the Financial Institution at each location where an account is 
maintained. Financial Institution shall be indemnified and held harmless from any loss suffered or any 
liability incurred by it in continuing to act in accordance with this resolution. Any such notice shall not 
affect any items in process at the time notice is given. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that the persons named above occupy the positions set forth opposite their 
respective names and signatures; that the foregoing Resolutions now stand of record on the books of 
Redwood County; that they are in full force and effect and have not been modified in any manner 
whatsoever. 
 

BOARD CHAIR 

• On motion by Groebner, second by Van Hee, the Board voted unanimously to authorize the 
Board Chair to act on behalf of Redwood County in case of emergencies. 

• On motion by Van Hee, second by Groebner, the Board voted unanimously to adopt Roberts 
Rules of Order as the County Board meeting procedural guide. 

 

ROAD AND BRIDGE 

• No Road and Bridge bills were brought for Board approval. 

• On motion by Groebner, second by Van Hee, the Board voted unanimously to authorize the 
Highway Engineer to pay miscellaneous permit fees in 2023. 

• On a motion by Forkrud, second by Groebner, in a roll-call vote with Salfer, Groebner, 
Forkrud, Wakefield and Van Hee, all voting aye, the Board adopted the following resolution: 

 

 

 



Page 4 of 6                       REDWOOD COUNTY, MINNESOTA            January 5, 2023 
 

Resolution 

Use Website Advertisement for Transportation Project Bids 

 

WHEREAS, Minn. Statute #331A.12, allows a county to use its website as publication for 
transportation contracts;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the County of Redwood designates publication for 
transportation contracts on the County website, https://redwoodcounty-mn.us/, in place of or in 
addition to any other required form of publication, 
 
FURTHERMORE, each year after designating publication on the County website, the County of 
Redwood must publish in a qualified newspaper in the jurisdiction and on the website notice that the 
County will publish any advertisements for bids on its website, 
 
FURTHERMORE, that any dissemination by alternative means must be in substantially the same 
format and for the same period of time as a publication would otherwise be required under Minn. 
Statute #331A.12 Subd.3, 
 
FURTHERMORE, a political subdivision that publishes notice on its website must ensure that a 
permanent record of publication is maintained in a form accessible by the public per Statute #331A.12 
Subd.4. 
 
This Resolution shall be effective immediately and without publication. 
 

• On motion by Van Hee, second by Wakefield, the Board voted unanimously to approve the Out 
of State Travel request for Matt Guetter to attend the ATSSA Northland “How to” workshop in 
Fargo, ND at a cost of $596.14 

• On motion by Van Hee, second by Wakefield, the Board voted unanimously to approve the 
purchase of two tandem axle snowplow pup trailers from Towmaster in the amount of 
$99,970.00. 

Other Bids Received: 

Company Bid Amount 

Towmaster $  99,970.00 

Crysteel $107,094.00 

 

• On motion by Forkrud, second by Van Hee, the Board voted unanimously that the inventory, 
maintenance and replacement of township signs will continue to be the responsibility of each 
township and Redwood County Highway Department will provide billable support in the 
maintenance and replacement of township signs at the discretion of the Highway Department. 

 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

• The Southwest Minnesota Housing Partnership Contract for CDBG Broadband Grant 
Admission Services was removed from the Agenda. 

 

TECHNOLOGY 

• On motion by Groebner, second by Wakefield, the Board voted unanimously to approve the 
Morris Electronics Contract Renewal in the amount of $14,400.00/year. 

 

 

 

https://redwoodcounty-mn.us/


Page 5 of 6                       REDWOOD COUNTY, MINNESOTA            January 5, 2023 
 

VETERAN SERVICE OFFICER 

• On motion by Forkrud, second by Wakefield, the Board voted unanimously to award the copier 
lease to Loffler on State Contract #189667 in the amount of $72.03/month for five years. 

Other Bids Received 

Marco $121.97 per month 

Loffler $72.03 per month 

Coordinated Business System $105.19 per month 

 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 

• On motion by Groebner, second by Wakefield, the Board voted unanimously to approve the 
Contract for Prosecution Services with the Cities of Morgan, Sanborn, and Clements. 

 

ADMINISTRATOR 

• On motion by Forkrud, second by Van Hee, the Board voted unanimously to award all legal 
newspaper publications to the Redwood Gazette in the amount of $11.83 per column inch.  No 
other bids were received. 

• On motion by Wakefield, second by Groebner, in a roll-call vote with Wakefield, Groebner, 
Salfer, Forkrud, and Van Hee all voting aye, the Board adopted the following resolution: 

 
RESOLVED, THAT THE Redwood Gazette, a legal newspaper printed and published in the City of 
Redwood Falls, Redwood County, Minnesota, be and the same is hereby designated by the Board of 
County Commissioners of said Redwood County, Minnesota as the newspaper in which the notice and 
list of real estate remaining delinquent on the first working day of January 2023 shall be published. 
 
 RESOLVED FURTHER, THAT THE said Redwood County, Minnesota enter into a contract 
with the Redwood Gazette to print and publish as provided by law that said list of delinquent taxes at a 
compensation rate allowed by Section 331A of the Statutes of the State of Minnesota. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THE Redwood Gazette be named the official 
newspaper of the County for the insertion of the annual financial statement and all printing of 
Commissioners’ proceedings for 2022 for legal printing rates as prescribed by State Law. 

 

• On motion by Forkrud, second by Van Hee, the Board voted unanimously to approve the 
Service Contract with Cherry Road Technologies, O/B/O Redwood Gazette. 

• On motion by Van Hee, second by Wakefield, the Board voted unanimously to approve the 
2023 County Fee Schedule. 

• On motion by Groebner, second by Van Hee, the Board voted unanimously to approve the 
2023 Redwood County Reimbursement Policy. 

• On motion by Forkrud, second by Groebner, the Board voted unanimously to approve the 
University of Minnesota Use Agreement. 

• On motion by Forkrud, second by Wakefield, in a 4-1 vote with Groebner voting nay, the 
Board approved to pay request from Redwood-Renville Regional Solid Waste Authority to 
reimburse Renville County in the amount of $1,950.00 from RRRSWA funds. 

 
Personnel 

• On motion by Van Hee, second by Wakefield, the Board voted unanimously to hire Mitchell 
Serbus as full-time Correctional Officer on the 2023 Correctional Officer LELS Non-Licensed 
Officer Salary Schedule at Step 1, $22.99/hour effective January 9, 2023. 



Page 6 of 6                       REDWOOD COUNTY, MINNESOTA            January 5, 2023 
 

• On motion by Salfer, second by Van Hee, the Board voted unanimously to approve the 
Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Establishment of Jail Sergeants Position in the 
Non-Licensed Officers Bargaining Unit. 

• On motion by Van Hee, second by Wakefield, the Board voted unanimously to promote Mike 
Ingebretson from full-time Correctional Officer to full-time Jail Sergeant with a $96.15 per pay 
period stipend effective January 9, 2023 for the Jail Sergeant duties. 

• On motion by Wakefield, second by Forkrud, the Board voted unanimously to promote Naomi 
Baune from full-time Correctional Officer to full-time Jail Sergeant with a $96.15 per pay 
period stipend effective January 9, 2023 for the Jail Sergeant duties. 
 

BOARD CHAIR 

• The Board reviewed the Committee Appointments for 2023 and Chair Salfer made 
appointments as presented. 

• Chair Salfer appointed Commissioner Wakefield to the Opioid Settlement Fund Committee. 
 
Commissioner Groebner exited the meeting at 9:45 a.m. 
 

 

ADJOURN 

• There being no further business, Chair Salfer declared the meeting adjourned at 9:51 a.m.  
 

__________________________________ 
                                                                               Jim Salfer, Chair 

Board of County Commissioners 
Attest: ____________________________ 
      Vicki Kletscher 
            County Administrator 



Meals Payable Salaries Payable Accounts Payable Credit Card

GENERAL FUND $1,120.00 $347,255.41

BUILDING FUND $7,268.11

DITCH FUND $127,382.97

SOLID WASTE FUND $225.00 $2,996.00

SOIL & WATER $24,870.60

FORFEITED TAX SALE

DEBT SERVICE FUND

HEALTH FUND .

PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE

R & B FUND $118,244.00

STATE REVENUE $230.00

TAX & PENALTY

INSURANCE $165.64

TOTALS $0.00 $1,345.00 $628,412.73 $0.00 MEALS PAYABLE  182-3

EMPLOYEE # REVENUE DITCH SOLID WASTE INSURANCE

of 15-611 22-391
   

SALARIES PAYABLE

REVENUE DITCH SOLID WASTE date

(PERA YES) 187-0 15-611-182-0 22-391-188-0
(PERA NO) 187-3 15-611-190-3 22-391-188-3

David Forkrud Y 400.00$                   50.00$                     12.13

#120 N

DennisGroebner Y 485.00$                   175.00$                   11.8,11.28.12.13

#118 N  

Robert VanHee Y
#119 N

Jim Salfer Y 235.00$                   
#117 N

Rick Wakefiled Y

N TOTALS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Jean Price          ext 01-602 Y

#316 N

TOTALS 1,120.00$                -$                         225.00$                   

Board of County Commissioners

COMMISSIONERS ABSTRACT: January 17, 2023

APPROVED AND ORDERED PAID BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF

REDWOOD COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ON THIS 17TH DAY OF JANUARY 2023.

Chairperson



COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES

RACHELW
 9:49AM1/12/23

Y

N

D

2

N

1

Audit List for Board
Page 1

Print List in Order By:

Explode Dist. Formulas?:

Paid on Behalf Of Name

on Audit List?:

Type of Audit List:

Save Report Options?:

D - Detailed Audit List

S - Condensed Audit List


1 - Fund (Page Break by Fund)

2 - Department (Totals by Dept)

3 - Vendor Number

4 - Vendor Name


Page Break By: 1 - Page Break by Fund

2 - Page Break by Dept

***  Redwood County  ***



OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES
 9:49AM1/12/23

RACHELW

GENERAL

Copyright 2010-2022 Integrated Financial Systems

1

COMMISSIONERSDEPT

26510

01-002-000-0000-6331 210.00 2022 DEC - MILEAGE MILEAGE 32 N

12/04/2022 12/22/2022

01-002-000-0000-6331 20.00 2022 DEC - MILEAGE MILEAGE 33 N

12/30/2022 12/30/2022

30548

01-002-000-0000-6331 161.25 2022 NOV - MILEAGE MILEAGE 37 N

11/01/2022 11/30/2022

01-002-000-0000-6331 191.25 2022 DEC - MILEAGE MILEAGE 38 N

12/01/2022 12/30/2022

55395

01-002-000-0000-6401 172.62 01/25 KONICA LEASE 33146737 46 N

80087

01-002-000-0000-6331 215.63 2022 DEC - MILEAGE MILEAGE 79 N

12/04/2022 12/27/2022

83331

01-002-000-0000-6242 38.00 2023 SUBSCRIPTION - ADMIN STMT DUES & REGISTRATION FEES 85 Y

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

LAW LIBRARYDEPT

57660

01-023-000-0000-6899 474.00 CLLP SUBSCRIPTION 23-16 MISCELLANEOUS 53 N

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

2

FORKRUD/DAVID

FORKRUD/DAVID 230.00  226510

GROEBNER/DENNIS

GROEBNER/DENNIS 352.50  230548

MARCO INC - TEXAS

MARCO INC - TEXAS 172.62  155395

SALFER/JIM

SALFER/JIM 215.63  180087

STANDARD-GAZETTE & MESSENGER

STANDARD-GAZETTE & MESSENGER 38.00  183331

2 COMMISSIONERS1,008.75

23

MINNESOTA STATE LAW LIBRARY

MINNESOTA STATE LAW LIBRARY 474.00  157660

Page 2
Audit List for Board

Account/Formula Description                                             Rpt Invoice #Warrant DescriptionVendor Name 1099

Paid On Bhf #Accr Amount On Behalf of NameNo. Service Dates

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

5 Vendors 7 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Transactions

Account/Formula

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

***  Redwood County  ***



MN COUNTIES INTERGOVERNMENTAL TRUST

MN COUNTIES INTERGOVERNMENTAL TRUST

COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES
 9:49AM1/12/23

RACHELW

GENERAL

Copyright 2010-2022 Integrated Financial Systems

1

COUNTY ADMINISTRATIONDEPT

3402

01-031-000-0000-6242 12,708.00 2023 AMC DUES 63160 DUES & REGISTRATION FEES 9 N

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

01-031-000-0000-6242 2,300.00 2023 MRC DUES 63995 DUES & REGISTRATION FEES 6 N

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

11832

01-031-000-0000-6230 283.92 BUDGET SUMMARY 57992 PRINTING & PUBLISHING 18 N

12/31/2022 12/31/2022

13055

01-031-000-0000-6230 172.85 12/27 BOARD MINUTES 6C6C1177-0028 PRINTING & PUBLISHING 19 N

01/06/2023 01/06/2023

01-031-000-0000-6230 79.68 RESOLUTION 6C6C1177-0029 PRINTING & PUBLISHING 20 N

01/06/2023 01/06/2023

43191

01-031-000-0000-6266 60.00 2022 NOV - BW 1987100 COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEYS 42 Y

11/06/2022 11/17/2022

01-031-000-0000-6266 30.00 2022 NOV - RB 1987101 COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEYS 43 Y

11/08/2022 11/08/2022

57940

01-031-000-0000-6351 69,000.00 2023 PROP/CASUALTY/WORK COMP 19493R INSURANCE 110 N

01/01/2023 01/01/2024

01-031-000-2804-6351 113,378.00 2023 PROP/CASUALTY/WORK COMP 19493R INSURANCE-PROPERTY & LIABILITY 111 N

01/01/2023 01/01/2024

01-031-000-2804-6351 3,085.00 WORK COMP AUDIT WCAUDIT1379 INSURANCE-PROPERTY & LIABILITY 54 N

12/01/2022 12/01/2022

60478

23 LAW LIBRARY474.00

31

ASSN OF MN COUNTIES

ASSN OF MN COUNTIES 15,008.00  23402

CHERRYROAD MEDIA

CHERRYROAD MEDIA 283.92  111832

COLUMN SOFTWARE PBC

COLUMN SOFTWARE PBC 252.53  213055

JONES LAW OFFICE

JONES LAW OFFICE 90.00  243191

185,463.00  357940

NACO

Page 3
Audit List for Board

Account/Formula Description                                             Rpt Invoice #Warrant DescriptionVendor Name 1099

Paid On Bhf #Accr Amount On Behalf of NameNo. Service Dates

1 Vendors 1 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Account/Formula

AP

AP

AP

DTG

***  Redwood County  ***



OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES
 9:49AM1/12/23

RACHELW

GENERAL

Copyright 2010-2022 Integrated Financial Systems

1

01-031-000-0000-6242 450.00 2023 MEMBERSHIP DUES 202215707 DUES & REGISTRATION FEES 57 N

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

74883

01-031-000-0000-6266 99.00 2022 NOV - WJT 82661 COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEYS 63 Y

11/02/2022 11/18/2022

76200

01-031-000-0000-6564 287.80 2022 DEC - FUEL CO CARS COUNTY VEHICLE EXPENSE 66 N

12/01/2022 12/31/2022

79197

01-031-000-0000-6266 630.00 2022 DEC - RC 16940.16939 COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEYS 75 Y

12/02/2022 12/30/2022

80071

01-031-000-0000-6274 8,444.42 2023 SAFETY TRAINING 3247 ACTUARIAL STUDY/SAFEASSURE 78 N

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

81350

01-031-000-0000-6816 60.00 COFFEE 5RWDCO010623 CONTINGENCIES 80 N

01/06/2023 01/06/2023

AUDITOR-TREASURERDEPT

64868

01-041-000-0000-6401 11.94 CALENDAR REFILLS 491719-01&00 60 N

12/19/2022 12/19/2022

NACO 450.00  160478

QUARNSTROM & DOERING PA

QUARNSTROM & DOERING PA 99.00  174883

REDWOOD COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT

REDWOOD COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT 287.80  176200

RUNCHEY LOUWAGIE & WELLMAN PLLP

RUNCHEY LOUWAGIE & WELLMAN PLLP 630.00  179197

SAFEASSURE CONSULTANTS INC

SAFEASSURE CONSULTANTS INC 8,444.42  180071

SERVICE ENTERPRISES INC

SERVICE ENTERPRISES INC 60.00  181350

31 COUNTY ADMINISTRATION211,068.67

41

ONE OFFICE SOLUTION

ONE OFFICE SOLUTION 11.94  164868

Page 4
Audit List for Board

Account/Formula Description                                             Rpt Invoice #Warrant DescriptionVendor Name 1099

Paid On Bhf #Accr Amount On Behalf of NameNo. Service Dates

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

11 Vendors 16 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Transactions

Account/Formula

AP

DTF

AP

AP

***  Redwood County  ***



OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES
 9:49AM1/12/23

RACHELW

GENERAL

Copyright 2010-2022 Integrated Financial Systems

1

LICENSE CENTERDEPT

55591

01-043-000-0000-6242 330.00 2023 MEMBERSHIP DUES 021 DUES & REGISTRATION FEES 52 N

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

57310

01-043-000-0000-6401 35.00 TITLE PAPER SOI-106848 101 N

09/20/2022 09/20/2022

ADMINISTRATORDEPT

3402

01-061-000-0000-6242 771.00 2023 MACA DUES 482 DUES & REGISTRATION FEES 8 N

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

55395

01-061-000-0000-6401 258.91 01/25 KONICA LEASE 33146737 47 N

COMPUTERDEPT

69713

01-064-000-0000-6331 40.62 MILEAGE @ HWY SHOPS MILEAGE 61 N

12/29/2022 12/29/2022

ATTORNEYDEPT

13360

01-091-000-0000-6271 65.00 SUBPOENA SERVICE 22120735 VICTIM/WITNESS FEES 95 N

41 AUDITOR-TREASURER11.94

43

MDRA

MDRA 330.00  155591

MINNCOR INDUSTRIES

MINNCOR INDUSTRIES 35.00  157310

43 LICENSE CENTER365.00

61

ASSN OF MN COUNTIES

ASSN OF MN COUNTIES 771.00  13402

MARCO INC - TEXAS

MARCO INC - TEXAS 258.91  155395

61 ADMINISTRATOR1,029.91

64

PARSONS/PAUL

PARSONS/PAUL 40.62  169713

64 COMPUTER40.62

91

COUNTY OF COTTONWOOD

Page 5
Audit List for Board

Account/Formula Description                                             Rpt Invoice #Warrant DescriptionVendor Name 1099

Paid On Bhf #Accr Amount On Behalf of NameNo. Service Dates

1 Vendors 1 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Transactions

Transactions

2 Vendors 2 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Transactions

Transactions

2 Vendors 2 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Transactions

1 Vendors 1 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Account/Formula

AP

AP

DTG

***  Redwood County  ***



OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES
 9:49AM1/12/23

RACHELW

GENERAL

Copyright 2010-2022 Integrated Financial Systems

1

12/30/2022 12/30/2022

13562

01-091-000-0000-6269 70.00 CHILD SUPPORT SERVICE 2022-5157 CHILD SUPPORT FEES 96 N

12/21/2022 12/21/2022

14400

01-091-000-0000-6271 91.25 BOTTLED WATER DELIVERY 170-0100322-7 VICTIM/WITNESS FEES 97 N

12/31/2022 12/31/2022

37640

01-091-000-0000-6401 33.49 BATTS, FT 4049263 99 N

01/03/2023 01/03/2023

01-091-000-0000-6401 62.89 BATTS, MOUSE PAD, DESK PAD IN4048420 98 N

12/30/2022 12/30/2022

57929

01-091-000-0000-6242 3,796.00 2023 MCAA DUES 22204 DUES & REGISTRATION FEES 102 N

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

76172

01-091-000-0000-6242 200.00 MEMBERSHIP DUES X 4 STMT DUES & REGISTRATION FEES 103 N

01/10/2023 01/10/2023

COURTHOUSE MAINTENANCEDEPT

20730

01-118-000-0000-6259 218.90 RO FILTERS - GSB 102695 UTILITIES - HS & PHS 22 N

12/29/2022 12/29/2022

01-118-000-0000-6259 189.00 RO FILTERS - GSB 102870 UTILITIES - HS & PHS 23 N

01/04/2023 01/04/2023

01-118-000-0000-6251 73.65 SOFTENER SALT - JC 102943 UTILITIES - COURTHOUSE/JC 24 N

COUNTY OF COTTONWOOD 65.00  113360

COUNTY OF LYON - SHERIFF

COUNTY OF LYON - SHERIFF 70.00  113562

CULLIGAN

CULLIGAN 91.25  114400

INNOVATIVE SOLUTIONS LLC

INNOVATIVE SOLUTIONS LLC 96.38  237640

MN COUNTY ATTORNEYS ASSN

MN COUNTY ATTORNEYS ASSN 3,796.00  157929

REDWOOD COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION

REDWOOD COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION 200.00  176172

91 ATTORNEY4,318.63

118

ECOWATER SYSTEMS

Page 6
Audit List for Board

Account/Formula Description                                             Rpt Invoice #Warrant DescriptionVendor Name 1099

Paid On Bhf #Accr Amount On Behalf of NameNo. Service Dates

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

6 Vendors 7 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Account/Formula

DTG

AP

AP

AP

***  Redwood County  ***



EQUIPMENT & BUILDING MAINTENANCE

EQUIPMENT & BUILDING MAINTENANCE

EQUIPMENT & BUILDING MAINTENANCE

EQUIPMENT & BUILDING MAINTENANCE

EQUIPMENT & BUILDING MAINTENANCE

COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES
 9:49AM1/12/23

RACHELW

GENERAL

Copyright 2010-2022 Integrated Financial Systems

1

01/06/2023 01/06/2023

21500

01-118-000-0000-6301 159.53 REPAIRS - PH RTU EXHAUST MOTOR 134129 27 N

12/29/2022 12/29/2022

01-118-000-0000-6301 110.78 REPAIRS - LEC PUMP 134178 26 N

01/06/2023 01/06/2023

24794

01-118-000-0000-6301 332.28 FURNANCE FILTERS 109313 31 N

10/12/2022 10/12/2022

30323

01-118-000-0000-6251 2.70 2022 DEC - EMAIL LOCATES 2121362 UTILITIES - COURTHOUSE/JC 35 N

12/31/2022 12/31/2022

76200

01-118-000-0000-6564 834.49 2022 DEC - FUEL MAINT COUNTY VEHICLE EXPENSE 65 N

12/01/2022 12/31/2022

79500

01-118-000-0000-6301 612.14 MAT, WASHER FLUID, SOFTENER SA 33880 76 N

12/02/2022 12/30/2022

99290

01-118-000-0000-6301 32.35 SKID DOOR SWITCH SI1000277561 92 N

01/05/2023 01/05/2023

SHERIFFDEPT

3783

ECOWATER SYSTEMS 481.55  320730

ELECTRIC MOTOR CO

ELECTRIC MOTOR CO 270.31  221500

FILTRATION SYSTEMS INC

FILTRATION SYSTEMS INC 332.28  124794

GOPHER STATE ONE CALL

GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 2.70  130323

REDWOOD COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT

REDWOOD COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT 834.49  176200

RUNNINGS FARM & FLEET

RUNNINGS FARM & FLEET 612.14  179500

ZIEGLER INC

ZIEGLER INC 32.35  199290

118 COURTHOUSE MAINTENANCE2,565.82

201

AT-SCENE LLC

Page 7
Audit List for Board

Account/Formula Description                                             Rpt Invoice #Warrant DescriptionVendor Name 1099

Paid On Bhf #Accr Amount On Behalf of NameNo. Service Dates

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

7 Vendors 10 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Account/Formula

AP

AP

AP

DTF

AP

***  Redwood County  ***



REDWOO-CS-44927

COAST TO COAST COMPUTER PRODUCTS

COAST TO COAST COMPUTER PRODUCTS

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

BOARDING PRISONER MEDICAL EXPENSE

BOARDING PRISONER MEDICAL EXPENSE

BOARDING PRISONER MEDICAL EXPENSE

BOARDING PRISONER MEDICAL EXPENSE

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

EQUIPMENT & BUILDING MAINTENANCE

COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES
 9:49AM1/12/23

RACHELW

GENERAL

Copyright 2010-2022 Integrated Financial Systems

1

01-201-000-0000-6401 3,350.00 2023 SUBSCRIPTION ICRIME 1471 10 Y

01/01/2023 01/01/2024

10413

01-201-000-0000-6355 128.30 INMATE MEDICAL - DSH STMT 14 6

06/09/2022 06/09/2022

01-201-000-0000-6355 50.38 INMATE MEDICAL - DSH STMT 15 6

06/09/2022 06/09/2022

01-201-000-0000-6355 93.43 INMATE MEDICAL - DKM STMT 16 6

12/15/2022 12/15/2022

01-201-000-0000-6355 679.52 INMATE MEDICAL - ERG STMT 93 6

12/25/2022 12/25/2022

11415

01-201-000-0000-6401 1,428.00 SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTION 17 N

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

13149

01-201-000-0000-6401 387.00 TONER A2474283 94 N

11/10/2022 11/10/2022

20730

01-201-000-0000-6301 95.85 SOFTENER SALT - LEC 102329 25 N

12/16/2022 12/16/2022

22348

01-201-000-0000-6179 740.48 PANTS, SHIRTS, EMBLEM, POUCH CLOTHING ALLOWANCE 28 N

09/22/2022 12/29/2022

22752

01-201-000-0000-6179 264.67 POUCH, TOURNIQUETS, FLASHLIGHT CLOTHING ALLOWANCE 29 N

12/30/2022 12/30/2022

AT-SCENE LLC 3,350.00  13783

CENTRACARE HEALTH SYSTEM

CENTRACARE HEALTH SYSTEM 951.63  410413

CERTIFIED CRIME FIGHTER

CERTIFIED CRIME FIGHTER 1,428.00  111415

387.00  113149

ECOWATER SYSTEMS

ECOWATER SYSTEMS 95.85  120730

ENGELS/JACK

ENGELS/JACK 740.48  122348

ESSER/ALEX

Page 8
Audit List for Board

Account/Formula Description                                             Rpt Invoice #Warrant DescriptionVendor Name 1099

Paid On Bhf #Accr Amount On Behalf of NameNo. Service Dates

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Account/Formula

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

***  Redwood County  ***



MARTIN-MCALLISTER CONSULTING PSYCHOLOGIS

MARTIN-MCALLISTER CONSULTING PSYCHOLOGIS

PRE-EMPLOYMENT/MEDICAL EXPENSE

EQUIPMENT & BUILDING MAINTENANCE

EQUIPMENT & BUILDING MAINTENANCE

PRE-EMPLOYMENT/MEDICAL EXPENSE

COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES
 9:49AM1/12/23

RACHELW

GENERAL

Copyright 2010-2022 Integrated Financial Systems

1

27495

01-201-000-0000-6365 757.06 NEW HIRE UNIFORMS - TR 023035573 34 N

12/20/2022 12/20/2022

39526

01-201-000-0000-6301 45.00 SEED DRILLING STMT 39 N

11/05/2022 11/05/2022

40165

01-201-000-0000-6179 127.08 BADGE CLOTHING ALLOWANCE 40 N

01/05/2023 01/05/2023

01-201-000-0000-6179 21.46 NAME TAG CLOTHING ALLOWANCE 41 N

01/03/2023 01/03/2023

55005

01-201-000-0000-6301 258.00 GRASS SEED - GUN RANGE 1001 45 Y

12/29/2022 12/29/2022

55685

01-201-000-0000-6365 600.00 PUBLIC SAFETY ASSMT - TR 15076 100 Y

12/31/2022 12/31/2022

24590

01-201-000-0000-6343 75.00 TOW VEHICLE #10834 027812 PATROL CAR LEASE 58 N

12/20/2022 12/20/2022

76200

01-201-000-0000-6343 4,009.41 2022 DEC - FUEL SHERIFF PATROL CAR LEASE 68 N

12/01/2022 12/31/2022

01-201-000-0000-6343 183.33 2023 JAN - FUEL SHERIFF PATROL CAR LEASE 70 N

01/01/2023 01/02/2023

ESSER/ALEX 264.67  122752

GALLS

GALLS 757.06  127495

JACK LARSON SEEDS INC

JACK LARSON SEEDS INC 45.00  139526

JACOBSON/JASON

JACOBSON/JASON 148.54  240165

M & M FARMS LLP

M & M FARMS LLP 258.00  155005

600.00  155685

NELSONS SALVAGE & TOWING INC

NELSONS SALVAGE & TOWING INC 75.00  124590

REDWOOD COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT

Page 9
Audit List for Board

Account/Formula Description                                             Rpt Invoice #Warrant DescriptionVendor Name 1099

Paid On Bhf #Accr Amount On Behalf of NameNo. Service Dates

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Account/Formula

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

DTF

***  Redwood County  ***



TRANSUNION RISK AND ALTERNATIVE DATA SOL

TRANSUNION RISK AND ALTERNATIVE DATA SOL

BOARDING PRISONER MEDICAL EXPENSE

BOARDING PRISONER MEAL EXPENSE

COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES
 9:49AM1/12/23

RACHELW

GENERAL

Copyright 2010-2022 Integrated Financial Systems

1

01-201-000-0000-6565 394.80 2022 DEC - FUEL SHERIFF PATROL CAR EXPENSES-OWNED 69 N

12/01/2022 12/31/2022

76758

01-201-000-0000-6343 811.20 TIRES - SQD #11575 3594 PATROL CAR LEASE 73 N

01/04/2023 01/04/2023

80594

01-201-000-0000-6179 210.01 GLOVES, BOOTS, FLASHLIGHT CLOTHING ALLOWANCE 133 N

11/18/2022 12/29/2022

84150

01-201-000-0000-6355 174.95 2022 DEC - INMATE MEDICAL 020368 104 N

12/01/2022 12/31/2022

86350

01-201-000-0000-6356 9,420.97 2022 DEC - INMATE MEALS 427 88 N

12/01/2022 12/31/2022

88475

01-201-000-0000-6404 75.00 2022 DEC - RISK DATA 5434242022121 INVESTIGATION EXPENSES 90 Y

12/01/2022 12/31/2022

91492

01-201-000-0000-6343 177.39 2022 DEC - FUEL 8691019802252 PATROL CAR LEASE 91 N

12/01/2022 12/31/2022

E-911 SYSTEMDEPT

1949

01-202-000-2756-6406 15,516.00 2023 RADIO MAINTENANCE 18978 DISPATCH EXPENSES 3 N

REDWOOD COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT 4,587.54  376200

REDWOOD TIRE SERVICE INC

REDWOOD TIRE SERVICE INC 811.20  176758

SCHROEDER/ANDREW

SCHROEDER/ANDREW 210.01  180594

SWARD-KEMP SNYDER DRUG

SWARD-KEMP SNYDER DRUG 174.95  184150

TERSTEEGS HOLIDAY MARKET

TERSTEEGS HOLIDAY MARKET 9,420.97  186350

75.00  188475

VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS INC

VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS INC 177.39  191492

201 SHERIFF24,558.29

202

ALPHA WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS CO

Page 10
Audit List for Board

Account/Formula Description                                             Rpt Invoice #Warrant DescriptionVendor Name 1099

Paid On Bhf #Accr Amount On Behalf of NameNo. Service Dates

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

20 Vendors 26 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Account/Formula

DTF

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

***  Redwood County  ***



MARTHALER AUTOMOTIVE OF REDWOOD FALLS IN

MARTHALER AUTOMOTIVE OF REDWOOD FALLS IN

COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES
 9:49AM1/12/23

RACHELW

GENERAL

Copyright 2010-2022 Integrated Financial Systems

1

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

01-202-000-2756-6406 16,779.00 2023 CONSOLE MAINTENANCE 18979 DISPATCH EXPENSES 2 N

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

OTHER PUBLIC SAFETYDEPT

45746

01-249-000-2815-6802 40.00 CANTEEN SUPPLIES 1673124 CANTEEN EXPENSES 44 Y

12/30/2022 12/30/2022

RESTORATIVE JUSTICEDEPT

55640

01-255-000-2863-6401 106.25 01/04 HPI LEASE 10739346 RESTORATIVE JUSTICE EXPENSES 48 N

71350

01-255-000-2863-6401 311.16 2022 NOV - FOOD FOR CIRCLE 2442 RESTORATIVE JUSTICE EXPENSES 62 N

11/15/2022 11/23/2022

86350

01-255-000-2863-6401 372.88 2022 DEC - FOOD FOR CIRCLE 457 RESTORATIVE JUSTICE EXPENSES 89 N

12/02/2022 12/31/2022

SENTENCE TO SERVEDEPT

55681

01-270-000-0000-6565 245.17 TRAILER TIRES 64708 TRAVEL/VEHICLE 49 N

12/29/2022 12/29/2022

ALPHA WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS CO 32,295.00  21949

202 E-911 SYSTEM32,295.00

249

KEEFE SUPPLY COMPANY

KEEFE SUPPLY COMPANY 40.00  145746

249 OTHER PUBLIC SAFETY40.00

255

MARCO TECHNOLOGIES LLC - MN

MARCO TECHNOLOGIES LLC - MN 106.25  155640

PIZZA RANCH

PIZZA RANCH 311.16  171350

TERSTEEGS HOLIDAY MARKET

TERSTEEGS HOLIDAY MARKET 372.88  186350

255 RESTORATIVE JUSTICE790.29

270

245.17  155681

Page 11
Audit List for Board

Account/Formula Description                                             Rpt Invoice #Warrant DescriptionVendor Name 1099

Paid On Bhf #Accr Amount On Behalf of NameNo. Service Dates

Transactions

1 Vendors 2 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Transactions

1 Vendors 1 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

3 Vendors 3 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Transactions

Account/Formula

AP

AP

AP

AP

***  Redwood County  ***



REGION V EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT ASSN

REGION V EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT ASSN

EQUIPMENT & BUILDING MAINTENANCE

COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES
 9:49AM1/12/23

RACHELW

GENERAL

Copyright 2010-2022 Integrated Financial Systems

1

76200

01-270-000-0000-6565 190.31 2022 DEC - FUEL STS TRAVEL/VEHICLE 71 N

12/01/2022 12/31/2022

76916

01-270-000-0000-6242 15.00 2023 MEMBERSHIP STMT DUES & REGISTRATION - TRAINING 74 N

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

PARKSDEPT

1949

01-520-000-0000-6301 192.00 2023 RADIO MAINTENANCE 18976 1 N

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

29661

01-520-000-0000-6242 500.00 2023 MEMBERSHIP STMT DUES & REGISTRATION FEES 36 Y

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

55435

01-520-000-0000-6358 50.00 12/01 PARKS & TRAILS MTG PARK DEVELOPMENT 50 Y

12/01/2022 12/01/2022

AGRICULTURAL INSPECTIONDEPT

15725

01-601-000-0000-6242 50.00 2023 MEMBERSHIP DUES STMT DUES & REGISTRATION FEES 21 N

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

57550

01-601-000-0000-6242 135.00 REG @ PESTICIDE RECERT- MM STMT DUES & REGISTRATION FEES 56 N

REDWOOD COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT

REDWOOD COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT 190.31  176200

15.00  176916

270 SENTENCE TO SERVE450.48

520

ALPHA WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS CO

ALPHA WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS CO 192.00  11949

GMPT

GMPT 500.00  129661

MALMBERG/MERNA

MALMBERG/MERNA 50.00  155435

520 PARKS742.00

601

DISTRICT D ZONING ADMINISTRATORS

DISTRICT D ZONING ADMINISTRATORS 50.00  115725

MN PIE

Page 12
Audit List for Board

Account/Formula Description                                             Rpt Invoice #Warrant DescriptionVendor Name 1099

Paid On Bhf #Accr Amount On Behalf of NameNo. Service Dates

Transactions

Transactions

3 Vendors 3 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

3 Vendors 3 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Transactions

Account/Formula

DTF

AP

***  Redwood County  ***



REDWOOD-COTTONWOOD RIVERS CONTROL AREA

REDWOOD-COTTONWOOD RIVERS CONTROL AREA

MN COUNTIES INTERGOVERNMENTAL TRUST

OTHER CONSERVATION - APPROPRIATIONS

OTHER CONSERVATION - APPROPRIATIONS

SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES
 9:49AM1/12/23

RACHELW

GENERAL

Copyright 2010-2022 Integrated Financial Systems

1

03/28/2023 03/28/2023

76200

01-601-000-0000-6564 32.31 2022 DEC - FUEL A/Z COUNTY VEHICLE EXPENSE 72 N

12/01/2022 12/31/2022

OTHER CONSERVATIONDEPT

3100

01-603-000-0000-6801 12,123.20 2023 APPROPRIATIONS 05-2119 4 N

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

76155

01-603-000-0000-6801 26,480.00 2023 APPROPRIATIONS 337356 64 N

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

DEPT

55717

01-620-000-0000-6242 100.00 2023 JAN - WEB SERVICES BRYMA0096 DUES & REGISTRATION 11 Y

01/01/2023 01/31/2023

57194

01-620-000-0000-6242 6,009.05 2023 MASWCD DUES 3570 DUES & REGISTRATION 51 N

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

57940

01-620-000-0000-6351 2,476.00 2023 PROP/CASUALTY/WORK COMP 19493R INSURANCE-PROPERTY & LIABILITY 109 N

01/01/2023 01/01/2024

01-620-000-0000-6242 3,345.00 2022 PC/WC RENEWAL 19796R DUES & REGISTRATION 55 N

MN PIE 135.00  157550

REDWOOD COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT

REDWOOD COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT 32.31  176200

601 AGRICULTURAL INSPECTION217.31

603

AREA II MN RIVER BASIN PROJECT

AREA II MN RIVER BASIN PROJECT 12,123.20  13100

26,480.00  176155

603 OTHER CONSERVATION38,603.20

620

BRYMA DESIGNS

BRYMA DESIGNS 100.00  155717

MINNESOTA ASSN OF SOIL AND WATER

MINNESOTA ASSN OF SOIL AND WATER 6,009.05  157194

Page 13
Audit List for Board

Account/Formula Description                                             Rpt Invoice #Warrant DescriptionVendor Name 1099

Paid On Bhf #Accr Amount On Behalf of NameNo. Service Dates

Transactions

Transactions

3 Vendors 3 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Transactions

Transactions

2 Vendors 2 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Transactions

Transactions

Account/Formula

DTF

***  Redwood County  ***



MN COUNTIES INTERGOVERNMENTAL TRUST

SOUTHWEST PRAIRIE TECHNICAL SERVICE AREA

SOUTHWEST PRAIRIE TECHNICAL SERVICE AREA

SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

OTHER ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT-APPROPRIATION

OTHER ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT-APPROPRIATION

COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES
 9:49AM1/12/23

RACHELW

GENERAL

Copyright 2010-2022 Integrated Financial Systems

1

01/01/2023 01/01/2024

64868

01-620-000-0000-6401 23.96 DESKPAD, CALENDARS 487691-00 OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIP MNTCE 59 N

11/22/2022 11/22/2022

76200

01-620-000-0000-6564 115.24 2022 DEC - FUEL S&W VEHICLE EXPENSES 67 N

12/01/2022 12/31/2022

8324

01-620-000-0000-6242 2,205.00 ESTS LOCAL SHARE 127 DUES & REGISTRATION 83 Y

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

01-620-000-0000-6242 1,160.00 NPEA LOCAL SHARE 127 DUES & REGISTRATION 84 Y

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

OTHER ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENTDEPT

3402

01-704-000-0000-6242 500.00 2023 MAPCED DUES 10660 EDA DUES AND REGISTRATIONS 5 N

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

01-704-000-0000-6242 30.00 REG @ MAPCED MEETING 64025 EDA DUES AND REGISTRATIONS 7 N

12/30/2022 12/30/2022

23630

01-704-000-0000-6801 1,000.00 2023 APPROPRIATION STMT 30 N

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

79219

01-704-000-0000-6801 2,500.00 2023 APPROPRIATIONS STMT 77 N

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

5,821.00  257940

ONE OFFICE SOLUTION

ONE OFFICE SOLUTION 23.96  164868

REDWOOD COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT

REDWOOD COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT 115.24  176200

3,365.00  28324

620 15,434.25

704

ASSN OF MN COUNTIES

ASSN OF MN COUNTIES 530.00  23402

EXPLORE SW MINNESOTA INC

EXPLORE SW MINNESOTA INC 1,000.00  123630

RURAL MINNESOTA ENERGY BOARD

Page 14
Audit List for Board

Account/Formula Description                                             Rpt Invoice #Warrant DescriptionVendor Name 1099

Paid On Bhf #Accr Amount On Behalf of NameNo. Service Dates

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

6 Vendors 8 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Transactions

Transactions

Account/Formula

AP

DTF

DTG

***  Redwood County  ***



SMALL BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CENTER

SMALL BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CENTER

OTHER ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT-APPROPRIATION

OTHER ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT-APPROPRIATION

OTHER ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT-APPROPRIATION

COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES
 9:49AM1/12/23

RACHELW

GENERAL

Copyright 2010-2022 Integrated Financial Systems

1

80063

01-704-000-0000-6801 5,000.00 2023 APPROPRIATION STMT 81 Y

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

83041

01-704-000-0000-6801 771.25 2023 APPROPRIATION STMT 82 N

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

72710

01-704-000-0000-6801 3,440.00 2023 APPROPRIATIONS STMT 86 N

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

RURAL MINNESOTA ENERGY BOARD 2,500.00  179219

5,000.00  180063

SOUTHERN MN TOURISM ASSN

SOUTHERN MN TOURISM ASSN 771.25  183041

SW MN PRIVATE INDUSTRY COUNCIL

SW MN PRIVATE INDUSTRY COUNCIL 3,440.00  172710

704 OTHER ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT13,241.25

1 GENERAL347,255.41

Page 15
Audit List for Board

Account/Formula Description                                             Rpt Invoice #Warrant DescriptionVendor Name 1099

Paid On Bhf #Accr Amount On Behalf of NameNo. Service Dates

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

6 Vendors 7 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Fund Total: 105 Transactions

Account/Formula

***  Redwood County  ***



MN COUNTIES INTERGOVERNMENTAL TRUST

MN COUNTIES INTERGOVERNMENTAL TRUST

COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES
 9:49AM1/12/23

RACHELW

ROAD AND BRIDGE

Copyright 2010-2022 Integrated Financial Systems

3

ROAD & BRIDGE ADMINISTRATIONDEPT

57940

03-301-000-0000-6172 35,643.00 2023 WORKERS COMP 19493R WORKERS' COMPENSATION 108 N

01/01/2023 01/01/2024

03-301-000-0000-6351 82,601.00 2023 PROPERTY/CASUALTY 19493R INSURANCE-PROPERTY & LIABILITY 107 N

01/01/2023 01/01/2024

301

118,244.00  257940

301 ROAD & BRIDGE ADMINISTRATION118,244.00

3 ROAD AND BRIDGE118,244.00

Page 16
Audit List for Board

Account/Formula Description                                             Rpt Invoice #Warrant DescriptionVendor Name 1099

Paid On Bhf #Accr Amount On Behalf of NameNo. Service Dates

Transactions

1 Vendors 2 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Fund Total: 2 Transactions

Account/Formula

***  Redwood County  ***



COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES
 9:49AM1/12/23

RACHELW

BUILDING FUND

Copyright 2010-2022 Integrated Financial Systems

10

BUILDINGS AND PLANTDEPT

26652

10-119-000-2720-6619 5,838.50 SIGNS - JC 24797X&24798X ADDITION: JUSTICE CENTER 112 N

11/11/2022 11/11/2022

95155

10-119-000-2720-6619 C 1,429.61 A&E - JUSTICE CENTER 83314 ADDITION: JUSTICE CENTER 113 N

12/31/2022 12/31/2022

119

FROGGY'S SIGNS

FROGGY'S SIGNS 5,838.50  126652

WOLD ARCHITECTS AND ENGINEERS

WOLD ARCHITECTS AND ENGINEERS 1,429.61  195155

119 BUILDINGS AND PLANT7,268.11

10 BUILDING FUND7,268.11

Page 17
Audit List for Board

Account/Formula Description                                             Rpt Invoice #Warrant DescriptionVendor Name 1099

Paid On Bhf #Accr Amount On Behalf of NameNo. Service Dates

Transactions

Transactions

2 Vendors 2 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Fund Total: 2 Transactions

Account/Formula

AP

***  Redwood County  ***



MN COUNTIES INTERGOVERNMENTAL TRUST

MN COUNTIES INTERGOVERNMENTAL TRUST

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES
 9:49AM1/12/23

RACHELW

DITCH

Copyright 2010-2022 Integrated Financial Systems

15

DITCH MAINTENANCEDEPT

1949

15-611-000-0000-6411 384.00 2023 RADIO MAINTENANCE 18976 FIELD SUPPLIES/EXPENSES 114 N

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

13055

15-611-000-0000-6899 549.58 CD 30 - LEGALS CEACC7F9-0057 MISCELLANEOUS 116 N

01/05/2023 01/05/2023

15-611-000-0000-6899 469.72 CD 29 - LEGALS CEACC7F9-0058 MISCELLANEOUS 115 N

01/05/2023 01/05/2023

57940

15-611-000-0000-6351 2,414.00 2023 PROP/CASUALTY/WORK COMP 19493R INSURANCE 106 N

01/01/2023 01/01/2024

57960

15-611-000-0000-6896 C 3,227.82 JD 33 FEMA '18 37301 FEMA EXPENDITURES 118 N

12/19/2022 12/19/2022

15-611-000-0000-6896 C 119,488.43 JD 33 FEMA '19 37301 FEMA EXPENDITURES 119 N

12/19/2022 12/19/2022

64868

15-611-000-0000-6401 29.56 ENVELOPES 23787 120 N

12/30/2022 12/30/2022

76200

15-611-000-0000-6564 192.64 2022 DEC - FUEL DITCH COUNTY VEHICLE EXPENSE 121 N

12/01/2022 12/31/2022

48203

15-611-000-0000-6564 86.22 '22 FORD F-150 - OIL CHANGE 345267 COUNTY VEHICLE EXPENSE 117 N

12/30/2022 12/30/2022

611

ALPHA WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS CO

ALPHA WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS CO 384.00  11949

COLUMN SOFTWARE PBC

COLUMN SOFTWARE PBC 1,019.30  213055

2,414.00  157940

MNL, INC

MNL, INC 122,716.25  257960

ONE OFFICE SOLUTION

ONE OFFICE SOLUTION 29.56  164868

REDWOOD COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT

REDWOOD COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT 192.64  176200

WEELBORG FORD INC

Page 18
Audit List for Board

Account/Formula Description                                             Rpt Invoice #Warrant DescriptionVendor Name 1099

Paid On Bhf #Accr Amount On Behalf of NameNo. Service Dates

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Account/Formula

AP

DTF

AP

***  Redwood County  ***



COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES
 9:49AM1/12/23

RACHELW

DITCH

Copyright 2010-2022 Integrated Financial Systems

15

93045

15-611-000-0000-6899 541.00 JD 5 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2 MISCELLANEOUS 122 Y

12/05/2022 12/05/2022

WEELBORG FORD INC 86.22  148203

WENDLAND SELLERS LAW OFFICE

WENDLAND SELLERS LAW OFFICE 541.00  193045

611 DITCH MAINTENANCE127,382.97

15 DITCH127,382.97

Page 19
Audit List for Board

Account/Formula Description                                             Rpt Invoice #Warrant DescriptionVendor Name 1099

Paid On Bhf #Accr Amount On Behalf of NameNo. Service Dates

Transactions

Transactions

8 Vendors 10 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Fund Total: 10 Transactions

Account/Formula

AP

***  Redwood County  ***



MN COUNTIES INTERGOVERNMENTAL TRUST

MN COUNTIES INTERGOVERNMENTAL TRUST

COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES
 9:49AM1/12/23

RACHELW

SOLID WASTE

Copyright 2010-2022 Integrated Financial Systems

22

SOLID WASTEDEPT

13558

22-391-000-0000-6242 2,500.00 2023 SW REGIONAL SW COMMISSION STMT DUES & REGISTRATION FEES 129 N

01/01/2023 12/31/2023

26510

22-391-000-0000-6331 20.00 2022 DEC - MILEAGE MILEAGE 130 N

12/13/2022 12/13/2022

30548

22-391-000-0000-6331 91.25 2022 NOV - MILEAGE MILEAGE 131 N

11/08/2022 11/28/2022

22-391-000-0000-6331 13.75 2022 DEC - MILEAGE MILEAGE 132 N

12/13/2022 12/13/2022

57940

22-391-000-0000-6351 371.00 2023 PROPERYT/CASUALTY 19493R INSURANCE 105 N

01/01/2023 01/01/2024

391

COUNTY OF LINCOLN

COUNTY OF LINCOLN 2,500.00  113558

FORKRUD/DAVID

FORKRUD/DAVID 20.00  126510

GROEBNER/DENNIS

GROEBNER/DENNIS 105.00  230548

371.00  157940

391 SOLID WASTE2,996.00

22 SOLID WASTE2,996.00

Page 20
Audit List for Board

Account/Formula Description                                             Rpt Invoice #Warrant DescriptionVendor Name 1099

Paid On Bhf #Accr Amount On Behalf of NameNo. Service Dates

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

4 Vendors 5 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Fund Total: 5 Transactions

Account/Formula

AP

AP

AP

***  Redwood County  ***



COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES
 9:49AM1/12/23

RACHELW

INSURANCE

Copyright 2010-2022 Integrated Financial Systems

73

NON-DEPARTMENTALDEPT

10059

73-801-000-0000-6178 12.18 ANNIVERSARY & BIRTHDAY CANDY 635813 EMPLOYEE WELLNESS 13 N

01/06/2023 01/06/2023

86350

73-801-000-0000-6178 153.46 WELCOME BRKFST, XMAS THANKS 1086 EMPLOYEE WELLNESS 87 N

12/09/2022 12/28/2022

801

CAPITAL ONE BANK (USA), N.A.

CAPITAL ONE BANK (USA), N.A. 12.18  110059

TERSTEEGS HOLIDAY MARKET

TERSTEEGS HOLIDAY MARKET 153.46  186350

801 NON-DEPARTMENTAL165.64

73 INSURANCE165.64

Page 21
Audit List for Board

Account/Formula Description                                             Rpt Invoice #Warrant DescriptionVendor Name 1099

Paid On Bhf #Accr Amount On Behalf of NameNo. Service Dates

Transactions

Transactions

2 Vendors 2 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Fund Total: 2 Transactions

Account/Formula

AP

***  Redwood County  ***



COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES
 9:49AM1/12/23

RACHELW

STATE REVENUE

Copyright 2010-2022 Integrated Financial Systems

80

...DEPT

9008

80-000-000-0000-2410 230.00 PERMIT TO CARRY - N17R12 64-75 PERMIT TO CARRY - STATE'S SHARE 12 N

10/14/2022 12/29/2022

0

BUREAU OF CRIMINAL APPREHENSION

BUREAU OF CRIMINAL APPREHENSION 230.00  19008

0 ...230.00

80 STATE REVENUE230.00

Page 22
Audit List for Board

Account/Formula Description                                             Rpt Invoice #Warrant DescriptionVendor Name 1099

Paid On Bhf #Accr Amount On Behalf of NameNo. Service Dates

Transactions

1 Vendors 1 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Fund Total: 1 Transactions

Account/Formula

***  Redwood County  ***



SOIL & WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT PROJ

SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

SOIL & WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT PROJ

WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN EXPENSES

WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN EXPENSES

WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN EXPENSES

COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES
 9:49AM1/12/23

RACHELW

Copyright 2010-2022 Integrated Financial Systems

85

DEPT

23503

85-620-975-0000-6802 1,156.00 EASEMENT FEES - BENEDICT 41107 BWSR RIM-EASEMENTS EXPENSES 123 Y

12/27/2022 12/27/2022

56588

85-620-996-0000-6802 21,442.60 UNDERGROUND OUTLET STMT SECTION 319 EXPENSES 124 Y

01/06/2023 01/06/2023

71920

85-620-990-0000-6802 472.00 COVER CROPS STMT 125 Y

01/06/2023 01/06/2023

72546

85-620-990-0000-6802 800.00 COVER CROPS STMT 126 Y

12/20/2022 12/20/2022

75502

85-620-992-0000-6802 500.00 WELL DECOMMISSIONING STMT WCA EXPENSES 127 Y

12/19/2022 12/19/2022

87105

85-620-990-0000-6802 500.00 WELL DECOMMISSIONING STMT 128 Y

12/20/2022 12/20/2022

620

ESTEBO FRANK MUNSHOWER LTD

ESTEBO FRANK MUNSHOWER LTD 1,156.00  123503

MEYER/STEVE

MEYER/STEVE 21,442.60  156588

PM FARMS by PAUL MILBRADT

PM FARMS by PAUL MILBRADT 472.00  171920

PRECHEL/KYLE

PRECHEL/KYLE 800.00  172546

RASMUSSEN/DENNIS

RASMUSSEN/DENNIS 500.00  175502

TIFFANY/DANIEL

TIFFANY/DANIEL 500.00  187105

620 24,870.60

85 24,870.60

628,412.73

Page 23
Audit List for Board

Account/Formula Description                                             Rpt Invoice #Warrant DescriptionVendor Name 1099

Paid On Bhf #Accr Amount On Behalf of NameNo. Service Dates

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

Transactions

6 Vendors 6 TransactionsDEPT Total:

Fund Total: 6 Transactions

Final Total: 108 Vendors 133 Transactions

Account/Formula

***  Redwood County  ***



COMMISSIONER'S VOUCHERS ENTRIES
 9:49AM1/12/23

RACHELW

Copyright 2010-2022 Integrated Financial Systems

Page 24
Audit List for Board

***  Redwood County  ***

SOIL & WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT PROJ

AMOUNT

 347,255.41 GENERAL 1

 118,244.00 ROAD AND BRIDGE 3

 7,268.11 BUILDING FUND 10

 127,382.97 DITCH 15

 2,996.00 SOLID WASTE 22

 165.64 INSURANCE 73

 230.00 STATE REVENUE 80

 24,870.60 85

 628,412.73

NameFundRecap by Fund

All Funds Total Approved by, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .





































































































































































































































































CD 44 Drainage Authority 
 

Agenda 
 

In the Matter of the Redetermination of Benefits 

January 17, 2023, 10:00 a.m. 

Redwood County Government Center  

Redwood Falls, Minnesota 
 

 

1. Adopt Agenda 
 

2. Purpose of Public Hearing – Commissioner Wakefield 

o 2 main reasons for redetermination  

 To bring in lands that are benefiting from the system, but which are not 

currently paying benefits.  When systems were initially viewed, only wet acres 

were assessed benefits.  However, with changes in drainage practices, all acres 

now have the potential to benefit from the system and should be brought in to 

pay their fair share.   

 To bring the value of the ditch system up to current dollar values to have the 

ability to make repairs or allow landowners to petition for an improvement.   
 

3. Jurisdictional and Notice Documents – Scott Wold 
 

4. Presentation of Viewers’ Report – Jim Weidemann 
 

5. Landowners and Interested Parties 

o Has there been any written testimony for the record? 

o Landowners wishing to speak should state their name for public record   
 

6. Close public Comment 
 

7. Possible Action by Drainage Authority  

o Approve Viewers’ Report as Presented 

o Continue Hearing for Further Information or Amendments 

o Reject viewers report 
 

8. Set repayment terms (suggested) 

o Paid in full within 60 days or it will be put on the property taxes for up to 3 years at 4% 

interest, if the amount owed is less than $100, the entire amount will be put on taxes in 

the first year. 
 

9. Order Land Use Supervisor Brozek to draft a findings and order consistent with the Boards 

decision.   
 

10. Adjourn 

 



Redwood County Ditch 44 Findings and Order 

 

Page 1 of 7 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

Before the 

Redwood County 

SITTING AS THE DRAINAGE AUTHORITY FOR  

County Ditch 44 

 

 

 

In the Matter of: 

 

the Redetermination of Benefits for 

County Ditch 44 

 

 

FINDINGS AND ORDER APPROVING 

THE REDETERMINATION OF 

BENEFITS, ACQUIRING GRASS 

BUFFER, CONFIRMING DAMAGES, 

AND DIRECTING PAYMENT 

 

The Redwood County Board of Commissioners, sitting as the drainage authority for 

County Ditch 44, pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 103E.351, having adopted findings and 

ordered a redetermination of benefits on 02/01/2022; having appointed three viewers to 

redetermine and report the benefits and damages; having received the viewers’ report; 

having followed proper notice requirements in Minn. Stat. § 103E.351; and having held a 

public hearing and followed all requirements of chapter 103E, based on the record and 

proceedings, Commissioner ________________ moved, seconded by Commissioner 

_______________to adopt the following Findings and Order: 

 

Findings: 

 

1. Redwood County Board of Commissioners is the drainage authority for County 
Ditch 44. 
 

2. On 02/01/2022, the drainage authority adopted findings and ordered the initiation 
of a redetermination of benefits and damages for County Ditch 44 pursuant to 
Minn. Stat. § 103E.351. Jim Weidemann, Steve Johnson, and Todd Hammer as 
viewers 
 

3. County Environmental Director Scott Wold administered the Viewers’ Oath on 
03/16/2022 

 
4. The viewers completed their report, which included a benefits and damages 

statement, on 12/01/2022, for all property affected by the drainage system and 
filed their report with the drainage authority.  

 



Redwood County Ditch 44 Findings and Order 

 

Page 2 of 7 

 

5. The Environmental Director under direction from the drainage authority Board, 
prepared property owners’ reports and mailed them to the owners of property 
identified in the viewers’ report.  
 

6. The drainage authority, by order, set a public hearing for review of the viewers’ 
report on 12/13/2022, which is within 30 days after the property owners’ reports 
were mailed. 

 
7. A printed copy of the final hearing notice was posted for at least three weeks before 

the date of the final hearing at the front door of the Government Center of Redwood 
County.  

 
8. Notice of the final hearing was published in the Redwood Gazette, for three 

successive weeks prior to the hearing. 
 
9. Within one week after the first publication of the notice, the Redwood County 

Environmental Director provided notice by mail of the time and location of the final 
hearing to the commissioner of natural resources, all property owners, and others 
affected by the redetermination of benefits and listed in the viewers’ report. 

 
10. Proper notice of the redetermination hearing was made in conjunction with Minn. 

Stat. § 103E.351 requirements and chapters 103E. A record of the notice 
requirements is on file with the drainage authority. 

 
11. Evidence of all actions in this matter, including findings and orders, appointments, 

oaths, affidavits of mailing, publication, and posting as well as hearing agendas, 
presentation materials, and recordings are present in the record of proceedings 
and are incorporated by reference. 

 
12. The drainage authority held a public hearing on the redetermination of benefits on 

01/17/2023 at 10:00 a.m. at Redwood County Government Center.  
 
13. At the public hearing, Jim Weidemann, one of the duly appointed viewers, 

presented the viewers’ report and explained the process of completing the viewers’ 
report. Weidemann further provided detail of the viewing process and the 
information used by the viewers to:  (1) verify the boundary of the watershed of the 
drainage system; (2) verify and confirm the existence of drainage benefit; and (3) 
determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 
construction of County Ditch 44. 

 
14. The viewers reviewed all property within the drainage areas of the drainage system 

as part of the redetermination of benefits process. The viewers determined the 
amount of damages to be paid for the acquisition of property for the establishment 
of best management practices, including grass strips, necessary to control erosion, 
sedimentation, improve water quality, or maintain the efficiency of the drainage 



Redwood County Ditch 44 Findings and Order 

 

Page 3 of 7 

 

system as required under Minn. Stat. § 103E.021. The viewers compared sales in 
the area in arriving at an average sales price used in establishing a payment rate. 

 
15. The viewers used maps, LiDAR data, and other information, along with visual 

inspection of the watershed of the drainage system, to determine the boundaries 
of the benefiting area.  

 
16. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers paid particular attention 

to altered land use and drainage alterations which facilitate the removal of water 
from property directing it to the drainage system. 

 
17. To determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 

drainage system, the viewers conducted a condition comparison comparing the 
expected, pre-ditch, unaltered state of the watershed to the existing, altered and 
improved condition of the watershed. The viewers used this comparison in 
determining the increased market value of the properties receiving a direct 
drainage benefit.  
 

18. Based on their detailed observations, the viewers determined benefit 
classifications, classified acres, and assigned economic benefit on a per acre 
basis. 
 

19. The viewers determined that some acres within the watershed of the drainage 
system, i.e. existing wetlands and non-contributing basins, received a change in 
benefits from the drainage system. 
 

20. The viewers accounted for the efficiency of the drainage system, as designed, and 
the proximity of lands to and the elevations of lands above the ditch. 
 

21. The viewers applied an economic analysis using sales and income approaches to 
determine the increased value to each classification acre based on the drainage 
benefit provided by the drainage system. 

 
22. The viewers determined the amount of economic benefit to property benefited 

immediately by the drainage system, or for property for which the drainage system 
can become an outlet for drainage, make an outlet more accessible, or otherwise 
directly benefit the property. 
 

23. The viewers determined economic benefits based on:  (1) an increase in the 
current market value of the property as a result of constructing the project; (2) an 
increase in the potential for agricultural production as a result of constructing the 
project; or (3) an increased value of the property as a result of potential different 
land use.  
 



Redwood County Ditch 44 Findings and Order 

 

Page 4 of 7 

 

24. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers determined benefits on 
property that are responsible for increased drainage system maintenance, or 
increased drainage system capacity because the natural drainage on the property 
has been altered or modified to accelerate the drainage of water from the property.  
 

25. The viewers kept an accurate account of all time engaged in viewing and 
examination; the nature and kind of work performed; the days each viewer was 
engaged in said work; the amount charged per day by each viewer; and every item 
of expense incurred by the viewers in said work.  
 

26. The viewers’ account of work has been filed with the drainage authority.  
 
27. Upon review of information provided to the Board during the public hearing, the 

Board further finds and confirms its earlier findings that the benefits and damages 
determined in the original proceedings, as well as the benefited and damaged 
areas determined in the original proceedings, do not reflect current, existing, actual 
benefits and benefitted areas.  
 

28. The viewers’ report is attached as Exhibit A.   
 

29. The benefits and damages statement is attached as Exhibit B.  
 
30. During the public hearing portion of the proceedings, the following persons 

appeared and provided comment.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

31. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Groebner moved to 
accept the Redetermination of Benefits Report. Commissioner Forkrud seconded, 
and the motion carried.  
 

32. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Wakefield moved to 
Set the payment terms as paid in full within 60 days, placed on taxes for 3 years 
at 4% interest, with all financed bills under $100.00 to be paid in the first year. 
Commissioner Groebner seconded and the motion carried.  
 

33. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Salfer moved to direct 
staff to prepare Findings and an Order consistent with the proceedings. 
Commissioner Groebner seconded, and the motion carried.  
 



Redwood County Ditch 44 Findings and Order 

 

Page 5 of 7 

 

34. Based on the proceedings herein, the evidence presented during the pendency of 
these proceedings, the testimony of the viewers, and the public comments 
received, the Board finds: 
 

a. that the viewers’ report has been made and other proceedings have been 
completed under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 103E;  

 

b. that the viewers’ report is complete and correct; 
 

c. that no evidence was presented in opposition to the benefits and damages 
determined by the viewers in the viewers’ report; 

 

d. that the redetermined benefits and damages, as reflected in the viewers’ 
report as Exhibit A, and as described in the benefits and damages 
statement as Exhibit B, are proper, reasonable, and conform to the 
drainage code; and 

 
Order: 

Based on the foregoing Findings and the entire record of proceedings before the Board, 

the Board, acting as the drainage authority for Redwood County Ditch 44, hereby orders 

as follows: 

 

A. The redetermined benefits of Redwood County Ditch 44, the viewers’ report 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, and the benefits and damages statement attached 
hereto as Exhibit B are hereby adopted by the Board and shall be used in place 
of the original benefits and damages in all subsequent proceedings. 

 

B. The viewers are allowed payment of their account of work.  
 

C. The County Auditor shall ensure that the redetermined benefits replace the existing 
benefits previously determined for Redwood County Ditch 44. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Redwood County Ditch 44 Findings and Order 

 

Page 6 of 7 

 

  
 
After discussion, the Board Chair called the question. The question was on the adoption 

of the foregoing findings and order, and there were, ____yeas, ____nays, ____ absent, 

and____ abstentions as follows: 

 Yea Nay Absent Abstain 
Wakefield     
Groebner     

Forkrud     
Salfer     

Van Hee     
 

Upon vote, the Chair declared the motion passed and the Findings and Order adopted. 

 

 

_______________________________         Dated: __________________ 

Rick Wakefield, Chairperson  



Redwood County Ditch 44 Findings and Order 

 

Page 7 of 7 

 

*   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   * 

I, Nick Brozek, Redwood County Land Sue Supervisor, do hereby certify that I have 

compared the above motion; findings and order with the original thereof as the same 

appears of record and on file with the Redwood County Ditch 44 and find the same to be 

a true and correct transcript thereof. The above order was filed with me, Nick Brozek, 

Redwood County Land Use Supervisor, on _______________ 

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this  

____ day of ___________, _____. 

 

             

    ______________________________  

           Nick Brozek  

 

 

 

 
 



Approved by REDWOOD MINNESOTA

Redwood County Commissioners

Date COUNTY DITCH NO. 44 "TILE"

2022 REDETERMINATION OF BENEFITS 12/1/2022 $5,380.00 $4,536.00 $2,084.00 $578.00

$578.00

Maintenance 3,000.00$    

"A" "B" "C" "D" "D-" $3.25 NON- ROADS

PARCEL IN Benefited POTENTIAL PROXIMITY HYDRAULIC NET MAINT % BENEFIT BENEFIT BENEFIT BENEFIT TILE BENEFIT BENEFITTED

NUMBER NAME DESCRIPTION SEC T-N R-W TRACT Acres BENEFITS RATE EFFICIENCY BENEFIT COST VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE FEET VALUE

63-001-3040 SCHMIDT/WILLIAM R & NORMA J Pt SWSW 1 112 36 15.60 2.00 2824.50 100% 40% 1129.80 29.84 0.995% 1.00 2084.00 1.00 578.00 50 162.50

30103 US HWY 71

REDWOOD FALLS MN 56283

63-012-1120 THIELEN/JOSEPH A Pt N2N2 12 112 36 8.62 4.00 5324.00 85% 40% 1810.16 47.81 1.594% 2.00 4168.00 2.00 1156.00

320 NORMANDALE RD

REDWOOD FALLS MN 56283

63-012-1140 JAHNZ/BRANDON & BRITTNEY Pt NENW 12 112 36 1.53 1.00 578.00 85% 40% 196.52 5.19 0.173% 1.00 578.00 0.53

32843 US HWY 71

REDWOOD FALLS MN 56283

63-012-1150 SERBUS/CRAIG Pt NWNE 12 112 36 6.29 3.00 1734.00 85% 40% 589.56 15.57 0.519% 3.00 1734.00 1.00

33379 MAGNOLIA AVE

PO BOX 253

REDWOOD FALLS MN 56283

63-012-2020 TERSTEEGS INCORPORATED Pt NENW 12 112 36 19.50 18.00 65341.75 100% 40% 26136.70 690.37 23.012% 3.00 16140.00 8.00 36288.00 4.00 8336.00 3.00 1734.00 875 2843.75 0.50 1.00

1111 E BRIDGE ST

REDWOOD FALLS MN 56283

63-012-2060 WERNER/DON A Pt NENW 12 112 36 4.00 3.00 4746.00 85% 40% 1613.64 42.62 1.421% 2.00 4168.00 1.00 578.00 1.00

33295 327 ST

REDWOOD FALLS MN 56283

63-012-2080 TERSTEEG/JAMES PAUL Pt NENW 12 112 36 4.34 3.00 1734.00 85% 40% 589.56 15.57 0.519% 3.00 1734.00 1.34

918 S RAMSEY ST

REDWOOD FALLS MN 56283

63-012-2100 SCHMIDT/WILLIAM R & NORMA J NWNW 12 112 36 40.00 31.00 62954.50 100% 40% 25181.80 665.15 22.172% 4.00 21520.00 3.00 13608.00 7.00 14588.00 17.00 9826.00 1050 3412.50 2.00

30103 US HWY 71

REDWOOD FALLS MN 56283

OR RESTRICTED

WETLAND ACRES

OR DITCH

NONBENEFITED

"C"=

"B" "C" "D"

"D"=

"D-"=

"A"

BEN.

ACRES

BEN.

ACRES

"A"= "B"=

BEN.

ACRES

BENEFIT

ACRES

 CD 44 REDWD      

    Page 1



Approved by REDWOOD MINNESOTA

Redwood County Commissioners

Date COUNTY DITCH NO. 44 "TILE"

2022 REDETERMINATION OF BENEFITS 12/1/2022 $5,380.00 $4,536.00 $2,084.00 $578.00

$578.00

Maintenance 3,000.00$    

"A" "B" "C" "D" "D-" $3.25 NON- ROADS

PARCEL IN Benefited POTENTIAL PROXIMITY HYDRAULIC NET MAINT % BENEFIT BENEFIT BENEFIT BENEFIT TILE BENEFIT BENEFITTED

NUMBER NAME DESCRIPTION SEC T-N R-W TRACT Acres BENEFITS RATE EFFICIENCY BENEFIT COST VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE FEET VALUE

OR RESTRICTED

WETLAND ACRES

OR DITCH

NONBENEFITED

"C"=

"B" "C" "D"

"D"=

"D-"=

"A"

BEN.

ACRES

BEN.

ACRES

"A"= "B"=

BEN.

ACRES

BENEFIT

ACRES

63-012-2120 HULTERSTRUM/JOHN/& MARK Pt SENW 12 112 36 33.69 5.00 4396.00 85% 40% 1494.64 39.48 1.316% 1.00 2084.00 4.00 2312.00

HULTERSTRUM

22366 640 AVE

LITCHFIELD MN 55355

63-012-2125 TIFFANY/BRUCE J & ANN M SWNW 12 112 36 40.00 2.00 1156.00 85% 40% 393.04 10.38 0.346% 2.00 1156.00 0.50

32503 327 ST Pt SENW 12 112 36 1.72 1.00 578.00 85% 40% 196.52 5.19 0.173% 1.00 578.00

REDWOOD FALLS MN 56283

63-012-2130 WERNER/DARRIN D Pt SENW 12 112 36 1.32 1.00 578.00 85% 40% 196.52 5.19 0.173% 1.00 578.00 0.32

33242 327 ST

REDWOOD FALLS MN 56283

63-012-2140 RASMUSSEN/MAGAN AMELIA Pt SENW 12 112 36 3.27 1.00 578.00 85% 40% 196.52 5.19 0.173% 1.00 578.00 1.00

32746 US HWY 71

REDWOOD FALLS MN 56283

REDWOOD FALLS/CITY OF 103.00 100676.00 100% 40% 40270.40 1063.69 35.456% 3500 11375.00

PO BOX 526

REDWOOD FALLS MN 56283-0526

Totals 178.00 253198.75 99995.38 2641.24 0.88 7.0 37660.0 11.0 49896.0 17.0 35428.0 37.0 3.00 23120.00 5475.00 17793.75 4.37 4.82

 CD 44 REDWD      

    Page 2



Approved by REDWOOD MINNESOTA

Redwood County Commissioners

Date COUNTY DITCH NO. 44 "TILE"

2022 REDETERMINATION OF BENEFITS 12/1/2022 $5,380.00 $4,536.00 $2,084.00 $578.00

$578.00

Maintenance 3,000.00$    

"A" "B" "C" "D" "D-" $3.25 NON- ROADS

PARCEL IN Benefited POTENTIAL PROXIMITY HYDRAULIC NET MAINT % BENEFIT BENEFIT BENEFIT BENEFIT TILE BENEFIT BENEFITTED

NUMBER NAME DESCRIPTION SEC T-N R-W TRACT Acres BENEFITS RATE EFFICIENCY BENEFIT COST VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE FEET VALUE

OR RESTRICTED

WETLAND ACRES

OR DITCH

NONBENEFITED

"C"=

"B" "C" "D"

"D"=

"D-"=

"A"

BEN.

ACRES

BEN.

ACRES

"A"= "B"=

BEN.

ACRES

BENEFIT

ACRES

ROAD AUTHORITY LOCATION LENGTH POTENTIAL EFFICENCY Tile 2065 ' NET MAINT BENEFIT BENEFIT BENEFIT BENEFIT

SEC T-N R-W (FEET) BENEFITS RATE 3.25 BENEFITS COST VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE

MNDOT   US HWY 75 2065.00 37.88 15.15 3.79 0.76

IN of Sec 1,12 112 36 3020.00 6,870.50 100% 6711.25 13581.75 358.75 11.958% 5722.9 1147.60

TOTAL LAND BENEFITS 253,198.75     99,995.38       2,641.24     88.04%

TOTAL ROAD BENEFITS 6,870.50          13,581.75       358.75        11.96%

TOTAL BENEFITS 260,069.25     113,577.13     2,999.99     100.0%

SOILS

"B"

SOILS

BENEFIT

%

"C" "D"

BENEFIT

%

BENEFIT

%

50.00 50.00

per foot

SOILS SOILS

"A"

 CD 44 REDWD      

    Page 3















CD 48 Drainage Authority 
 

Agenda 
 

In the Matter of the Redetermination of Benefits 

January 17, 2023, 10:00 a.m. 

Redwood County Government Center  

Redwood Falls, Minnesota 
 

 

1. Adopt Agenda 
 

2. Purpose of Public Hearing – Commissioner Wakefield 

o 2 main reasons for redetermination  

 To bring in lands that are benefiting from the system, but which are not 

currently paying benefits.  When systems were initially viewed, only wet acres 

were assessed benefits.  However, with changes in drainage practices, all acres 

now have the potential to benefit from the system and should be brought in to 

pay their fair share.   

 To bring the value of the ditch system up to current dollar values to have the 

ability to make repairs or allow landowners to petition for an improvement.   
 

3. Jurisdictional and Notice Documents – Nick Brozek 
 

4. Presentation of Viewers’ Report – Jim Weidemann 
 

5. Landowners and Interested Parties 

o Has there been any written testimony for the record? 

o Landowners wishing to speak should state their name for public record   
 

6. Close public Comment 
 

7. Possible Action by Drainage Authority  

o Approve Viewers’ Report as Presented 

o Continue Hearing for Further Information or Amendments 

o Reject viewers report 
 

8. Set repayment terms (suggested) 

o Paid in full within 60 days or it will be put on the property taxes for up to 3 years at 4% 

interest, if the amount owed is less than $100, the entire amount will be put on taxes in 

the first year. 
 

9. Order Land Use Supervisor Brozek to draft a findings and order consistent with the Boards 

decision.   
 

10. Adjourn 

 



Redwood County Ditch 48 Findings and Order 

 

Page 1 of 7 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

Before the 

Redwood County 

SITTING AS THE DRAINAGE AUTHORITY FOR  

County Ditch 48 

 

 

 

In the Matter of: 

 

the Redetermination of Benefits for 

County Ditch 48 

 

 

FINDINGS AND ORDER APPROVING 

THE REDETERMINATION OF 

BENEFITS, ACQUIRING GRASS 

BUFFER, CONFIRMING DAMAGES, 

AND DIRECTING PAYMENT 

 

The Redwood County Board of Commissioners, sitting as the drainage authority for 

County Ditch 48, pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 103E.351, having adopted findings and 

ordered a redetermination of benefits on 02/01/2022; having appointed three viewers to 

redetermine and report the benefits and damages; having received the viewers’ report; 

having followed proper notice requirements in Minn. Stat. § 103E.351; and having held a 

public hearing and followed all requirements of chapter 103E, based on the record and 

proceedings, Commissioner ________________ moved, seconded by Commissioner 

_______________to adopt the following Findings and Order: 

 

Findings: 

 

1. Redwood County Board of Commissioners is the drainage authority for County 
Ditch 48. 
 

2. On 02/01/2022, the drainage authority adopted findings and ordered the initiation 
of a redetermination of benefits and damages for County Ditch 48 pursuant to 
Minn. Stat. § 103E.351. Jim Weidemann, Steve Johnson, and Todd Hammer as 
viewers 
 

3. County Environmental Director Scott Wold administered the Viewers’ Oath on 
03/16/2022 

 
4. The viewers completed their report, which included a benefits and damages 

statement, on 12/01/2022, for all property affected by the drainage system and 
filed their report with the drainage authority.  

 



Redwood County Ditch 48 Findings and Order 

 

Page 2 of 7 

 

5. The Environmental Director under direction from the drainage authority Board, 
prepared property owners’ reports and mailed them to the owners of property 
identified in the viewers’ report.  
 

6. The drainage authority, by order, set a public hearing for review of the viewers’ 
report on 12/13/2022, which is within 30 days after the property owners’ reports 
were mailed. 

 
7. A printed copy of the final hearing notice was posted for at least three weeks before 

the date of the final hearing at the front door of the Government Center of Redwood 
County.  

 
8. Notice of the final hearing was published in the Redwood Gazette, for three 

successive weeks prior to the hearing. 
 
9. Within one week after the first publication of the notice, the Redwood County 

Environmental Director provided notice by mail of the time and location of the final 
hearing to the commissioner of natural resources, all property owners, and others 
affected by the redetermination of benefits and listed in the viewers’ report. 

 
10. Proper notice of the redetermination hearing was made in conjunction with Minn. 

Stat. § 103E.351 requirements and chapters 103E. A record of the notice 
requirements is on file with the drainage authority. 

 
11. Evidence of all actions in this matter, including findings and orders, appointments, 

oaths, affidavits of mailing, publication, and posting as well as hearing agendas, 
presentation materials, and recordings are present in the record of proceedings 
and are incorporated by reference. 

 
12. The drainage authority held a public hearing on the redetermination of benefits on 

01/17/2023 at 10:00 a.m. at Redwood County Government Center.  
 
13. At the public hearing, Jim Weidemann, one of the duly appointed viewers, 

presented the viewers’ report and explained the process of completing the viewers’ 
report. Weidemann further provided detail of the viewing process and the 
information used by the viewers to:  (1) verify the boundary of the watershed of the 
drainage system; (2) verify and confirm the existence of drainage benefit; and (3) 
determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 
construction of County Ditch 48. 

 
14. The viewers reviewed all property within the drainage areas of the drainage system 

as part of the redetermination of benefits process. The viewers determined the 
amount of damages to be paid for the acquisition of property for the establishment 
of best management practices, including grass strips, necessary to control erosion, 
sedimentation, improve water quality, or maintain the efficiency of the drainage 



Redwood County Ditch 48 Findings and Order 

 

Page 3 of 7 

 

system as required under Minn. Stat. § 103E.021. The viewers compared sales in 
the area in arriving at an average sales price used in establishing a payment rate. 

 
15. The viewers used maps, LiDAR data, and other information, along with visual 

inspection of the watershed of the drainage system, to determine the boundaries 
of the benefiting area.  

 
16. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers paid particular attention 

to altered land use and drainage alterations which facilitate the removal of water 
from property directing it to the drainage system. 

 
17. To determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 

drainage system, the viewers conducted a condition comparison comparing the 
expected, pre-ditch, unaltered state of the watershed to the existing, altered and 
improved condition of the watershed. The viewers used this comparison in 
determining the increased market value of the properties receiving a direct 
drainage benefit.  
 

18. Based on their detailed observations, the viewers determined benefit 
classifications, classified acres, and assigned economic benefit on a per acre 
basis. 
 

19. The viewers determined that some acres within the watershed of the drainage 
system, i.e. existing wetlands and non-contributing basins, received a change in 
benefits from the drainage system. 
 

20. The viewers accounted for the efficiency of the drainage system, as designed, and 
the proximity of lands to and the elevations of lands above the ditch. 
 

21. The viewers applied an economic analysis using sales and income approaches to 
determine the increased value to each classification acre based on the drainage 
benefit provided by the drainage system. 

 
22. The viewers determined the amount of economic benefit to property benefited 

immediately by the drainage system, or for property for which the drainage system 
can become an outlet for drainage, make an outlet more accessible, or otherwise 
directly benefit the property. 
 

23. The viewers determined economic benefits based on:  (1) an increase in the 
current market value of the property as a result of constructing the project; (2) an 
increase in the potential for agricultural production as a result of constructing the 
project; or (3) an increased value of the property as a result of potential different 
land use.  
 



Redwood County Ditch 48 Findings and Order 

 

Page 4 of 7 

 

24. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers determined benefits on 
property that are responsible for increased drainage system maintenance, or 
increased drainage system capacity because the natural drainage on the property 
has been altered or modified to accelerate the drainage of water from the property.  
 

25. The viewers kept an accurate account of all time engaged in viewing and 
examination; the nature and kind of work performed; the days each viewer was 
engaged in said work; the amount charged per day by each viewer; and every item 
of expense incurred by the viewers in said work.  
 

26. The viewers’ account of work has been filed with the drainage authority.  
 
27. Upon review of information provided to the Board during the public hearing, the 

Board further finds and confirms its earlier findings that the benefits and damages 
determined in the original proceedings, as well as the benefited and damaged 
areas determined in the original proceedings, do not reflect current, existing, actual 
benefits and benefitted areas.  
 

28. The viewers’ report is attached as Exhibit A.   
 

29. The benefits and damages statement is attached as Exhibit B.  
 
30. During the public hearing portion of the proceedings, the following persons 

appeared and provided comment.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

31. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Groebner moved to 
accept the Redetermination of Benefits Report. Commissioner Forkrud seconded, 
and the motion carried.  
 

32. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Wakefield moved to 
Set the payment terms as paid in full within 60 days, placed on taxes for 3 years 
at 4% interest, with all financed bills under $100.00 to be paid in the first year. 
Commissioner Groebner seconded and the motion carried.  
 

33. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Salfer moved to direct 
staff to prepare Findings and an Order consistent with the proceedings. 
Commissioner Groebner seconded, and the motion carried.  
 



Redwood County Ditch 48 Findings and Order 

 

Page 5 of 7 

 

34. Based on the proceedings herein, the evidence presented during the pendency of 
these proceedings, the testimony of the viewers, and the public comments 
received, the Board finds: 
 

a. that the viewers’ report has been made and other proceedings have been 
completed under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 103E;  

 

b. that the viewers’ report is complete and correct; 
 

c. that no evidence was presented in opposition to the benefits and damages 
determined by the viewers in the viewers’ report; 

 

d. that the redetermined benefits and damages, as reflected in the viewers’ 
report as Exhibit A, and as described in the benefits and damages 
statement as Exhibit B, are proper, reasonable, and conform to the 
drainage code; and 

 
Order: 

Based on the foregoing Findings and the entire record of proceedings before the Board, 

the Board, acting as the drainage authority for Redwood County Ditch 48, hereby orders 

as follows: 

 

A. The redetermined benefits of Redwood County Ditch 48, the viewers’ report 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, and the benefits and damages statement attached 
hereto as Exhibit B are hereby adopted by the Board and shall be used in place 
of the original benefits and damages in all subsequent proceedings. 

 

B. The viewers are allowed payment of their account of work.  
 

C. The County Auditor shall ensure that the redetermined benefits replace the existing 
benefits previously determined for Redwood County Ditch 48. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Redwood County Ditch 48 Findings and Order 

 

Page 6 of 7 

 

  
 
After discussion, the Board Chair called the question. The question was on the adoption 

of the foregoing findings and order, and there were, ____yeas, ____nays, ____ absent, 

and____ abstentions as follows: 

 Yea Nay Absent Abstain 
Wakefield     
Groebner     

Forkrud     
Salfer     

Van Hee     
 

Upon vote, the Chair declared the motion passed and the Findings and Order adopted. 

 

 

_______________________________         Dated: __________________ 

Rick Wakefield, Chairperson  



Redwood County Ditch 48 Findings and Order 

 

Page 7 of 7 

 

*   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   * 

I, Nick Brozek, Redwood County Land Sue Supervisor, do hereby certify that I have 

compared the above motion; findings and order with the original thereof as the same 

appears of record and on file with the Redwood County Ditch 48 and find the same to be 

a true and correct transcript thereof. The above order was filed with me, Nick Brozek, 

Redwood County Land Use Supervisor, on _______________ 

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this  

____ day of ___________, _____. 

 

             

    ______________________________  

           Nick Brozek  

 

 

 

 
 



CD 55 Drainage Authority 
 

Agenda 
 

In the Matter of the Redetermination of Benefits 

January 17, 2023, 10:00 a.m. 

Redwood County Government Center  

Redwood Falls, Minnesota 
 

 

1. Adopt Agenda 
 

2. Purpose of Public Hearing – Commissioner Wakefield 

o 2 main reasons for redetermination  

 To bring in lands that are benefiting from the system, but which are not 

currently paying benefits.  When systems were initially viewed, only wet acres 

were assessed benefits.  However, with changes in drainage practices, all acres 

now have the potential to benefit from the system and should be brought in to 

pay their fair share.   

 To bring the value of the ditch system up to current dollar values to have the 

ability to make repairs or allow landowners to petition for an improvement.   
 

3. Jurisdictional and Notice Documents – Nick Brozek 
 

4. Presentation of Viewers’ Report – Jim Weidemann 
 

5. Landowners and Interested Parties 

o Has there been any written testimony for the record? 

o Landowners wishing to speak should state their name for public record   
 

6. Close public Comment 
 

7. Possible Action by Drainage Authority  

o Approve Viewers’ Report as Presented 

o Continue Hearing for Further Information or Amendments 

o Reject viewers report 
 

8. Set repayment terms (suggested) 

o Paid in full within 60 days or it will be put on the property taxes for up to 3 years at 4% 

interest, if the amount owed is less than $100, the entire amount will be put on taxes in 

the first year. 
 

9. Order Land Use Supervisor Brozek to draft a findings and order consistent with the Boards 

decision.   
 

10. Adjourn 

 



Redwood County Ditch 55 Findings and Order 

 

Page 1 of 7 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

Before the 

Redwood County 

SITTING AS THE DRAINAGE AUTHORITY FOR  

County Ditch 55 

 

 

 

In the Matter of: 

 

the Redetermination of Benefits for 

County Ditch 55 

 

 

FINDINGS AND ORDER APPROVING 

THE REDETERMINATION OF 

BENEFITS, ACQUIRING GRASS 

BUFFER, CONFIRMING DAMAGES, 

AND DIRECTING PAYMENT 

 

The Redwood County Board of Commissioners, sitting as the drainage authority for 

County Ditch 55, pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 103E.351, having adopted findings and 

ordered a redetermination of benefits on 02/01/2022; having appointed three viewers to 

redetermine and report the benefits and damages; having received the viewers’ report; 

having followed proper notice requirements in Minn. Stat. § 103E.351; and having held a 

public hearing and followed all requirements of chapter 103E, based on the record and 

proceedings, Commissioner ________________ moved, seconded by Commissioner 

_______________to adopt the following Findings and Order: 

 

Findings: 

 

1. Redwood County Board of Commissioners is the drainage authority for County 
Ditch 55. 
 

2. On 02/01/2022, the drainage authority adopted findings and ordered the initiation 
of a redetermination of benefits and damages for County Ditch 55 pursuant to 
Minn. Stat. § 103E.351. Jim Weidemann, Steve Johnson, and Todd Hammer as 
viewers 
 

3. County Environmental Director Scott Wold administered the Viewers’ Oath on 
03/16/2022 

 
4. The viewers completed their report, which included a benefits and damages 

statement, on 12/01/2022, for all property affected by the drainage system and 
filed their report with the drainage authority.  

 



Redwood County Ditch 55 Findings and Order 

 

Page 2 of 7 

 

5. The Environmental Director under direction from the drainage authority Board, 
prepared property owners’ reports and mailed them to the owners of property 
identified in the viewers’ report.  
 

6. The drainage authority, by order, set a public hearing for review of the viewers’ 
report on 12/13/2022, which is within 30 days after the property owners’ reports 
were mailed. 

 
7. A printed copy of the final hearing notice was posted for at least three weeks before 

the date of the final hearing at the front door of the Government Center of Redwood 
County.  

 
8. Notice of the final hearing was published in the Redwood Gazette, for three 

successive weeks prior to the hearing. 
 
9. Within one week after the first publication of the notice, the Redwood County 

Environmental Director provided notice by mail of the time and location of the final 
hearing to the commissioner of natural resources, all property owners, and others 
affected by the redetermination of benefits and listed in the viewers’ report. 

 
10. Proper notice of the redetermination hearing was made in conjunction with Minn. 

Stat. § 103E.351 requirements and chapters 103E. A record of the notice 
requirements is on file with the drainage authority. 

 
11. Evidence of all actions in this matter, including findings and orders, appointments, 

oaths, affidavits of mailing, publication, and posting as well as hearing agendas, 
presentation materials, and recordings are present in the record of proceedings 
and are incorporated by reference. 

 
12. The drainage authority held a public hearing on the redetermination of benefits on 

01/17/2023 at 10:00 a.m. at Redwood County Government Center.  
 
13. At the public hearing, Jim Weidemann, one of the duly appointed viewers, 

presented the viewers’ report and explained the process of completing the viewers’ 
report. Weidemann further provided detail of the viewing process and the 
information used by the viewers to:  (1) verify the boundary of the watershed of the 
drainage system; (2) verify and confirm the existence of drainage benefit; and (3) 
determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 
construction of County Ditch 55. 

 
14. The viewers reviewed all property within the drainage areas of the drainage system 

as part of the redetermination of benefits process. The viewers determined the 
amount of damages to be paid for the acquisition of property for the establishment 
of best management practices, including grass strips, necessary to control erosion, 
sedimentation, improve water quality, or maintain the efficiency of the drainage 



Redwood County Ditch 55 Findings and Order 

 

Page 3 of 7 

 

system as required under Minn. Stat. § 103E.021. The viewers compared sales in 
the area in arriving at an average sales price used in establishing a payment rate. 

 
15. The viewers used maps, LiDAR data, and other information, along with visual 

inspection of the watershed of the drainage system, to determine the boundaries 
of the benefiting area.  

 
16. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers paid particular attention 

to altered land use and drainage alterations which facilitate the removal of water 
from property directing it to the drainage system. 

 
17. To determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 

drainage system, the viewers conducted a condition comparison comparing the 
expected, pre-ditch, unaltered state of the watershed to the existing, altered and 
improved condition of the watershed. The viewers used this comparison in 
determining the increased market value of the properties receiving a direct 
drainage benefit.  
 

18. Based on their detailed observations, the viewers determined benefit 
classifications, classified acres, and assigned economic benefit on a per acre 
basis. 
 

19. The viewers determined that some acres within the watershed of the drainage 
system, i.e. existing wetlands and non-contributing basins, received a change in 
benefits from the drainage system. 
 

20. The viewers accounted for the efficiency of the drainage system, as designed, and 
the proximity of lands to and the elevations of lands above the ditch. 
 

21. The viewers applied an economic analysis using sales and income approaches to 
determine the increased value to each classification acre based on the drainage 
benefit provided by the drainage system. 

 
22. The viewers determined the amount of economic benefit to property benefited 

immediately by the drainage system, or for property for which the drainage system 
can become an outlet for drainage, make an outlet more accessible, or otherwise 
directly benefit the property. 
 

23. The viewers determined economic benefits based on:  (1) an increase in the 
current market value of the property as a result of constructing the project; (2) an 
increase in the potential for agricultural production as a result of constructing the 
project; or (3) an increased value of the property as a result of potential different 
land use.  
 



Redwood County Ditch 55 Findings and Order 

 

Page 4 of 7 

 

24. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers determined benefits on 
property that are responsible for increased drainage system maintenance, or 
increased drainage system capacity because the natural drainage on the property 
has been altered or modified to accelerate the drainage of water from the property.  
 

25. The viewers kept an accurate account of all time engaged in viewing and 
examination; the nature and kind of work performed; the days each viewer was 
engaged in said work; the amount charged per day by each viewer; and every item 
of expense incurred by the viewers in said work.  
 

26. The viewers’ account of work has been filed with the drainage authority.  
 
27. Upon review of information provided to the Board during the public hearing, the 

Board further finds and confirms its earlier findings that the benefits and damages 
determined in the original proceedings, as well as the benefited and damaged 
areas determined in the original proceedings, do not reflect current, existing, actual 
benefits and benefitted areas.  
 

28. The viewers’ report is attached as Exhibit A.   
 

29. The benefits and damages statement is attached as Exhibit B.  
 
30. During the public hearing portion of the proceedings, the following persons 

appeared and provided comment.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

31. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Groebner moved to 
accept the Redetermination of Benefits Report. Commissioner Forkrud seconded, 
and the motion carried.  
 

32. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Wakefield moved to 
Set the payment terms as paid in full within 60 days, placed on taxes for 3 years 
at 4% interest, with all financed bills under $100.00 to be paid in the first year. 
Commissioner Groebner seconded and the motion carried.  
 

33. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Salfer moved to direct 
staff to prepare Findings and an Order consistent with the proceedings. 
Commissioner Groebner seconded, and the motion carried.  
 



Redwood County Ditch 55 Findings and Order 

 

Page 5 of 7 

 

34. Based on the proceedings herein, the evidence presented during the pendency of 
these proceedings, the testimony of the viewers, and the public comments 
received, the Board finds: 
 

a. that the viewers’ report has been made and other proceedings have been 
completed under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 103E;  

 

b. that the viewers’ report is complete and correct; 
 

c. that no evidence was presented in opposition to the benefits and damages 
determined by the viewers in the viewers’ report; 

 

d. that the redetermined benefits and damages, as reflected in the viewers’ 
report as Exhibit A, and as described in the benefits and damages 
statement as Exhibit B, are proper, reasonable, and conform to the 
drainage code; and 

 
Order: 

Based on the foregoing Findings and the entire record of proceedings before the Board, 

the Board, acting as the drainage authority for Redwood County Ditch 55, hereby orders 

as follows: 

 

A. The redetermined benefits of Redwood County Ditch 55, the viewers’ report 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, and the benefits and damages statement attached 
hereto as Exhibit B are hereby adopted by the Board and shall be used in place 
of the original benefits and damages in all subsequent proceedings. 

 

B. The viewers are allowed payment of their account of work.  
 

C. The County Auditor shall ensure that the redetermined benefits replace the existing 
benefits previously determined for Redwood County Ditch 55. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Redwood County Ditch 55 Findings and Order 

 

Page 6 of 7 

 

  
 
After discussion, the Board Chair called the question. The question was on the adoption 

of the foregoing findings and order, and there were, ____yeas, ____nays, ____ absent, 

and____ abstentions as follows: 

 Yea Nay Absent Abstain 
Wakefield     
Groebner     

Forkrud     
Salfer     

Van Hee     
 

Upon vote, the Chair declared the motion passed and the Findings and Order adopted. 

 

 

_______________________________         Dated: __________________ 

Rick Wakefield, Chairperson  



Redwood County Ditch 55 Findings and Order 

 

Page 7 of 7 

 

*   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   * 

I, Nick Brozek, Redwood County Land Sue Supervisor, do hereby certify that I have 

compared the above motion; findings and order with the original thereof as the same 

appears of record and on file with the Redwood County Ditch 55 and find the same to be 

a true and correct transcript thereof. The above order was filed with me, Nick Brozek, 

Redwood County Land Use Supervisor, on _______________ 

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this  

____ day of ___________, _____. 

 

             

    ______________________________  

           Nick Brozek  

 

 

 

 
 



CD 63 Drainage Authority 
 

Agenda 
 

In the Matter of the Redetermination of Benefits 

January 17, 2023, 10:00 a.m. 

Redwood County Government Center  

Redwood Falls, Minnesota 
 

 

1. Adopt Agenda 
 

2. Purpose of Public Hearing – Commissioner Wakefield 

o 2 main reasons for redetermination  

 To bring in lands that are benefiting from the system, but which are not 

currently paying benefits.  When systems were initially viewed, only wet acres 

were assessed benefits.  However, with changes in drainage practices, all acres 

now have the potential to benefit from the system and should be brought in to 

pay their fair share.   

 To bring the value of the ditch system up to current dollar values to have the 

ability to make repairs or allow landowners to petition for an improvement.   
 

3. Jurisdictional and Notice Documents – Nick Brozek 
 

4. Presentation of Viewers’ Report – Jim Weidemann 
 

5. Landowners and Interested Parties 

o Has there been any written testimony for the record? 

o Landowners wishing to speak should state their name for public record   
 

6. Close public Comment 
 

7. Possible Action by Drainage Authority  

o Approve Viewers’ Report as Presented 

o Continue Hearing for Further Information or Amendments 

o Reject viewers report 
 

8. Set repayment terms (suggested) 

o Paid in full within 60 days or it will be put on the property taxes for up to 3 years at 4% 

interest, if the amount owed is less than $100, the entire amount will be put on taxes in 

the first year. 
 

9. Order Land Use Supervisor Brozek to draft a findings and order consistent with the Boards 

decision.   
 

10. Adjourn 

 



Redwood County Ditch 63 Findings and Order 

 

Page 1 of 7 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

Before the 

Redwood County 

SITTING AS THE DRAINAGE AUTHORITY FOR  

County Ditch 63 

 

 

 

In the Matter of: 

 

the Redetermination of Benefits for 

County Ditch 63 

 

 

FINDINGS AND ORDER APPROVING 

THE REDETERMINATION OF 

BENEFITS, ACQUIRING GRASS 

BUFFER, CONFIRMING DAMAGES, 

AND DIRECTING PAYMENT 

 

The Redwood County Board of Commissioners, sitting as the drainage authority for 

County Ditch 63, pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 103E.351, having adopted findings and 

ordered a redetermination of benefits on 02/01/2022; having appointed three viewers to 

redetermine and report the benefits and damages; having received the viewers’ report; 

having followed proper notice requirements in Minn. Stat. § 103E.351; and having held a 

public hearing and followed all requirements of chapter 103E, based on the record and 

proceedings, Commissioner ________________ moved, seconded by Commissioner 

_______________to adopt the following Findings and Order: 

 

Findings: 

 

1. Redwood County Board of Commissioners is the drainage authority for County 
Ditch 63. 
 

2. On 02/01/2022, the drainage authority adopted findings and ordered the initiation 
of a redetermination of benefits and damages for County Ditch 63 pursuant to 
Minn. Stat. § 103E.351. Jim Weidemann, Steve Johnson, and Todd Hammer as 
viewers 
 

3. County Environmental Director Scott Wold administered the Viewers’ Oath on 
03/16/2022 

 
4. The viewers completed their report, which included a benefits and damages 

statement, on 12/01/2022, for all property affected by the drainage system and 
filed their report with the drainage authority.  

 



Redwood County Ditch 63 Findings and Order 

 

Page 2 of 7 

 

5. The Environmental Director under direction from the drainage authority Board, 
prepared property owners’ reports and mailed them to the owners of property 
identified in the viewers’ report.  
 

6. The drainage authority, by order, set a public hearing for review of the viewers’ 
report on 12/13/2022, which is within 30 days after the property owners’ reports 
were mailed. 

 
7. A printed copy of the final hearing notice was posted for at least three weeks before 

the date of the final hearing at the front door of the Government Center of Redwood 
County.  

 
8. Notice of the final hearing was published in the Redwood Gazette, for three 

successive weeks prior to the hearing. 
 
9. Within one week after the first publication of the notice, the Redwood County 

Environmental Director provided notice by mail of the time and location of the final 
hearing to the commissioner of natural resources, all property owners, and others 
affected by the redetermination of benefits and listed in the viewers’ report. 

 
10. Proper notice of the redetermination hearing was made in conjunction with Minn. 

Stat. § 103E.351 requirements and chapters 103E. A record of the notice 
requirements is on file with the drainage authority. 

 
11. Evidence of all actions in this matter, including findings and orders, appointments, 

oaths, affidavits of mailing, publication, and posting as well as hearing agendas, 
presentation materials, and recordings are present in the record of proceedings 
and are incorporated by reference. 

 
12. The drainage authority held a public hearing on the redetermination of benefits on 

01/17/2023 at 10:00 a.m. at Redwood County Government Center.  
 
13. At the public hearing, Jim Weidemann, one of the duly appointed viewers, 

presented the viewers’ report and explained the process of completing the viewers’ 
report. Weidemann further provided detail of the viewing process and the 
information used by the viewers to:  (1) verify the boundary of the watershed of the 
drainage system; (2) verify and confirm the existence of drainage benefit; and (3) 
determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 
construction of County Ditch 63. 

 
14. The viewers reviewed all property within the drainage areas of the drainage system 

as part of the redetermination of benefits process. The viewers determined the 
amount of damages to be paid for the acquisition of property for the establishment 
of best management practices, including grass strips, necessary to control erosion, 
sedimentation, improve water quality, or maintain the efficiency of the drainage 



Redwood County Ditch 63 Findings and Order 

 

Page 3 of 7 

 

system as required under Minn. Stat. § 103E.021. The viewers compared sales in 
the area in arriving at an average sales price used in establishing a payment rate. 

 
15. The viewers used maps, LiDAR data, and other information, along with visual 

inspection of the watershed of the drainage system, to determine the boundaries 
of the benefiting area.  

 
16. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers paid particular attention 

to altered land use and drainage alterations which facilitate the removal of water 
from property directing it to the drainage system. 

 
17. To determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 

drainage system, the viewers conducted a condition comparison comparing the 
expected, pre-ditch, unaltered state of the watershed to the existing, altered and 
improved condition of the watershed. The viewers used this comparison in 
determining the increased market value of the properties receiving a direct 
drainage benefit.  
 

18. Based on their detailed observations, the viewers determined benefit 
classifications, classified acres, and assigned economic benefit on a per acre 
basis. 
 

19. The viewers determined that some acres within the watershed of the drainage 
system, i.e. existing wetlands and non-contributing basins, received a change in 
benefits from the drainage system. 
 

20. The viewers accounted for the efficiency of the drainage system, as designed, and 
the proximity of lands to and the elevations of lands above the ditch. 
 

21. The viewers applied an economic analysis using sales and income approaches to 
determine the increased value to each classification acre based on the drainage 
benefit provided by the drainage system. 

 
22. The viewers determined the amount of economic benefit to property benefited 

immediately by the drainage system, or for property for which the drainage system 
can become an outlet for drainage, make an outlet more accessible, or otherwise 
directly benefit the property. 
 

23. The viewers determined economic benefits based on:  (1) an increase in the 
current market value of the property as a result of constructing the project; (2) an 
increase in the potential for agricultural production as a result of constructing the 
project; or (3) an increased value of the property as a result of potential different 
land use.  
 



Redwood County Ditch 63 Findings and Order 

 

Page 4 of 7 

 

24. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers determined benefits on 
property that are responsible for increased drainage system maintenance, or 
increased drainage system capacity because the natural drainage on the property 
has been altered or modified to accelerate the drainage of water from the property.  
 

25. The viewers kept an accurate account of all time engaged in viewing and 
examination; the nature and kind of work performed; the days each viewer was 
engaged in said work; the amount charged per day by each viewer; and every item 
of expense incurred by the viewers in said work.  
 

26. The viewers’ account of work has been filed with the drainage authority.  
 
27. Upon review of information provided to the Board during the public hearing, the 

Board further finds and confirms its earlier findings that the benefits and damages 
determined in the original proceedings, as well as the benefited and damaged 
areas determined in the original proceedings, do not reflect current, existing, actual 
benefits and benefitted areas.  
 

28. The viewers’ report is attached as Exhibit A.   
 

29. The benefits and damages statement is attached as Exhibit B.  
 
30. During the public hearing portion of the proceedings, the following persons 

appeared and provided comment.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

31. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Groebner moved to 
accept the Redetermination of Benefits Report. Commissioner Forkrud seconded, 
and the motion carried.  
 

32. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Wakefield moved to 
Set the payment terms as paid in full within 60 days, placed on taxes for 3 years 
at 4% interest, with all financed bills under $100.00 to be paid in the first year. 
Commissioner Groebner seconded and the motion carried.  
 

33. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Salfer moved to direct 
staff to prepare Findings and an Order consistent with the proceedings. 
Commissioner Groebner seconded, and the motion carried.  
 



Redwood County Ditch 63 Findings and Order 

 

Page 5 of 7 

 

34. Based on the proceedings herein, the evidence presented during the pendency of 
these proceedings, the testimony of the viewers, and the public comments 
received, the Board finds: 
 

a. that the viewers’ report has been made and other proceedings have been 
completed under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 103E;  

 

b. that the viewers’ report is complete and correct; 
 

c. that no evidence was presented in opposition to the benefits and damages 
determined by the viewers in the viewers’ report; 

 

d. that the redetermined benefits and damages, as reflected in the viewers’ 
report as Exhibit A, and as described in the benefits and damages 
statement as Exhibit B, are proper, reasonable, and conform to the 
drainage code; and 

 
Order: 

Based on the foregoing Findings and the entire record of proceedings before the Board, 

the Board, acting as the drainage authority for Redwood County Ditch 63, hereby orders 

as follows: 

 

A. The redetermined benefits of Redwood County Ditch 63, the viewers’ report 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, and the benefits and damages statement attached 
hereto as Exhibit B are hereby adopted by the Board and shall be used in place 
of the original benefits and damages in all subsequent proceedings. 

 

B. The viewers are allowed payment of their account of work.  
 

C. The County Auditor shall ensure that the redetermined benefits replace the existing 
benefits previously determined for Redwood County Ditch 63. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Redwood County Ditch 63 Findings and Order 

 

Page 6 of 7 

 

  
 
After discussion, the Board Chair called the question. The question was on the adoption 

of the foregoing findings and order, and there were, ____yeas, ____nays, ____ absent, 

and____ abstentions as follows: 

 Yea Nay Absent Abstain 
Wakefield     
Groebner     

Forkrud     
Salfer     

Van Hee     
 

Upon vote, the Chair declared the motion passed and the Findings and Order adopted. 

 

 

_______________________________         Dated: __________________ 

Rick Wakefield, Chairperson  



Redwood County Ditch 63 Findings and Order 

 

Page 7 of 7 

 

*   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   * 

I, Nick Brozek, Redwood County Land Sue Supervisor, do hereby certify that I have 

compared the above motion; findings and order with the original thereof as the same 

appears of record and on file with the Redwood County Ditch 63 and find the same to be 

a true and correct transcript thereof. The above order was filed with me, Nick Brozek, 

Redwood County Land Use Supervisor, on _______________ 

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this  

____ day of ___________, _____. 

 

             

    ______________________________  

           Nick Brozek  

 

 

 

 
 



CD 65 Drainage Authority 
 

Agenda 
 

In the Matter of the Redetermination of Benefits 

January 17, 2023, 10:00 a.m. 

Redwood County Government Center  

Redwood Falls, Minnesota 
 

 

1. Adopt Agenda 
 

2. Purpose of Public Hearing – Commissioner Wakefield 

o 2 main reasons for redetermination  

 To bring in lands that are benefiting from the system, but which are not 

currently paying benefits.  When systems were initially viewed, only wet acres 

were assessed benefits.  However, with changes in drainage practices, all acres 

now have the potential to benefit from the system and should be brought in to 

pay their fair share.   

 To bring the value of the ditch system up to current dollar values to have the 

ability to make repairs or allow landowners to petition for an improvement.   
 

3. Jurisdictional and Notice Documents – Nick Brozek 
 

4. Presentation of Viewers’ Report – Jim Weidemann 
 

5. Landowners and Interested Parties 

o Has there been any written testimony for the record? 

o Landowners wishing to speak should state their name for public record   
 

6. Close public Comment 
 

7. Possible Action by Drainage Authority  

o Approve Viewers’ Report as Presented 

o Continue Hearing for Further Information or Amendments 

o Reject viewers report 
 

8. Set repayment terms (suggested) 

o Paid in full within 60 days or it will be put on the property taxes for up to 3 years at 4% 

interest, if the amount owed is less than $100, the entire amount will be put on taxes in 

the first year. 
 

9. Order Land Use Supervisor Brozek to draft a findings and order consistent with the Boards 

decision.   
 

10. Adjourn 

 



Redwood County Ditch 65 Findings and Order 

 

Page 1 of 7 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

Before the 

Redwood County 

SITTING AS THE DRAINAGE AUTHORITY FOR  

County Ditch 65 

 

 

 

In the Matter of: 

 

the Redetermination of Benefits for 

County Ditch 65 

 

 

FINDINGS AND ORDER APPROVING 

THE REDETERMINATION OF 

BENEFITS, ACQUIRING GRASS 

BUFFER, CONFIRMING DAMAGES, 

AND DIRECTING PAYMENT 

 

The Redwood County Board of Commissioners, sitting as the drainage authority for 

County Ditch 65, pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 103E.351, having adopted findings and 

ordered a redetermination of benefits on 02/01/2022; having appointed three viewers to 

redetermine and report the benefits and damages; having received the viewers’ report; 

having followed proper notice requirements in Minn. Stat. § 103E.351; and having held a 

public hearing and followed all requirements of chapter 103E, based on the record and 

proceedings, Commissioner ________________ moved, seconded by Commissioner 

_______________to adopt the following Findings and Order: 

 

Findings: 

 

1. Redwood County Board of Commissioners is the drainage authority for County 
Ditch 65. 
 

2. On 02/01/2022, the drainage authority adopted findings and ordered the initiation 
of a redetermination of benefits and damages for County Ditch 65 pursuant to 
Minn. Stat. § 103E.351. Jim Weidemann, Steve Johnson, and Todd Hammer as 
viewers 
 

3. County Environmental Director Scott Wold administered the Viewers’ Oath on 
03/16/2022 

 
4. The viewers completed their report, which included a benefits and damages 

statement, on 12/01/2022, for all property affected by the drainage system and 
filed their report with the drainage authority.  

 



Redwood County Ditch 65 Findings and Order 

 

Page 2 of 7 

 

5. The Environmental Director under direction from the drainage authority Board, 
prepared property owners’ reports and mailed them to the owners of property 
identified in the viewers’ report.  
 

6. The drainage authority, by order, set a public hearing for review of the viewers’ 
report on 12/13/2022, which is within 30 days after the property owners’ reports 
were mailed. 

 
7. A printed copy of the final hearing notice was posted for at least three weeks before 

the date of the final hearing at the front door of the Government Center of Redwood 
County.  

 
8. Notice of the final hearing was published in the Redwood Gazette, for three 

successive weeks prior to the hearing. 
 
9. Within one week after the first publication of the notice, the Redwood County 

Environmental Director provided notice by mail of the time and location of the final 
hearing to the commissioner of natural resources, all property owners, and others 
affected by the redetermination of benefits and listed in the viewers’ report. 

 
10. Proper notice of the redetermination hearing was made in conjunction with Minn. 

Stat. § 103E.351 requirements and chapters 103E. A record of the notice 
requirements is on file with the drainage authority. 

 
11. Evidence of all actions in this matter, including findings and orders, appointments, 

oaths, affidavits of mailing, publication, and posting as well as hearing agendas, 
presentation materials, and recordings are present in the record of proceedings 
and are incorporated by reference. 

 
12. The drainage authority held a public hearing on the redetermination of benefits on 

01/17/2023 at 10:00 a.m. at Redwood County Government Center.  
 
13. At the public hearing, Jim Weidemann, one of the duly appointed viewers, 

presented the viewers’ report and explained the process of completing the viewers’ 
report. Weidemann further provided detail of the viewing process and the 
information used by the viewers to:  (1) verify the boundary of the watershed of the 
drainage system; (2) verify and confirm the existence of drainage benefit; and (3) 
determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 
construction of County Ditch 65. 

 
14. The viewers reviewed all property within the drainage areas of the drainage system 

as part of the redetermination of benefits process. The viewers determined the 
amount of damages to be paid for the acquisition of property for the establishment 
of best management practices, including grass strips, necessary to control erosion, 
sedimentation, improve water quality, or maintain the efficiency of the drainage 



Redwood County Ditch 65 Findings and Order 

 

Page 3 of 7 

 

system as required under Minn. Stat. § 103E.021. The viewers compared sales in 
the area in arriving at an average sales price used in establishing a payment rate. 

 
15. The viewers used maps, LiDAR data, and other information, along with visual 

inspection of the watershed of the drainage system, to determine the boundaries 
of the benefiting area.  

 
16. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers paid particular attention 

to altered land use and drainage alterations which facilitate the removal of water 
from property directing it to the drainage system. 

 
17. To determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 

drainage system, the viewers conducted a condition comparison comparing the 
expected, pre-ditch, unaltered state of the watershed to the existing, altered and 
improved condition of the watershed. The viewers used this comparison in 
determining the increased market value of the properties receiving a direct 
drainage benefit.  
 

18. Based on their detailed observations, the viewers determined benefit 
classifications, classified acres, and assigned economic benefit on a per acre 
basis. 
 

19. The viewers determined that some acres within the watershed of the drainage 
system, i.e. existing wetlands and non-contributing basins, received a change in 
benefits from the drainage system. 
 

20. The viewers accounted for the efficiency of the drainage system, as designed, and 
the proximity of lands to and the elevations of lands above the ditch. 
 

21. The viewers applied an economic analysis using sales and income approaches to 
determine the increased value to each classification acre based on the drainage 
benefit provided by the drainage system. 

 
22. The viewers determined the amount of economic benefit to property benefited 

immediately by the drainage system, or for property for which the drainage system 
can become an outlet for drainage, make an outlet more accessible, or otherwise 
directly benefit the property. 
 

23. The viewers determined economic benefits based on:  (1) an increase in the 
current market value of the property as a result of constructing the project; (2) an 
increase in the potential for agricultural production as a result of constructing the 
project; or (3) an increased value of the property as a result of potential different 
land use.  
 



Redwood County Ditch 65 Findings and Order 

 

Page 4 of 7 

 

24. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers determined benefits on 
property that are responsible for increased drainage system maintenance, or 
increased drainage system capacity because the natural drainage on the property 
has been altered or modified to accelerate the drainage of water from the property.  
 

25. The viewers kept an accurate account of all time engaged in viewing and 
examination; the nature and kind of work performed; the days each viewer was 
engaged in said work; the amount charged per day by each viewer; and every item 
of expense incurred by the viewers in said work.  
 

26. The viewers’ account of work has been filed with the drainage authority.  
 
27. Upon review of information provided to the Board during the public hearing, the 

Board further finds and confirms its earlier findings that the benefits and damages 
determined in the original proceedings, as well as the benefited and damaged 
areas determined in the original proceedings, do not reflect current, existing, actual 
benefits and benefitted areas.  
 

28. The viewers’ report is attached as Exhibit A.   
 

29. The benefits and damages statement is attached as Exhibit B.  
 
30. During the public hearing portion of the proceedings, the following persons 

appeared and provided comment.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

31. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Groebner moved to 
accept the Redetermination of Benefits Report. Commissioner Forkrud seconded, 
and the motion carried.  
 

32. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Wakefield moved to 
Set the payment terms as paid in full within 60 days, placed on taxes for 3 years 
at 4% interest, with all financed bills under $100.00 to be paid in the first year. 
Commissioner Groebner seconded and the motion carried.  
 

33. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Salfer moved to direct 
staff to prepare Findings and an Order consistent with the proceedings. 
Commissioner Groebner seconded, and the motion carried.  
 



Redwood County Ditch 65 Findings and Order 

 

Page 5 of 7 

 

34. Based on the proceedings herein, the evidence presented during the pendency of 
these proceedings, the testimony of the viewers, and the public comments 
received, the Board finds: 
 

a. that the viewers’ report has been made and other proceedings have been 
completed under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 103E;  

 

b. that the viewers’ report is complete and correct; 
 

c. that no evidence was presented in opposition to the benefits and damages 
determined by the viewers in the viewers’ report; 

 

d. that the redetermined benefits and damages, as reflected in the viewers’ 
report as Exhibit A, and as described in the benefits and damages 
statement as Exhibit B, are proper, reasonable, and conform to the 
drainage code; and 

 
Order: 

Based on the foregoing Findings and the entire record of proceedings before the Board, 

the Board, acting as the drainage authority for Redwood County Ditch 65, hereby orders 

as follows: 

 

A. The redetermined benefits of Redwood County Ditch 65, the viewers’ report 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, and the benefits and damages statement attached 
hereto as Exhibit B are hereby adopted by the Board and shall be used in place 
of the original benefits and damages in all subsequent proceedings. 

 

B. The viewers are allowed payment of their account of work.  
 

C. The County Auditor shall ensure that the redetermined benefits replace the existing 
benefits previously determined for Redwood County Ditch 65. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Redwood County Ditch 65 Findings and Order 

 

Page 6 of 7 

 

  
 
After discussion, the Board Chair called the question. The question was on the adoption 

of the foregoing findings and order, and there were, ____yeas, ____nays, ____ absent, 

and____ abstentions as follows: 

 Yea Nay Absent Abstain 
Wakefield     
Groebner     

Forkrud     
Salfer     

Van Hee     
 

Upon vote, the Chair declared the motion passed and the Findings and Order adopted. 

 

 

_______________________________         Dated: __________________ 

Rick Wakefield, Chairperson  



Redwood County Ditch 65 Findings and Order 

 

Page 7 of 7 

 

*   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   * 

I, Nick Brozek, Redwood County Land Sue Supervisor, do hereby certify that I have 

compared the above motion; findings and order with the original thereof as the same 

appears of record and on file with the Redwood County Ditch 65 and find the same to be 

a true and correct transcript thereof. The above order was filed with me, Nick Brozek, 

Redwood County Land Use Supervisor, on _______________ 

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this  

____ day of ___________, _____. 

 

             

    ______________________________  

           Nick Brozek  

 

 

 

 
 



CD 66 Drainage Authority 
 

Agenda 
 

In the Matter of the Redetermination of Benefits 

January 17, 2023, 10:30 a.m. 

Redwood County Government Center  

Redwood Falls, Minnesota 
 

 

1. Adopt Agenda 
 

2. Purpose of Public Hearing – Commissioner Wakefield 

o 2 main reasons for redetermination  

 To bring in lands that are benefiting from the system, but which are not 

currently paying benefits.  When systems were initially viewed, only wet acres 

were assessed benefits.  However, with changes in drainage practices, all acres 

now have the potential to benefit from the system and should be brought in to 

pay their fair share.   

 To bring the value of the ditch system up to current dollar values to have the 

ability to make repairs or allow landowners to petition for an improvement.   
 

3. Jurisdictional and Notice Documents – Nick Brozek 
 

4. Presentation of Viewers’ Report – Mark Behrends  
 

5. Landowners and Interested Parties 

o Has there been any written testimony for the record? 

o Landowners wishing to speak should state their name for public record   
 

6. Close public Comment 
 

7. Possible Action by Drainage Authority  

o Approve Viewers’ Report as Presented 

o Continue Hearing for Further Information or Amendments 

o Reject viewers report 
 

8. Set repayment terms (suggested) 

o Paid in full within 60 days or it will be put on the property taxes for up to 3 years at 4% 

interest, if the amount owed is less than $100, the entire amount will be put on taxes in 

the first year. 
 

9. Order Land Use Supervisor Brozek to draft a findings and order consistent with the Boards 

decision.   
 

10. Adjourn 

 



Redwood County Ditch 66 Findings and Order 

 

Page 1 of 7 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

Before the 

Redwood County 

SITTING AS THE DRAINAGE AUTHORITY FOR  

County Ditch 66 

 

 

 

In the Matter of: 

 

the Redetermination of Benefits for 

County Ditch 66 

 

 

FINDINGS AND ORDER APPROVING 

THE REDETERMINATION OF 

BENEFITS, ACQUIRING GRASS 

BUFFER, CONFIRMING DAMAGES, 

AND DIRECTING PAYMENT 

 

The Redwood County Board of Commissioners, sitting as the drainage authority for 

County Ditch 66, pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 103E.351, having adopted findings and 

ordered a redetermination of benefits on 02/01/2022; having appointed three viewers to 

redetermine and report the benefits and damages; having received the viewers’ report; 

having followed proper notice requirements in Minn. Stat. § 103E.351; and having held a 

public hearing and followed all requirements of chapter 103E, based on the record and 

proceedings, Commissioner ________________ moved, seconded by Commissioner 

_______________to adopt the following Findings and Order: 

 

Findings: 

 

1. Redwood County Board of Commissioners is the drainage authority for County 
Ditch 66. 
 

2. On 02/01/2022, the drainage authority adopted findings and ordered the initiation 
of a redetermination of benefits and damages for County Ditch 66 pursuant to 
Minn. Stat. § 103E.351. Mark Behrends, Robert Hansen, Kendall Langseth, John 
Thompson, Bruce Ness, and Wes Dahl as viewers 
 

3. County Environmental Director Scott Wold administered the Viewers’ Oath on 
02/05/2022 

 
4. The viewers completed their report, which included a benefits and damages 

statement, on 12/01/2022, for all property affected by the drainage system and 
filed their report with the drainage authority.  

 



Redwood County Ditch 66 Findings and Order 

 

Page 2 of 7 

 

5. The Environmental Director under direction from the drainage authority Board, 
prepared property owners’ reports and mailed them to the owners of property 
identified in the viewers’ report.  
 

6. The drainage authority, by order, set a public hearing for review of the viewers’ 
report on 12/13/2022, which is within 30 days after the property owners’ reports 
were mailed. 

 
7. A printed copy of the final hearing notice was posted for at least three weeks before 

the date of the final hearing at the front door of the Government Center of Redwood 
County.  

 
8. Notice of the final hearing was published in the Redwood Gazette, for three 

successive weeks prior to the hearing. 
 
9. Within one week after the first publication of the notice, the Redwood County 

Environmental Director provided notice by mail of the time and location of the final 
hearing to the commissioner of natural resources, all property owners, and others 
affected by the redetermination of benefits and listed in the viewers’ report. 

 
10. Proper notice of the redetermination hearing was made in conjunction with Minn. 

Stat. § 103E.351 requirements and chapters 103E. A record of the notice 
requirements is on file with the drainage authority. 

 
11. Evidence of all actions in this matter, including findings and orders, appointments, 

oaths, affidavits of mailing, publication, and posting as well as hearing agendas, 
presentation materials, and recordings are present in the record of proceedings 
and are incorporated by reference. 

 
12. The drainage authority held a public hearing on the redetermination of benefits on 

01/17/2023 at 10:30 a.m. at Redwood County Government Center.  
 
13. At the public hearing, Mark Behrends, one of the duly appointed viewers, 

presented the viewers’ report and explained the process of completing the viewers’ 
report. Behrends further provided detail of the viewing process and the information 
used by the viewers to:  (1) verify the boundary of the watershed of the drainage 
system; (2) verify and confirm the existence of drainage benefit; and (3) determine 
the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the construction of 
County Ditch 66. 

 
14. The viewers reviewed all property within the drainage areas of the drainage system 

as part of the redetermination of benefits process. The viewers determined the 
amount of damages to be paid for the acquisition of property for the establishment 
of best management practices, including grass strips, necessary to control erosion, 
sedimentation, improve water quality, or maintain the efficiency of the drainage 



Redwood County Ditch 66 Findings and Order 

 

Page 3 of 7 

 

system as required under Minn. Stat. § 103E.021. The viewers compared sales in 
the area in arriving at an average sales price used in establishing a payment rate. 

 
15. The viewers used maps, LiDAR data, and other information, along with visual 

inspection of the watershed of the drainage system, to determine the boundaries 
of the benefiting area.  

 
16. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers paid particular attention 

to altered land use and drainage alterations which facilitate the removal of water 
from property directing it to the drainage system. 

 
17. To determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 

drainage system, the viewers conducted a condition comparison comparing the 
expected, pre-ditch, unaltered state of the watershed to the existing, altered and 
improved condition of the watershed. The viewers used this comparison in 
determining the increased market value of the properties receiving a direct 
drainage benefit.  
 

18. Based on their detailed observations, the viewers determined benefit 
classifications, classified acres, and assigned economic benefit on a per acre 
basis. 
 

19. The viewers determined that some acres within the watershed of the drainage 
system, i.e. existing wetlands and non-contributing basins, received a change in 
benefits from the drainage system. 
 

20. The viewers accounted for the efficiency of the drainage system, as designed, and 
the proximity of lands to and the elevations of lands above the ditch. 
 

21. The viewers applied an economic analysis using sales and income approaches to 
determine the increased value to each classification acre based on the drainage 
benefit provided by the drainage system. 

 
22. The viewers determined the amount of economic benefit to property benefited 

immediately by the drainage system, or for property for which the drainage system 
can become an outlet for drainage, make an outlet more accessible, or otherwise 
directly benefit the property. 
 

23. The viewers determined economic benefits based on:  (1) an increase in the 
current market value of the property as a result of constructing the project; (2) an 
increase in the potential for agricultural production as a result of constructing the 
project; or (3) an increased value of the property as a result of potential different 
land use.  
 



Redwood County Ditch 66 Findings and Order 

 

Page 4 of 7 

 

24. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers determined benefits on 
property that are responsible for increased drainage system maintenance, or 
increased drainage system capacity because the natural drainage on the property 
has been altered or modified to accelerate the drainage of water from the property.  
 

25. The viewers kept an accurate account of all time engaged in viewing and 
examination; the nature and kind of work performed; the days each viewer was 
engaged in said work; the amount charged per day by each viewer; and every item 
of expense incurred by the viewers in said work.  
 

26. The viewers’ account of work has been filed with the drainage authority.  
 
27. Upon review of information provided to the Board during the public hearing, the 

Board further finds and confirms its earlier findings that the benefits and damages 
determined in the original proceedings, as well as the benefited and damaged 
areas determined in the original proceedings, do not reflect current, existing, actual 
benefits and benefitted areas.  
 

28. The viewers’ report is attached as Exhibit A.   
 

29. The benefits and damages statement is attached as Exhibit B.  
 
30. During the public hearing portion of the proceedings, the following persons 

appeared and provided comment.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

31. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Groebner moved to 
accept the Redetermination of Benefits Report. Commissioner Forkrud seconded, 
and the motion carried.  
 

32. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Wakefield moved to 
Set the payment terms as paid in full within 60 days, placed on taxes for 3 years 
at 4% interest, with all financed bills under $100.00 to be paid in the first year. 
Commissioner Groebner seconded and the motion carried.  
 

33. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Salfer moved to direct 
staff to prepare Findings and an Order consistent with the proceedings. 
Commissioner Groebner seconded, and the motion carried.  
 



Redwood County Ditch 66 Findings and Order 

 

Page 5 of 7 

 

34. Based on the proceedings herein, the evidence presented during the pendency of 
these proceedings, the testimony of the viewers, and the public comments 
received, the Board finds: 
 

a. that the viewers’ report has been made and other proceedings have been 
completed under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 103E;  

 

b. that the viewers’ report is complete and correct; 
 

c. that no evidence was presented in opposition to the benefits and damages 
determined by the viewers in the viewers’ report; 

 

d. that the redetermined benefits and damages, as reflected in the viewers’ 
report as Exhibit A, and as described in the benefits and damages 
statement as Exhibit B, are proper, reasonable, and conform to the 
drainage code; and 

 
Order: 

Based on the foregoing Findings and the entire record of proceedings before the Board, 

the Board, acting as the drainage authority for Redwood County Ditch 66, hereby orders 

as follows: 

 

A. The redetermined benefits of Redwood County Ditch 66, the viewers’ report 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, and the benefits and damages statement attached 
hereto as Exhibit B are hereby adopted by the Board and shall be used in place 
of the original benefits and damages in all subsequent proceedings. 

 

B. The viewers are allowed payment of their account of work.  
 

C. The County Auditor shall ensure that the redetermined benefits replace the existing 
benefits previously determined for Redwood County Ditch 66. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Redwood County Ditch 66 Findings and Order 

 

Page 6 of 7 

 

  
 
After discussion, the Board Chair called the question. The question was on the adoption 

of the foregoing findings and order, and there were, ____yeas, ____nays, ____ absent, 

and____ abstentions as follows: 

 Yea Nay Absent Abstain 
Wakefield     
Groebner     

Forkrud     
Salfer     

Van Hee     
 

Upon vote, the Chair declared the motion passed and the Findings and Order adopted. 

 

 

_______________________________         Dated: __________________ 

Rick Wakefield, Chairperson  



Redwood County Ditch 66 Findings and Order 

 

Page 7 of 7 

 

*   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   * 

I, Nick Brozek, Redwood County Land Sue Supervisor, do hereby certify that I have 

compared the above motion; findings and order with the original thereof as the same 

appears of record and on file with the Redwood County Ditch 66 and find the same to be 

a true and correct transcript thereof. The above order was filed with me, Nick Brozek, 

Redwood County Land Use Supervisor, on _______________ 

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this  

____ day of ___________, _____. 

 

             

    ______________________________  

           Nick Brozek  

 

 

 

 
 



 

1 

 

State of Minnesota 
County of Redwood 

In the matter of the Redetermination 
Of Benefits of Redwood County CD-66 

Redwood County, Minnesota 
December 2, 2022 

(Draft) 
 

Property Owners Report 
 

 Pursuant to Minnesota Statute 103E.323, the following is the Property Owners Report 
from information in the Redwood County CD-66 Excel spreadsheet and Redwood County CD-
66 Viewers Report, in the matter of the redetermination of benefits and damages, and damaged 
and benefitted acres of Redwood County CD-66, Redwood County, Minnesota. 
 

1. This redetermination of benefits sets the percentage that you will be required to pay 
for all future repairs and maintenance on Redwood County CD-66 
 

2. The name and address of the property owner is shown on the Excel spreadsheet for 
Redwood County CD-66 

 
3. The description of each lot or tract and its area that is benefitted or damaged is 

shown on the Excel spreadsheet for Redwood County CD-66 
 

4. There are no acres added to any tract or lot and there are no public waters, 
wetlands, and other areas not currently being cultivated that are proposed to be 
drained in this proceeding 

 
5. There are no acres which before the drainage benefits could be realized would 

require a public waters work permit to work in public waters under 103G.245 to 
excavate or fill a navigable water body under United States Code, Title 33, Section 
403, or a permit to discharge into waters of United States under United States Code, 
Title 33, Section 1344. 

 
6. There are no acres being assessed for drainage of areas that would be considered 

conversion of a wetland under United States Code, Title 16, Section 3821, if the area 
was placed in agricultural production 

 
7. There are no damages to riparian rights 
 
8. Right-of-way acreage is not required for Redwood County CD-66 

 
9. The amount that each tract or lot will be benefitted or damaged is shown on the 

Excel spreadsheet for Redwood County CD-66 
 
10. The damages or benefits to the property are shown on the Excel spreadsheet for 

Redwood County CD-66 
 

11. No construction is planned as part of this proceeding. 
 



 

2 

 

12. A copy of the benefits and damages statement under 103E.321, Subdivision 2, 
relating to the property owner is on the Excel spreadsheet for Redwood County  
CD-66 
 

13. The percentage of the cost to be assessed to the property owner in future repair and 
maintenance proceedings is shown on the Excel spreadsheet for Redwood County 
CD-66 

 
14. The redetermination of benefits and damages and damaged and benefitted areas 

shall be used in place of the original benefits and damages and benefitted and 
damaged areas in all subsequent proceedings relating to the Redwood County CD-
66 drainage system. 

 
15. The full Viewer’s Report is available for public inspection at the Redwood County 

Environmental Office, 403 South Mill Street, Redwood Falls, Minnesota (507-637-
4023). 
 

16. The Viewers will be available to answer questions from interested parties on January 
10, 2023 from 9:30 AM to 11:30 AM at the Redwood County Government Center, 
Commissioners Room, 403 South Mill Street, Redwood Falls, Minnesota 56283.  

 
Benefits and damages statement 

 This report covers the redetermination for a previously constructed drainage system. 
The basis for determining benefits and damages is therefore, based upon a comparison of the 
conditions that would have existed prior to the County tile systems construction, with those that 
do exist with the drainage system in a reasonable state of repair. Supporting documentation for 
the analysis and conclusions of the report are contained in our files and are available for 
inspection. The figures stated herein are based on a full and fair comparison of all pertinent 
facts and information that we were aware of at the time of this redetermination process. The 
following aids were used in this viewing process. 
 

 Redwood County online GIS parcel information site 
 USDA web soil survey 
 Google Earth aerial satellite photos 
 Yield averages taken from USDA national agriculture statistics service 
 Production costs taken from University of Minnesota FinBin 
 Average commodity sale prices taken from University of Minnesota FinBin 
 Sales data from the Redwood County Assessor office and website 
 Visual inspection of each 40 acre parcel or less 
 Consultation with the Redwood County Environmental Office and Drainage Staff  

 
The Viewers determined that the lands affected by the drainage system are generally 

similar and that the following comments refer to all such tracts. 
 
1.  Existing land use, property value and economic productivity: 

  Land is presently used for building sites, roads and for agricultural purposes. 
The property value is consistent with most agricultural land sales within Redwood 
County. Agricultural lands are primarily used for the production of corn and 
soybeans. The land has good economic productivity when properly drained. 



 

3 

 

2.  Potential land use, property value and economic productivity from the 
drainage system:  
 The drainage system has been in existence for many years and provides 
drainage for agricultural purposes. The property value is consistent with most 
agricultural land sales within Redwood County. Land affected by the drainage 
system has the potential to produce above average yields. 
 

3. The benefits or damages from the drainage system: 
  Benefits derived by lands affected by the drainage system are due to (A) 
Improved capacity to remove surface waters due to previous construction and 
maintenance of the County tile system, which results in an increase in the current 
market value of property; or (B) an increase in the potential for agricultural production 
as a result of the previous construction and continued maintenance of the drainage 
system; or (C) increased value of the property as a result of potential different land 
use. 

 
4. There is no damage to any riparian rights. 

 
5. There are no acres added to any tract or lot and there are no public waters, 

wetlands, and other areas not currently being cultivated, that are proposed to be 
drained in this proceeding. 

 
6. There are no acres which before the drainage benefits could be realized would 

require a public waters work permit to work in public waters under 103G.245 to 
excavate or fill a navigable water body under United States Code, Title 33, Section 
403, or a permit to discharge into waters of United States under United States Code, 
Title 33, Section 1344. 

 
7. There are no acres being assessed for drainage of areas that would be considered 

conversion of a wetland under United States Code, Title 16, Section 3821, if the area 
was placed in agricultural production. 

 
   This report is respectfully submitted to the Drainage Authority of Redwood County CD-66 by: 
 
 

Mark Behrends ______________________________________________________ 
 
 
Robert Hansen ______________________________________________________ 

 
 

Kendall Langseth _____________________________________________________ 
 
 
Bruce Ness__________________________________________________________ 

 
 
                  Submitted this 2nd day of December 2022 



 

1 

 

Redwood County CD-66 
Redetermination of Benefits 

Viewers Report 
December 2, 2022 

(Draft) 
 

Valuation prior to drainage 
 Beginning land use, property value, and economic productivity have been determined with the 
consideration that the benefited properties within the watershed originally did not have an adequate 
outlet for artificial drainage. 
 

“A” – Standing water or cattails, wetland classification with economic productivity for agriculture 
purposes of $0 per acre, and a market value of $1,000 to $2,000  

“B” – Seasonally flooded/pasture ground. Pasture classification with economic productivity of 
$100 per acre based on grazing days and/or hay values, and a market value of $2,500 to 
$3,500. 

“C” – Wet subsoil – Generally farmable land with moderate crop potential, with annual economic 
productivity of $499 per acre based upon average annual yield of 70% of optimum with 
$329 production costs, and a market value of $4,000 to $5,000. 

“D” – Upland areas not needing much artificial drainage and intermixed with wetter soils, with 
annual economic productivity of $641 per acre based upon an average annual yield of 90% 
of optimum with $329 production costs, and a market value of $5,000 to $6,000. 

 
Valuation with NRCS recommended drainage 

 Potential land use, property value, and an increase in economic productivity, after public and 
private drainage have been installed as NRCS design standards as recommended in the Minnesota 
Drainage Guide, using current crop rotation, income, and expense. 
 

“A” – Drained slough area, medium classification land with economic productivity of $542                                
per acre based upon average production of 76% of optimum with $329 per acre production 
costs, and a market value of $5,000 to $6,500.  

“B” – Well drained ground, high land classification with economic productivity of $570 per acre 
based upon average annual production of 80% of optimum with $329 production costs, and 
a market value of $5,500 to $7,500. 

“C” – Well drained ground, highest land classification with economic productivity of $599 per acre 
based upon average annual production of 84% of optimum with $329 production costs, and 
a market value of $6,500 to $9,000. 

“D” – Well drained ground, high land classification with improved farm ability, with economic 
productivity of $699 per acre based upon average production of 98% of optimum with $329 
production costs, and a market value of $5,500 to $7,500. 

 
 Utilizing these productive values, potential benefit values were determined for the system based 
upon a 25 year effective life with proper maintenance. Private tile improvement cost were depreciated 
over the same 25 year period, and an allowance of 0.5% return on the system investment. A three year 
average Township yield was used for the benefit value calculations along with a three year average sale 
price for the corn and beans.  

 
Increased productivity 

 
Crop         Yield            Value        Income         %              Adjusted 
Corn        188.4            $4.47                    $842        50%       $421 
Beans          54.0          $10.80                     $583        50%       $292 
                                        $713 



 

2 

 

Production costs 
 
                      Corn        $430 X 50% = $215 
                      Beans      $228 X 50% = $114        
                                         $329 
 

Potential Benefit value 
 

       “A”             “B”                          “C”          “D” 
           76% of $713           80% of $713            84% of $713              98% of $713 
                 $542                      $570                    $599                   $699 
 
Minus cost 
of production     $329                  $329                        $329                           $329 
Net income                $213                $241                    $270                   $370 
Previous income        $0               $100                     $170                          $312 
Increased income    $213                       $141                    $100                     $57 
Private tile costs      $56                         $31                      $27                     $18 
Annual increase             $157                       $110                      $73                     $39 
 
Capitalized for  
25 years @ ½ %           $3,675          $2,585                     $1,707                    $915 
 
% of potential 
Benefit       40%                        40%                         40%                            40% 
 
Reduced benefit  
Value                            $1,470                   $1,034                       $683                           $366 
 
The potential benefit values have been reduced to reflect a less than optimum yield. 
 
 

Summary 
 Redwood County CD-66 consists of 965.33 acres of farmland, roads and building sites 
with benefits of $707,863. CD-66 is in Sheridan and Vail Townships in Redwood County.  
 

a. 928.33 acres of farmland and building sites with $678,293 of benefits 
b. 37.00 acres of County and Township roads with $29,570 of benefits 
c. 965.33 total acres with $707,863 of benefits 

 
 Benefit values were adjusted based on multiple factors including location to the County tile, 
drainage coefficient, and soil type. 
 

Average land benefits, (reduced) over a 25 year period are $888 per acre 
 a. A soil           $1,470 

 b. B soil           $1,034 
 c. C soil              $683 
 d. D soil            $366 

  
Building site benefits 

a. (Average of B + C + D soils) X 1.5 = $1,041 
 
 



 

3 

 

   Ponds, woodland, and non-benefited acres 
  a. $0  

 
 Road benefits 

a.   Gravel roads, County or Township 
          (Average land benefit) X 1.0 = $888 

b.           Paved roads, County or Township 
     (Average land benefit) X 1.5 = $1,332 
 

    Tile benefits 
a. A tile benefit was given for most County tile at a rate of $0.50 per linear foot. This 

value was given because of the ease of access for private tile, and for the drainage 
the County tile may provide. 35,000 feet of County tile in Redwood County CD-66 with 
$17,500 of tile benefits 
 

               Crop damages 
 Crop damages will be paid per acre on standing crops damaged by construction or 
repair on the County tile, as determined by the Redwood County Drainage Department.  

 
 

      Benefits and damages statement 
 This report covers the redetermination for a previously constructed drainage system. The basis 
for determining benefits and damages is therefore, based upon a comparison of the conditions that 
would have existed prior to the County tile systems construction, with those that do exist with the 
drainage system in a reasonable state of repair. Supporting documentation for the analysis and 
conclusions of the report are contained in our files and are available for inspection. The figures stated 
herein are based on a full and fair comparison of all pertinent facts and information that we were aware 
of at the time of this redetermination process. The following aids were used in this viewing process. 
 
 

 Redwood County online GIS parcel information site 
 USDA web soil survey 
 Google Earth aerial satellite photos 
 Yield averages taken from USDA national agriculture statistics service 
 Production costs taken from University of Minnesota FinBin 
 Average commodity sale prices taken from University Finbin  
 Sales data from Redwood County Assessor offices and websites 
 Visual inspection of each 40 acre parcel or less. 
 Consultation with the Redwood County Environmental Office and Drainage Staff 

 
 
The Viewers determined that the lands affected by the drainage system are generally similar and 

that the following comments refer to all such tracts. 
 
 
1.  Existing land use, property value and economic productivity: 

 Land is presently used for building sites, roads and for agricultural purposes. The property 
value is consistent with most agricultural land sales within Redwood County. Agricultural 
lands are primarily used for the production of corn and soybeans. The land has good 
economic productivity when properly drained. 
 
 



 

4 

 

2.  Potential land use, property value and economic productivity from the drainage 
system:  
 The drainage system has been in existence for many years and provides drainage for 
agricultural purposes. The property value is consistent with most agricultural land sales within 
Redwood County. Land affected by the drainage system has the potential to produce above 
average yields. 

 
3. The benefits or damages from the drainage system: 

  Benefits derived by lands affected by the drainage system are due to (A) Improved 
capacity to remove surface waters due to previous construction and maintenance of the 
County tile system, which results in an increase in the current market value of property; or 
(B) an increase in the potential for agricultural production as a result of the previous 
construction and continued maintenance of the drainage system; or (C) increased value of 
the property as a result of potential different land use. 

 
4. There is no damage to any riparian rights. 

 
5. There are no acres added to any tract or lot and there are no public waters, wetlands, and 

other areas not currently being cultivated, that are proposed to be drained in this proceeding. 
 

6. There are no acres which before the drainage benefits could be realized would require a 
public waters work permit to work in public waters under 103G.245 to excavate or fill a 
navigable water body under United States Code, Title 33, Section 403, or a permit to 
discharge into waters of United States under United States Code, Title 33, Section 1344. 

 
7. There are no acres being assessed for drainage of areas that would be considered 

conversion of a wetland under United States Code, Title 16, Section 3821, if the area was 
placed in agricultural production. 

 
 
   This report is respectfully submitted to the Drainage Authority of Redwood County CD-66 by: 
 
 

Mark Behrends______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Robert Hansen______________________________________________________________ 

 
 

Kendall Langseth ____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Bruce Ness_________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
                  Submitted this 2nd day of December 2022 



CD 74 Drainage Authority 
 

Agenda 
 

In the Matter of the Redetermination of Benefits 

January 17, 2023, 10:30 a.m. 

Redwood County Government Center  

Redwood Falls, Minnesota 
 

 

1. Adopt Agenda 
 

2. Purpose of Public Hearing – Commissioner Wakefield 

o 2 main reasons for redetermination  

 To bring in lands that are benefiting from the system, but which are not 

currently paying benefits.  When systems were initially viewed, only wet acres 

were assessed benefits.  However, with changes in drainage practices, all acres 

now have the potential to benefit from the system and should be brought in to 

pay their fair share.   

 To bring the value of the ditch system up to current dollar values to have the 

ability to make repairs or allow landowners to petition for an improvement.   
 

3. Jurisdictional and Notice Documents – Nick Brozek 
 

4. Presentation of Viewers’ Report – Mark Behrends  
 

5. Landowners and Interested Parties 

o Has there been any written testimony for the record? 

o Landowners wishing to speak should state their name for public record   
 

6. Close public Comment 
 

7. Possible Action by Drainage Authority  

o Approve Viewers’ Report as Presented 

o Continue Hearing for Further Information or Amendments 

o Reject viewers report 
 

8. Set repayment terms (suggested) 

o Paid in full within 60 days or it will be put on the property taxes for up to 3 years at 4% 

interest, if the amount owed is less than $100, the entire amount will be put on taxes in 

the first year. 
 

9. Order Land Use Supervisor Brozek to draft a findings and order consistent with the Boards 

decision.   
 

10. Adjourn 

 



Redwood County Ditch 74 Findings and Order 

 

Page 1 of 7 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

Before the 

Redwood County 

SITTING AS THE DRAINAGE AUTHORITY FOR  

County Ditch 74 

 

 

 

In the Matter of: 

 

the Redetermination of Benefits for 

County Ditch 74 

 

 

FINDINGS AND ORDER APPROVING 

THE REDETERMINATION OF 

BENEFITS, ACQUIRING GRASS 

BUFFER, CONFIRMING DAMAGES, 

AND DIRECTING PAYMENT 

 

The Redwood County Board of Commissioners, sitting as the drainage authority for 

County Ditch 74, pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 103E.351, having adopted findings and 

ordered a redetermination of benefits on 02/01/2022; having appointed three viewers to 

redetermine and report the benefits and damages; having received the viewers’ report; 

having followed proper notice requirements in Minn. Stat. § 103E.351; and having held a 

public hearing and followed all requirements of chapter 103E, based on the record and 

proceedings, Commissioner ________________ moved, seconded by Commissioner 

_______________to adopt the following Findings and Order: 

 

Findings: 

 

1. Redwood County Board of Commissioners is the drainage authority for County 
Ditch 74. 
 

2. On 02/01/2022, the drainage authority adopted findings and ordered the initiation 
of a redetermination of benefits and damages for County Ditch 74 pursuant to 
Minn. Stat. § 103E.351. Mark Behrends, Robert Hansen, Kendall Langseth, John 
Thompson, Bruce Ness, and Wes Dahl as viewers 
 

3. County Environmental Director Scott Wold administered the Viewers’ Oath on 
02/05/2022 

 
4. The viewers completed their report, which included a benefits and damages 

statement, on 12/01/2022, for all property affected by the drainage system and 
filed their report with the drainage authority.  

 



Redwood County Ditch 74 Findings and Order 

 

Page 2 of 7 

 

5. The Environmental Director under direction from the drainage authority Board, 
prepared property owners’ reports and mailed them to the owners of property 
identified in the viewers’ report.  
 

6. The drainage authority, by order, set a public hearing for review of the viewers’ 
report on 12/13/2022, which is within 30 days after the property owners’ reports 
were mailed. 

 
7. A printed copy of the final hearing notice was posted for at least three weeks before 

the date of the final hearing at the front door of the Government Center of Redwood 
County.  

 
8. Notice of the final hearing was published in the Redwood Gazette, for three 

successive weeks prior to the hearing. 
 
9. Within one week after the first publication of the notice, the Redwood County 

Environmental Director provided notice by mail of the time and location of the final 
hearing to the commissioner of natural resources, all property owners, and others 
affected by the redetermination of benefits and listed in the viewers’ report. 

 
10. Proper notice of the redetermination hearing was made in conjunction with Minn. 

Stat. § 103E.351 requirements and chapters 103E. A record of the notice 
requirements is on file with the drainage authority. 

 
11. Evidence of all actions in this matter, including findings and orders, appointments, 

oaths, affidavits of mailing, publication, and posting as well as hearing agendas, 
presentation materials, and recordings are present in the record of proceedings 
and are incorporated by reference. 

 
12. The drainage authority held a public hearing on the redetermination of benefits on 

01/17/2023 at 10:30 a.m. at Redwood County Government Center.  
 
13. At the public hearing, Mark Behrends, one of the duly appointed viewers, 

presented the viewers’ report and explained the process of completing the viewers’ 
report. Behrends further provided detail of the viewing process and the information 
used by the viewers to:  (1) verify the boundary of the watershed of the drainage 
system; (2) verify and confirm the existence of drainage benefit; and (3) determine 
the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the construction of 
County Ditch 74. 

 
14. The viewers reviewed all property within the drainage areas of the drainage system 

as part of the redetermination of benefits process. The viewers determined the 
amount of damages to be paid for the acquisition of property for the establishment 
of best management practices, including grass strips, necessary to control erosion, 
sedimentation, improve water quality, or maintain the efficiency of the drainage 



Redwood County Ditch 74 Findings and Order 

 

Page 3 of 7 

 

system as required under Minn. Stat. § 103E.021. The viewers compared sales in 
the area in arriving at an average sales price used in establishing a payment rate. 

 
15. The viewers used maps, LiDAR data, and other information, along with visual 

inspection of the watershed of the drainage system, to determine the boundaries 
of the benefiting area.  

 
16. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers paid particular attention 

to altered land use and drainage alterations which facilitate the removal of water 
from property directing it to the drainage system. 

 
17. To determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 

drainage system, the viewers conducted a condition comparison comparing the 
expected, pre-ditch, unaltered state of the watershed to the existing, altered and 
improved condition of the watershed. The viewers used this comparison in 
determining the increased market value of the properties receiving a direct 
drainage benefit.  
 

18. Based on their detailed observations, the viewers determined benefit 
classifications, classified acres, and assigned economic benefit on a per acre 
basis. 
 

19. The viewers determined that some acres within the watershed of the drainage 
system, i.e. existing wetlands and non-contributing basins, received a change in 
benefits from the drainage system. 
 

20. The viewers accounted for the efficiency of the drainage system, as designed, and 
the proximity of lands to and the elevations of lands above the ditch. 
 

21. The viewers applied an economic analysis using sales and income approaches to 
determine the increased value to each classification acre based on the drainage 
benefit provided by the drainage system. 

 
22. The viewers determined the amount of economic benefit to property benefited 

immediately by the drainage system, or for property for which the drainage system 
can become an outlet for drainage, make an outlet more accessible, or otherwise 
directly benefit the property. 
 

23. The viewers determined economic benefits based on:  (1) an increase in the 
current market value of the property as a result of constructing the project; (2) an 
increase in the potential for agricultural production as a result of constructing the 
project; or (3) an increased value of the property as a result of potential different 
land use.  
 



Redwood County Ditch 74 Findings and Order 

 

Page 4 of 7 

 

24. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers determined benefits on 
property that are responsible for increased drainage system maintenance, or 
increased drainage system capacity because the natural drainage on the property 
has been altered or modified to accelerate the drainage of water from the property.  
 

25. The viewers kept an accurate account of all time engaged in viewing and 
examination; the nature and kind of work performed; the days each viewer was 
engaged in said work; the amount charged per day by each viewer; and every item 
of expense incurred by the viewers in said work.  
 

26. The viewers’ account of work has been filed with the drainage authority.  
 
27. Upon review of information provided to the Board during the public hearing, the 

Board further finds and confirms its earlier findings that the benefits and damages 
determined in the original proceedings, as well as the benefited and damaged 
areas determined in the original proceedings, do not reflect current, existing, actual 
benefits and benefitted areas.  
 

28. The viewers’ report is attached as Exhibit A.   
 

29. The benefits and damages statement is attached as Exhibit B.  
 
30. During the public hearing portion of the proceedings, the following persons 

appeared and provided comment.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

31. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Groebner moved to 
accept the Redetermination of Benefits Report. Commissioner Forkrud seconded, 
and the motion carried.  
 

32. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Wakefield moved to 
Set the payment terms as paid in full within 60 days, placed on taxes for 3 years 
at 4% interest, with all financed bills under $100.00 to be paid in the first year. 
Commissioner Groebner seconded and the motion carried.  
 

33. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Salfer moved to direct 
staff to prepare Findings and an Order consistent with the proceedings. 
Commissioner Groebner seconded, and the motion carried.  
 



Redwood County Ditch 74 Findings and Order 

 

Page 5 of 7 

 

34. Based on the proceedings herein, the evidence presented during the pendency of 
these proceedings, the testimony of the viewers, and the public comments 
received, the Board finds: 
 

a. that the viewers’ report has been made and other proceedings have been 
completed under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 103E;  

 

b. that the viewers’ report is complete and correct; 
 

c. that no evidence was presented in opposition to the benefits and damages 
determined by the viewers in the viewers’ report; 

 

d. that the redetermined benefits and damages, as reflected in the viewers’ 
report as Exhibit A, and as described in the benefits and damages 
statement as Exhibit B, are proper, reasonable, and conform to the 
drainage code; and 

 
Order: 

Based on the foregoing Findings and the entire record of proceedings before the Board, 

the Board, acting as the drainage authority for Redwood County Ditch 74, hereby orders 

as follows: 

 

A. The redetermined benefits of Redwood County Ditch 74, the viewers’ report 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, and the benefits and damages statement attached 
hereto as Exhibit B are hereby adopted by the Board and shall be used in place 
of the original benefits and damages in all subsequent proceedings. 

 

B. The viewers are allowed payment of their account of work.  
 

C. The County Auditor shall ensure that the redetermined benefits replace the existing 
benefits previously determined for Redwood County Ditch 74. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Redwood County Ditch 74 Findings and Order 

 

Page 6 of 7 

 

  
 
After discussion, the Board Chair called the question. The question was on the adoption 

of the foregoing findings and order, and there were, ____yeas, ____nays, ____ absent, 

and____ abstentions as follows: 

 Yea Nay Absent Abstain 
Wakefield     
Groebner     

Forkrud     
Salfer     

Van Hee     
 

Upon vote, the Chair declared the motion passed and the Findings and Order adopted. 

 

 

_______________________________         Dated: __________________ 

Rick Wakefield, Chairperson  



Redwood County Ditch 74 Findings and Order 

 

Page 7 of 7 

 

*   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   * 

I, Nick Brozek, Redwood County Land Sue Supervisor, do hereby certify that I have 

compared the above motion; findings and order with the original thereof as the same 

appears of record and on file with the Redwood County Ditch 74 and find the same to be 

a true and correct transcript thereof. The above order was filed with me, Nick Brozek, 

Redwood County Land Use Supervisor, on _______________ 

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this  

____ day of ___________, _____. 

 

             

    ______________________________  

           Nick Brozek  

 

 

 

 
 



 

1 

 

State of Minnesota 
County of Redwood 

In the matter of the Redetermination 
Of Benefits of Redwood County CD-74 

Redwood County, Minnesota 
December 3, 2022 

(Draft) 
 

Property Owners Report 
 

 Pursuant to Minnesota Statute 103E.323, the following is the Property Owners Report 
from information in the Redwood County CD-74 Excel spreadsheet and Redwood County CD-
74 Viewers Report, in the matter of the redetermination of benefits and damages, and damaged 
and benefitted acres of Redwood County CD-74, Redwood County, Minnesota. 
 

1. This redetermination of benefits sets the percentage that you will be required to pay 
for all future repairs and maintenance on Redwood County CD-74 
 

2. The name and address of the property owner is shown on the Excel spreadsheet for 
Redwood County CD-74 

 
3. The description of each lot or tract and its area that is benefitted or damaged is 

shown on the Excel spreadsheet for Redwood County CD-74 
 

4. There are no acres added to any tract or lot and there are no public waters, 
wetlands, and other areas not currently being cultivated that are proposed to be 
drained in this proceeding 

 
5. There are no acres which before the drainage benefits could be realized would 

require a public waters work permit to work in public waters under 103G.245 to 
excavate or fill a navigable water body under United States Code, Title 33, Section 
403, or a permit to discharge into waters of United States under United States Code, 
Title 33, Section 1344. 

 
6. There are no acres being assessed for drainage of areas that would be considered 

conversion of a wetland under United States Code, Title 16, Section 3821, if the area 
was placed in agricultural production 

 
7. There are no damages to riparian rights 
 
8. Right-of-way acreage is not required for Redwood County CD-74 

 
9. The amount that each tract or lot will be benefitted or damaged is shown on the 

Excel spreadsheet for Redwood County CD-74 
 
10. The damages or benefits to the property are shown on the Excel spreadsheet for 

Redwood County CD-74 
 

11. No construction is planned as part of this proceeding. 
 



 

2 

 

12. A copy of the benefits and damages statement under 103E.321, Subdivision 2, 
relating to the property owner is on the Excel spreadsheet for Redwood County  
CD-74 
 

13. The percentage of the cost to be assessed to the property owner in future repair and 
maintenance proceedings is shown on the Excel spreadsheet for Redwood County 
CD-74 

 
14. The redetermination of benefits and damages and damaged and benefitted areas 

shall be used in place of the original benefits and damages and benefitted and 
damaged areas in all subsequent proceedings relating to the Redwood County CD-
74 drainage system. 

 
15. The full Viewer’s Report is available for public inspection at the Redwood County 

Environmental Office, 403 South Mill Street, Redwood Falls, Minnesota (507-637-
4023). 
 

16. The Viewers will be available to answer questions from interested parties on January 
10, 2023 from 9:30 AM to 11:30 AM at the Redwood County Government Center, 
Commissioners Room, 403 South Mill Street, Redwood Falls, Minnesota 56283.  

 
Benefits and damages statement 

 This report covers the redetermination for a previously constructed drainage system. 
The basis for determining benefits and damages is therefore, based upon a comparison of the 
conditions that would have existed prior to the County tile systems construction, with those that 
do exist with the drainage system in a reasonable state of repair. Supporting documentation for 
the analysis and conclusions of the report are contained in our files and are available for 
inspection. The figures stated herein are based on a full and fair comparison of all pertinent 
facts and information that we were aware of at the time of this redetermination process. The 
following aids were used in this viewing process. 
 

 Redwood County online GIS parcel information site 
 USDA web soil survey 
 Google Earth aerial satellite photos 
 Yield averages taken from USDA national agriculture statistics service 
 Production costs taken from University of Minnesota FinBin 
 Average commodity sale prices taken from University of Minnesota FinBin 
 Sales data from the Redwood County Assessor office and website 
 Visual inspection of each 40 acre parcel or less 
 Consultation with the Redwood County Environmental Office and Drainage Staff 

 
The Viewers determined that the lands affected by the drainage system are generally 

similar and that the following comments refer to all such tracts. 
 
1.  Existing land use, property value and economic productivity: 

  Land is presently used for building sites, roads and for agricultural purposes. 
The property value is consistent with most agricultural land sales within Redwood 
County. Agricultural lands are primarily used for the production of corn and 
soybeans. The land has good economic productivity when properly drained. 



 

3 

 

2.  Potential land use, property value and economic productivity from the 
drainage system:  
 The drainage system has been in existence for many years and provides 
drainage for agricultural purposes. The property value is consistent with most 
agricultural land sales within Redwood County. Land affected by the drainage 
system has the potential to produce above average yields. 
 

3. The benefits or damages from the drainage system: 
  Benefits derived by lands affected by the drainage system are due to (A) 
Improved capacity to remove surface waters due to previous construction and 
maintenance of the County tile system, which results in an increase in the current 
market value of property; or (B) an increase in the potential for agricultural production 
as a result of the previous construction and continued maintenance of the drainage 
system; or (C) increased value of the property as a result of potential different land 
use. 

 
4. There is no damage to any riparian rights. 

 
5. There are no acres added to any tract or lot and there are no public waters, 

wetlands, and other areas not currently being cultivated, that are proposed to be 
drained in this proceeding. 

 
6. There are no acres which before the drainage benefits could be realized would 

require a public waters work permit to work in public waters under 103G.245 to 
excavate or fill a navigable water body under United States Code, Title 33, Section 
403, or a permit to discharge into waters of United States under United States Code, 
Title 33, Section 1344. 

 
7. There are no acres being assessed for drainage of areas that would be considered 

conversion of a wetland under United States Code, Title 16, Section 3821, if the area 
was placed in agricultural production. 

 
   This report is respectfully submitted to the Drainage Authority of Redwood County CD-74 by: 
 
 

Mark Behrends ______________________________________________________ 
 
 
Robert Hansen ______________________________________________________ 

 
 

Kendall Langseth _____________________________________________________ 
 
 
Bruce Ness__________________________________________________________ 

 
 
                  Submitted this 3rd day of December 2022 



 

1 

 

Redwood County CD-74 
Redetermination of Benefits 

Viewers Report 
December 3, 2022 

(Draft) 
 

Valuation prior to drainage 
 Beginning land use, property value, and economic productivity have been determined with the 
consideration that the benefited properties within the watershed originally did not have an adequate 
outlet for artificial drainage. 
 

“A” – Standing water or cattails, wetland classification with economic productivity for agriculture 
purposes of $0 per acre, and a market value of $1,000 to $2,000  

“B” – Seasonally flooded/pasture ground. Pasture classification with economic productivity of $85 
per acre based on grazing days and/or hay values, and a market value of $2,500 to $3,500. 

“C” – Wet subsoil – Generally farmable land with moderate crop potential, with annual economic 
productivity of $475 per acre based upon average annual yield of 70% of optimum with 
$329 production costs, and a market value of $4,000 to $5,000. 

“D” – Upland areas not needing much artificial drainage and intermixed with wetter soils, with 
annual economic productivity of $611 per acre based upon an average annual yield of 90% 
of optimum with $329 production costs, and a market value of $5,000 to $6,000. 

 
Valuation with NRCS recommended drainage 

 Potential land use, property value, and an increase in economic productivity, after public and 
private drainage have been installed as NRCS design standards as recommended in the Minnesota 
Drainage Guide, using current crop rotation, income, and expense. 
 

“A” – Drained slough area, medium classification land with economic productivity of $516                                
per acre based upon average production of 76% of optimum with $329 per acre production 
costs, and a market value of $5,000 to $6,500.  

“B” – Well drained ground, high land classification with economic productivity of $543 per acre 
based upon average annual production of 80% of optimum with $329 production costs, and 
a market value of $5,500 to $7,500. 

“C” – Well drained ground, highest land classification with economic productivity of $570 per acre 
based upon average annual production of 84% of optimum with $329 production costs, and 
a market value of $6,500 to $9,000. 

“D” – Well drained ground, high land classification with improved farm ability, with economic 
productivity of $665 per acre based upon average production of 98% of optimum with $329 
production costs, and a market value of $5,500 to $7,500. 

 
 Utilizing these productive values, potential benefit values were determined for the system based 
upon a 25 year effective life with proper maintenance. Private tile improvement cost were depreciated 
over the same 25 year period, and an allowance of 0.5% return on the system investment. A three year 
average Township yield was used for the benefit value calculations along with a three year average sale 
price for the corn and beans.  

 
Increased productivity 

 
Crop         Yield            Value        Income         %              Adjusted 
Corn        179.4            $4.47                    $802        50%       $401 
Beans          51.4          $10.80                     $555        50%       $278 
                                        $679 

Production costs 



 

2 

 

 
                      Corn        $430 X 50% = $215 
                      Beans      $228 X 50% = $114        
                                         $329 
 

Potential Benefit value 
 

       “A”             “B”                          “C”          “D” 
           76% of $679           80% of $679            84% of $679              98% of $679 
                 $516                      $543                    $570                   $665 
 
Minus cost 
of production     $329                  $329                        $329                           $329 
Net income                $187                $214                    $241                   $336 
Previous income        $0                 $85                     $146                          $282 
Increased income    $187                       $129                      $95                     $54 
Private tile costs      $56                         $31                      $27                     $18 
Annual increase             $131                         $98                      $68                     $36 
 
Capitalized for  
25 years @ ½ %           $3,067          $2,296                     $1,595                    $851 
 
% of potential 
Benefit       40%                        40%                         40%                            40% 
 
Reduced benefit  
Value                            $1,227                      $919                       $638                           $340 
 
        The potential benefit values have been reduced to reflect a less than optimum yield. 
 
 

Summary 
 Redwood County CD-74 consists of 306.70 acres of farmland, roads and building sites 
with benefits of $219,077. CD-74 is in Delhi, Sheridan and Redwood Falls Townships in Redwood 
County.  
 

a. 293.30 acres of farmland and building sites with $207,341 of benefits 
b. 13.40 acres of State, County and Township roads with $11,735 of benefits 
c. 306.70 total acres with $219,077 of benefits 

 
 Benefit values were adjusted based on multiple factors including location to the County tile, 
drainage coefficient, and soil type. 
 

Average land benefits, (reduced) over a 25 year period are $781 per acre 
 a. A soil           $1,227 

 b. B soil              $919 
 c. C soil              $638 
 d. D soil            $340 

  
Building site benefits 

a. (Average of B + C + D soils) X 1.5 = $948 
 
 



 

3 

 

   Ponds, woodland, and non-benefited acres 
  a. $0  

 
 Road benefits 

a.   Gravel roads, County or Township 
          (Average land benefit) X 1.0 = $781 

b.           Paved roads, State or County 
     (Average land benefit) X 1.5 = $1,171 
 

    Tile benefits 
a. A tile benefit was given for most County tile at a rate of $0.50 per linear foot. This 

value was given because of the ease of access for private tile, and for the drainage 
the County tile may provide. 13,400 feet of County tile in Redwood County CD-74 with 
$6,700 of tile benefits 
 

               Crop damages 
 Crop damages will be paid per acre on standing crops damaged by construction or 
repair on the County tile, as determined by the Redwood County Ditch Inspector.  

 
 

      Benefits and damages statement 
 This report covers the redetermination for a previously constructed drainage system. The basis 
for determining benefits and damages is therefore, based upon a comparison of the conditions that 
would have existed prior to the County tile systems construction, with those that do exist with the 
drainage system in a reasonable state of repair. Supporting documentation for the analysis and 
conclusions of the report are contained in our files and are available for inspection. The figures stated 
herein are based on a full and fair comparison of all pertinent facts and information that we were aware 
of at the time of this redetermination process. The following aids were used in this viewing process. 
 
 

 Redwood County online GIS parcel information site 
 USDA web soil survey 
 Google Earth aerial satellite photos 
 Yield averages taken from USDA national agriculture statistics service 
 Production costs taken from University of Minnesota FinBin 
 Average commodity sale prices taken from University Finbin  
 Sales data from Redwood County Assessor offices and websites 
 Visual inspection of each 40 acre parcel or less. 
 Consultation with the Redwood County Environmental Office and Drainage Staff 

 
 
The Viewers determined that the lands affected by the drainage system are generally similar and 

that the following comments refer to all such tracts. 
 
 
1.  Existing land use, property value and economic productivity: 

 Land is presently used for building sites, roads and for agricultural purposes. The property 
value is consistent with most agricultural land sales within Redwood County. Agricultural 
lands are primarily used for the production of corn and soybeans. The land has good 
economic productivity when properly drained. 
 
 



 

4 

 

2.  Potential land use, property value and economic productivity from the drainage 
system:  
 The drainage system has been in existence for many years and provides drainage for 
agricultural purposes. The property value is consistent with most agricultural land sales within 
Redwood County. Land affected by the drainage system has the potential to produce above 
average yields. 

 
3. The benefits or damages from the drainage system: 

  Benefits derived by lands affected by the drainage system are due to (A) Improved 
capacity to remove surface waters due to previous construction and maintenance of the 
County tile system, which results in an increase in the current market value of property; or 
(B) an increase in the potential for agricultural production as a result of the previous 
construction and continued maintenance of the drainage system; or (C) increased value of 
the property as a result of potential different land use. 

 
4. There is no damage to any riparian rights. 

 
5. There are no acres added to any tract or lot and there are no public waters, wetlands, and 

other areas not currently being cultivated, that are proposed to be drained in this proceeding. 
 

6. There are no acres which before the drainage benefits could be realized would require a 
public waters work permit to work in public waters under 103G.245 to excavate or fill a 
navigable water body under United States Code, Title 33, Section 403, or a permit to 
discharge into waters of United States under United States Code, Title 33, Section 1344. 

 
7. There are no acres being assessed for drainage of areas that would be considered 

conversion of a wetland under United States Code, Title 16, Section 3821, if the area was 
placed in agricultural production. 

 
 
   This report is respectfully submitted to the Drainage Authority of Redwood County CD-74 by: 
 
 

Mark Behrends______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Robert Hansen______________________________________________________________ 

 
 

Kendall Langseth ____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Bruce Ness_________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
                  Submitted this 3rd day of December 2022 



CD 88 Drainage Authority 
 

Agenda 
 

In the Matter of the Redetermination of Benefits 

January 17, 2023, 10:30 a.m. 

Redwood County Government Center  

Redwood Falls, Minnesota 
 

 

1. Adopt Agenda 
 

2. Purpose of Public Hearing – Commissioner Wakefield 

o 2 main reasons for redetermination  

 To bring in lands that are benefiting from the system, but which are not 

currently paying benefits.  When systems were initially viewed, only wet acres 

were assessed benefits.  However, with changes in drainage practices, all acres 

now have the potential to benefit from the system and should be brought in to 

pay their fair share.   

 To bring the value of the ditch system up to current dollar values to have the 

ability to make repairs or allow landowners to petition for an improvement.   
 

3. Jurisdictional and Notice Documents – Nick Brozek 
 

4. Presentation of Viewers’ Report – Mark Behrends  
 

5. Landowners and Interested Parties 

o Has there been any written testimony for the record? 

o Landowners wishing to speak should state their name for public record   
 

6. Close public Comment 
 

7. Possible Action by Drainage Authority  

o Approve Viewers’ Report as Presented 

o Continue Hearing for Further Information or Amendments 

o Reject viewers report 
 

8. Set repayment terms (suggested) 

o Paid in full within 60 days or it will be put on the property taxes for up to 3 years at 4% 

interest, if the amount owed is less than $100, the entire amount will be put on taxes in 

the first year. 
 

9. Order Land Use Supervisor Brozek to draft a findings and order consistent with the Boards 

decision.   
 

10. Adjourn 

 



CD 94 Drainage Authority 
 

Agenda 
 

In the Matter of the Redetermination of Benefits 

January 17, 2023, 10:30 a.m. 

Redwood County Government Center  

Redwood Falls, Minnesota 
 

 

1. Adopt Agenda 
 

2. Purpose of Public Hearing – Commissioner Wakefield 

o 2 main reasons for redetermination  

 To bring in lands that are benefiting from the system, but which are not 

currently paying benefits.  When systems were initially viewed, only wet acres 

were assessed benefits.  However, with changes in drainage practices, all acres 

now have the potential to benefit from the system and should be brought in to 

pay their fair share.   

 To bring the value of the ditch system up to current dollar values to have the 

ability to make repairs or allow landowners to petition for an improvement.   
 

3. Jurisdictional and Notice Documents – Nick Brozek 
 

4. Presentation of Viewers’ Report – Mark Behrends  
 

5. Landowners and Interested Parties 

o Has there been any written testimony for the record? 

o Landowners wishing to speak should state their name for public record   
 

6. Close public Comment 
 

7. Possible Action by Drainage Authority  

o Approve Viewers’ Report as Presented 

o Continue Hearing for Further Information or Amendments 

o Reject viewers report 
 

8. Set repayment terms (suggested) 

o Paid in full within 60 days or it will be put on the property taxes for up to 3 years at 4% 

interest, if the amount owed is less than $100, the entire amount will be put on taxes in 

the first year. 
 

9. Order Land Use Supervisor Brozek to draft a findings and order consistent with the Boards 

decision.   
 

10. Adjourn 

 



Redwood County Ditch 94 Findings and Order 

 

Page 1 of 7 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

Before the 

Redwood County 

SITTING AS THE DRAINAGE AUTHORITY FOR  

County Ditch 94 

 

 

 

In the Matter of: 

 

the Redetermination of Benefits for 

County Ditch 94 

 

 

FINDINGS AND ORDER APPROVING 

THE REDETERMINATION OF 

BENEFITS, ACQUIRING GRASS 

BUFFER, CONFIRMING DAMAGES, 

AND DIRECTING PAYMENT 

 

The Redwood County Board of Commissioners, sitting as the drainage authority for 

County Ditch 94, pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 103E.351, having adopted findings and 

ordered a redetermination of benefits on 02/01/2022; having appointed three viewers to 

redetermine and report the benefits and damages; having received the viewers’ report; 

having followed proper notice requirements in Minn. Stat. § 103E.351; and having held a 

public hearing and followed all requirements of chapter 103E, based on the record and 

proceedings, Commissioner ________________ moved, seconded by Commissioner 

_______________to adopt the following Findings and Order: 

 

Findings: 

 

1. Redwood County Board of Commissioners is the drainage authority for County 
Ditch 94. 
 

2. On 08/02/2022, the drainage authority adopted findings and ordered the initiation 
of a redetermination of benefits and damages for County Ditch 94 pursuant to 
Minn. Stat. § 103E.351. Mark Behrends, Robert Hansen, Kendall Langseth, John 
Thompson, Bruce Ness, and Wes Dahl as viewers 
 

3. County Environmental Director Scott Wold administered the Viewers’ Oath on 
08/11/2022 

 
4. The viewers completed their report, which included a benefits and damages 

statement, on 12/01/2022, for all property affected by the drainage system and 
filed their report with the drainage authority.  

 



Redwood County Ditch 94 Findings and Order 

 

Page 2 of 7 

 

5. The Environmental Director under direction from the drainage authority Board, 
prepared property owners’ reports and mailed them to the owners of property 
identified in the viewers’ report.  
 

6. The drainage authority, by order, set a public hearing for review of the viewers’ 
report on 12/13/2022, which is within 30 days after the property owners’ reports 
were mailed. 

 
7. A printed copy of the final hearing notice was posted for at least three weeks before 

the date of the final hearing at the front door of the Government Center of Redwood 
County.  

 
8. Notice of the final hearing was published in the Redwood Gazette, for three 

successive weeks prior to the hearing. 
 
9. Within one week after the first publication of the notice, the Redwood County 

Environmental Director provided notice by mail of the time and location of the final 
hearing to the commissioner of natural resources, all property owners, and others 
affected by the redetermination of benefits and listed in the viewers’ report. 

 
10. Proper notice of the redetermination hearing was made in conjunction with Minn. 

Stat. § 103E.351 requirements and chapters 103E. A record of the notice 
requirements is on file with the drainage authority. 

 
11. Evidence of all actions in this matter, including findings and orders, appointments, 

oaths, affidavits of mailing, publication, and posting as well as hearing agendas, 
presentation materials, and recordings are present in the record of proceedings 
and are incorporated by reference. 

 
12. The drainage authority held a public hearing on the redetermination of benefits on 

01/17/2023 at 10:30 a.m. at Redwood County Government Center.  
 
13. At the public hearing, Mark Behrends, one of the duly appointed viewers, 

presented the viewers’ report and explained the process of completing the viewers’ 
report. Behrends further provided detail of the viewing process and the information 
used by the viewers to:  (1) verify the boundary of the watershed of the drainage 
system; (2) verify and confirm the existence of drainage benefit; and (3) determine 
the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the construction of 
County Ditch 94. 

 
14. The viewers reviewed all property within the drainage areas of the drainage system 

as part of the redetermination of benefits process. The viewers determined the 
amount of damages to be paid for the acquisition of property for the establishment 
of best management practices, including grass strips, necessary to control erosion, 
sedimentation, improve water quality, or maintain the efficiency of the drainage 



Redwood County Ditch 94 Findings and Order 

 

Page 3 of 7 

 

system as required under Minn. Stat. § 103E.021. The viewers compared sales in 
the area in arriving at an average sales price used in establishing a payment rate. 

 
15. The viewers used maps, LiDAR data, and other information, along with visual 

inspection of the watershed of the drainage system, to determine the boundaries 
of the benefiting area.  

 
16. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers paid particular attention 

to altered land use and drainage alterations which facilitate the removal of water 
from property directing it to the drainage system. 

 
17. To determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 

drainage system, the viewers conducted a condition comparison comparing the 
expected, pre-ditch, unaltered state of the watershed to the existing, altered and 
improved condition of the watershed. The viewers used this comparison in 
determining the increased market value of the properties receiving a direct 
drainage benefit.  
 

18. Based on their detailed observations, the viewers determined benefit 
classifications, classified acres, and assigned economic benefit on a per acre 
basis. 
 

19. The viewers determined that some acres within the watershed of the drainage 
system, i.e. existing wetlands and non-contributing basins, received a change in 
benefits from the drainage system. 
 

20. The viewers accounted for the efficiency of the drainage system, as designed, and 
the proximity of lands to and the elevations of lands above the ditch. 
 

21. The viewers applied an economic analysis using sales and income approaches to 
determine the increased value to each classification acre based on the drainage 
benefit provided by the drainage system. 

 
22. The viewers determined the amount of economic benefit to property benefited 

immediately by the drainage system, or for property for which the drainage system 
can become an outlet for drainage, make an outlet more accessible, or otherwise 
directly benefit the property. 
 

23. The viewers determined economic benefits based on:  (1) an increase in the 
current market value of the property as a result of constructing the project; (2) an 
increase in the potential for agricultural production as a result of constructing the 
project; or (3) an increased value of the property as a result of potential different 
land use.  
 



Redwood County Ditch 94 Findings and Order 

 

Page 4 of 7 

 

24. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers determined benefits on 
property that are responsible for increased drainage system maintenance, or 
increased drainage system capacity because the natural drainage on the property 
has been altered or modified to accelerate the drainage of water from the property.  
 

25. The viewers kept an accurate account of all time engaged in viewing and 
examination; the nature and kind of work performed; the days each viewer was 
engaged in said work; the amount charged per day by each viewer; and every item 
of expense incurred by the viewers in said work.  
 

26. The viewers’ account of work has been filed with the drainage authority.  
 
27. Upon review of information provided to the Board during the public hearing, the 

Board further finds and confirms its earlier findings that the benefits and damages 
determined in the original proceedings, as well as the benefited and damaged 
areas determined in the original proceedings, do not reflect current, existing, actual 
benefits and benefitted areas.  
 

28. The viewers’ report is attached as Exhibit A.   
 

29. The benefits and damages statement is attached as Exhibit B.  
 
30. During the public hearing portion of the proceedings, the following persons 

appeared and provided comment.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

31. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Groebner moved to 
accept the Redetermination of Benefits Report. Commissioner Forkrud seconded, 
and the motion carried.  
 

32. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Wakefield moved to 
Set the payment terms as paid in full within 60 days, placed on taxes for 3 years 
at 4% interest, with all financed bills under $100.00 to be paid in the first year. 
Commissioner Groebner seconded and the motion carried.  
 

33. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Salfer moved to direct 
staff to prepare Findings and an Order consistent with the proceedings. 
Commissioner Groebner seconded, and the motion carried.  
 



Redwood County Ditch 94 Findings and Order 

 

Page 5 of 7 

 

34. Based on the proceedings herein, the evidence presented during the pendency of 
these proceedings, the testimony of the viewers, and the public comments 
received, the Board finds: 
 

a. that the viewers’ report has been made and other proceedings have been 
completed under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 103E;  

 

b. that the viewers’ report is complete and correct; 
 

c. that no evidence was presented in opposition to the benefits and damages 
determined by the viewers in the viewers’ report; 

 

d. that the redetermined benefits and damages, as reflected in the viewers’ 
report as Exhibit A, and as described in the benefits and damages 
statement as Exhibit B, are proper, reasonable, and conform to the 
drainage code; and 

 
Order: 

Based on the foregoing Findings and the entire record of proceedings before the Board, 

the Board, acting as the drainage authority for Redwood County Ditch 94, hereby orders 

as follows: 

 

A. The redetermined benefits of Redwood County Ditch 94, the viewers’ report 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, and the benefits and damages statement attached 
hereto as Exhibit B are hereby adopted by the Board and shall be used in place 
of the original benefits and damages in all subsequent proceedings. 

 

B. The viewers are allowed payment of their account of work.  
 

C. The County Auditor shall ensure that the redetermined benefits replace the existing 
benefits previously determined for Redwood County Ditch 94. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Redwood County Ditch 94 Findings and Order 

 

Page 6 of 7 

 

  
 
After discussion, the Board Chair called the question. The question was on the adoption 

of the foregoing findings and order, and there were, ____yeas, ____nays, ____ absent, 

and____ abstentions as follows: 

 Yea Nay Absent Abstain 
Wakefield     
Groebner     

Forkrud     
Salfer     

Van Hee     
 

Upon vote, the Chair declared the motion passed and the Findings and Order adopted. 

 

 

_______________________________         Dated: __________________ 

Rick Wakefield, Chairperson  



Redwood County Ditch 94 Findings and Order 

 

Page 7 of 7 

 

*   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   * 

I, Nick Brozek, Redwood County Land Sue Supervisor, do hereby certify that I have 

compared the above motion; findings and order with the original thereof as the same 

appears of record and on file with the Redwood County Ditch 94 and find the same to be 

a true and correct transcript thereof. The above order was filed with me, Nick Brozek, 

Redwood County Land Use Supervisor, on _______________ 

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this  

____ day of ___________, _____. 

 

             

    ______________________________  

           Nick Brozek  

 

 

 

 
 



CD 29 Drainage Authority 
 

Agenda 
 

In the Matter of the Redetermination of Benefits 

February 7, 2023, 10:00 a.m. 

Redwood County Government Center  

Redwood Falls, Minnesota 
 

 

1. Adopt Agenda 
 

2. Purpose of Public Hearing – Commissioner Wakefield 

o 2 main reasons for redetermination  

 To bring in lands that are benefiting from the system, but which are not 

currently paying benefits.  When systems were initially viewed, only wet acres 

were assessed benefits.  However, with changes in drainage practices, all acres 

now have the potential to benefit from the system and should be brought in to 

pay their fair share.   

 To bring the value of the ditch system up to current dollar values to have the 

ability to make repairs or allow landowners to petition for an improvement.   
 

3. Jurisdictional and Notice Documents – Nick Brozek 
 

4. Presentation of Viewers’ Report – Mark Behrends 
 

5. Landowners and Interested Parties 

o Has there been any written testimony for the record? 

o Landowners wishing to speak should state their name for public record   
 

6. Close public Comment 
 

7. Possible Action by Drainage Authority  

o Approve Viewers’ Report as Presented 

o Continue Hearing for Further Information or Amendments 

o Reject viewers report 
 

8. Set repayment terms (suggested) 

o Paid in full within 60 days or it will be put on the property taxes for up to 3 years at 4% 

interest, if the amount owed is less than $100, the entire amount will be put on taxes in 

the first year. 
 

9. Order Land Use Supervisor Brozek to draft a findings and order consistent with the Boards 

decision.   
 

10. Adjourn 

 



Redwood County Ditch 97 Findings and Order 

 

Page 1 of 7 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

Before the 

Redwood County 

SITTING AS THE DRAINAGE AUTHORITY FOR  

County Ditch 97 

 

 

 

In the Matter of: 

 

the Redetermination of Benefits for 

County Ditch 97 

 

 

FINDINGS AND ORDER APPROVING 

THE REDETERMINATION OF 

BENEFITS, ACQUIRING GRASS 

BUFFER, CONFIRMING DAMAGES, 

AND DIRECTING PAYMENT 

 

The Redwood County Board of Commissioners, sitting as the drainage authority for 

County Ditch 97, pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 103E.351, having adopted findings and 

ordered a redetermination of benefits on 02/01/2022; having appointed three viewers to 

redetermine and report the benefits and damages; having received the viewers’ report; 

having followed proper notice requirements in Minn. Stat. § 103E.351; and having held a 

public hearing and followed all requirements of chapter 103E, based on the record and 

proceedings, Commissioner ________________ moved, seconded by Commissioner 

_______________to adopt the following Findings and Order: 

 

Findings: 

 

1. Redwood County Board of Commissioners is the drainage authority for County 
Ditch 97. 
 

2. On 08/02/2022, the drainage authority adopted findings and ordered the initiation 
of a redetermination of benefits and damages for County Ditch 97 pursuant to 
Minn. Stat. § 103E.351. Mark Behrends, Robert Hansen, Kendall Langseth, John 
Thompson, Bruce Ness, and Wes Dahl as viewers 
 

3. County Environmental Director Scott Wold administered the Viewers’ Oath on 
08/11/2022 

 
4. The viewers completed their report, which included a benefits and damages 

statement, on 12/01/2022, for all property affected by the drainage system and 
filed their report with the drainage authority.  

 



Redwood County Ditch 97 Findings and Order 

 

Page 2 of 7 

 

5. The Environmental Director under direction from the drainage authority Board, 
prepared property owners’ reports and mailed them to the owners of property 
identified in the viewers’ report.  
 

6. The drainage authority, by order, set a public hearing for review of the viewers’ 
report on 12/13/2022, which is within 30 days after the property owners’ reports 
were mailed. 

 
7. A printed copy of the final hearing notice was posted for at least three weeks before 

the date of the final hearing at the front door of the Government Center of Redwood 
County.  

 
8. Notice of the final hearing was published in the Redwood Gazette, for three 

successive weeks prior to the hearing. 
 
9. Within one week after the first publication of the notice, the Redwood County 

Environmental Director provided notice by mail of the time and location of the final 
hearing to the commissioner of natural resources, all property owners, and others 
affected by the redetermination of benefits and listed in the viewers’ report. 

 
10. Proper notice of the redetermination hearing was made in conjunction with Minn. 

Stat. § 103E.351 requirements and chapters 103E. A record of the notice 
requirements is on file with the drainage authority. 

 
11. Evidence of all actions in this matter, including findings and orders, appointments, 

oaths, affidavits of mailing, publication, and posting as well as hearing agendas, 
presentation materials, and recordings are present in the record of proceedings 
and are incorporated by reference. 

 
12. The drainage authority held a public hearing on the redetermination of benefits on 

01/17/2023 at 10:30 a.m. at Redwood County Government Center.  
 
13. At the public hearing, Mark Behrends, one of the duly appointed viewers, 

presented the viewers’ report and explained the process of completing the viewers’ 
report. Behrends further provided detail of the viewing process and the information 
used by the viewers to:  (1) verify the boundary of the watershed of the drainage 
system; (2) verify and confirm the existence of drainage benefit; and (3) determine 
the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the construction of 
County Ditch 97. 

 
14. The viewers reviewed all property within the drainage areas of the drainage system 

as part of the redetermination of benefits process. The viewers determined the 
amount of damages to be paid for the acquisition of property for the establishment 
of best management practices, including grass strips, necessary to control erosion, 
sedimentation, improve water quality, or maintain the efficiency of the drainage 



Redwood County Ditch 97 Findings and Order 

 

Page 3 of 7 

 

system as required under Minn. Stat. § 103E.021. The viewers compared sales in 
the area in arriving at an average sales price used in establishing a payment rate. 

 
15. The viewers used maps, LiDAR data, and other information, along with visual 

inspection of the watershed of the drainage system, to determine the boundaries 
of the benefiting area.  

 
16. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers paid particular attention 

to altered land use and drainage alterations which facilitate the removal of water 
from property directing it to the drainage system. 

 
17. To determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 

drainage system, the viewers conducted a condition comparison comparing the 
expected, pre-ditch, unaltered state of the watershed to the existing, altered and 
improved condition of the watershed. The viewers used this comparison in 
determining the increased market value of the properties receiving a direct 
drainage benefit.  
 

18. Based on their detailed observations, the viewers determined benefit 
classifications, classified acres, and assigned economic benefit on a per acre 
basis. 
 

19. The viewers determined that some acres within the watershed of the drainage 
system, i.e. existing wetlands and non-contributing basins, received a change in 
benefits from the drainage system. 
 

20. The viewers accounted for the efficiency of the drainage system, as designed, and 
the proximity of lands to and the elevations of lands above the ditch. 
 

21. The viewers applied an economic analysis using sales and income approaches to 
determine the increased value to each classification acre based on the drainage 
benefit provided by the drainage system. 

 
22. The viewers determined the amount of economic benefit to property benefited 

immediately by the drainage system, or for property for which the drainage system 
can become an outlet for drainage, make an outlet more accessible, or otherwise 
directly benefit the property. 
 

23. The viewers determined economic benefits based on:  (1) an increase in the 
current market value of the property as a result of constructing the project; (2) an 
increase in the potential for agricultural production as a result of constructing the 
project; or (3) an increased value of the property as a result of potential different 
land use.  
 



Redwood County Ditch 97 Findings and Order 

 

Page 4 of 7 

 

24. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers determined benefits on 
property that are responsible for increased drainage system maintenance, or 
increased drainage system capacity because the natural drainage on the property 
has been altered or modified to accelerate the drainage of water from the property.  
 

25. The viewers kept an accurate account of all time engaged in viewing and 
examination; the nature and kind of work performed; the days each viewer was 
engaged in said work; the amount charged per day by each viewer; and every item 
of expense incurred by the viewers in said work.  
 

26. The viewers’ account of work has been filed with the drainage authority.  
 
27. Upon review of information provided to the Board during the public hearing, the 

Board further finds and confirms its earlier findings that the benefits and damages 
determined in the original proceedings, as well as the benefited and damaged 
areas determined in the original proceedings, do not reflect current, existing, actual 
benefits and benefitted areas.  
 

28. The viewers’ report is attached as Exhibit A.   
 

29. The benefits and damages statement is attached as Exhibit B.  
 
30. During the public hearing portion of the proceedings, the following persons 

appeared and provided comment.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

31. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Groebner moved to 
accept the Redetermination of Benefits Report. Commissioner Forkrud seconded, 
and the motion carried.  
 

32. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Wakefield moved to 
Set the payment terms as paid in full within 60 days, placed on taxes for 3 years 
at 4% interest, with all financed bills under $100.00 to be paid in the first year. 
Commissioner Groebner seconded and the motion carried.  
 

33. At the close of the public comment hearing, Commissioner Salfer moved to direct 
staff to prepare Findings and an Order consistent with the proceedings. 
Commissioner Groebner seconded, and the motion carried.  
 



Redwood County Ditch 97 Findings and Order 

 

Page 5 of 7 

 

34. Based on the proceedings herein, the evidence presented during the pendency of 
these proceedings, the testimony of the viewers, and the public comments 
received, the Board finds: 
 

a. that the viewers’ report has been made and other proceedings have been 
completed under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 103E;  

 

b. that the viewers’ report is complete and correct; 
 

c. that no evidence was presented in opposition to the benefits and damages 
determined by the viewers in the viewers’ report; 

 

d. that the redetermined benefits and damages, as reflected in the viewers’ 
report as Exhibit A, and as described in the benefits and damages 
statement as Exhibit B, are proper, reasonable, and conform to the 
drainage code; and 

 
Order: 

Based on the foregoing Findings and the entire record of proceedings before the Board, 

the Board, acting as the drainage authority for Redwood County Ditch 97, hereby orders 

as follows: 

 

A. The redetermined benefits of Redwood County Ditch 97, the viewers’ report 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, and the benefits and damages statement attached 
hereto as Exhibit B are hereby adopted by the Board and shall be used in place 
of the original benefits and damages in all subsequent proceedings. 

 

B. The viewers are allowed payment of their account of work.  
 

C. The County Auditor shall ensure that the redetermined benefits replace the existing 
benefits previously determined for Redwood County Ditch 97. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Redwood County Ditch 97 Findings and Order 

 

Page 6 of 7 

 

  
 
After discussion, the Board Chair called the question. The question was on the adoption 

of the foregoing findings and order, and there were, ____yeas, ____nays, ____ absent, 

and____ abstentions as follows: 

 Yea Nay Absent Abstain 
Wakefield     
Groebner     

Forkrud     
Salfer     

Van Hee     
 

Upon vote, the Chair declared the motion passed and the Findings and Order adopted. 

 

 

_______________________________         Dated: __________________ 

Rick Wakefield, Chairperson  



Redwood County Ditch 97 Findings and Order 

 

Page 7 of 7 

 

*   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   * 

I, Nick Brozek, Redwood County Land Sue Supervisor, do hereby certify that I have 

compared the above motion; findings and order with the original thereof as the same 

appears of record and on file with the Redwood County Ditch 97 and find the same to be 

a true and correct transcript thereof. The above order was filed with me, Nick Brozek, 

Redwood County Land Use Supervisor, on _______________ 

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this  

____ day of ___________, _____. 

 

             

    ______________________________  

           Nick Brozek  

 

 

 

 
 
























































































































































	1-17-23 Board Agenda
	8:30 a.m.
	10:30 a.m.
	Personnel
	11:30 a.m.
	Meeting ID: 820 7336 1667    Passcode: 664315
	12:00 p.m.
	1:30 p.m.
	 ADJOURN

	Upcoming Meetings
	OFFICIAL NOTICES/ UPCOMING MEETINGS

	August 16, 2022-Amended Minutes
	ROAD AND BRIDGE
	BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by   Redwood County that Vicki Kletscher, the County Administrator, and Jim Salfer, the County Commissioner, be authorized to execute the FY2021 CVSO Grant Agreement for the above-mentioned Program on behalf of the County.
	ENVIRONMENTAL

	Draft Minutes December 30, 2022
	ADJOURN
	There being no further business, Chair Salfer declared the meeting adjourned at 10:04 a.m.
	Jim Salfer, Chair

	Draft Minutes January 5, 2023
	ADJOURN
	 There being no further business, Chair Salfer declared the meeting adjourned at 9:51 a.m.
	Jim Salfer, Chair

	Commissioners Abstract 01.17.23
	ABSTRACT

	Commissioner Bills 1-17-23
	Cash Balance Sheets and Investment Summary 12-31-22
	DEC 2022 Disbursements
	1.  Const. & Maint. Agmt. Redwood Falls
	2.  Survey Equipment Purchase
	3.  Auth. to sign Contract for snow removal
	2021 Annual Report - SWHHS
	Board Action - Upland Colony
	Updated Conditions for Upland Colony
	Upland Colony CUP Packet
	CD 44 - Agenda - Final Hearing
	CD 44 Findings and Order
	redetermination worksheet REDWOOD CD 44
	MASTER LISTING

	Viewers Report
	CD 48 - Agenda - Final Hearing
	CD 48 Findings and Order
	CD 55 - Agenda - Final Hearing
	CD 55 Findings and Order
	CD 63 - Agenda - Final Hearing
	CD 63 Findings and Order
	CD 65 - Agenda - Final Hearing
	CD 65 Findings and Order
	CD 66 - Agenda - Final Hearing
	CD 66 Findings and Order
	Redwood County CD-66 Property Owners Report December 2, 2022 (Draft)
	Redwood County CD-66 Viewers Report December 2, 2022 (Draft)
	CD 74 - Agenda - Final Hearing
	CD 74 Findings and Order
	Redwood County CD-74 Property Owners Report December 3, 2022 (Draft)
	Redwood County CD-74 Viewers Report December 3, 2022 (Draft)
	CD 88 - Agenda - Final Hearing
	CD 94 - Agenda - Final Hearing
	CD 94 Findings and Order
	CD 97- Agenda - Final Hearing
	CD 97 Findings and Order
	FEMA Change Order
	PCP Lawnmower Purchase
	Planning and Zoning Commissioner Appointment
	Resolution to expend ARP funds to PCP
	Board Action - Assessment Agmts.
	Assessment Agmt. - Paxton Twp.
	Assessment Agmt. - City of Redwood Falls
	Board Action - RRRSWA Amended JPA
	RRRSWA JPA
	2.  Solid Waste Hauler Licenses
	2023 Grandview Winery Tobacco License
	December Jail Population
	STS Quarterly Report
	Jail Medical Services Award
	Resolution for ARPA funds for Fair Board
	EDA Appointment
	SW MN Housing Contract for CDBG Grant Adm. Services
	Explore SW MN Committee Appointment

